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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR CHILDREN YOUTH & FAMILIES

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD. NH 03301-3857
603-271-4451 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 4451

Fax: 603-271-4729 TOO Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

May 8, 2024

ao

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Children, Youth and
Families, to amend existing contracts with the Contractors listed below to continue to provide
community-based voluntary services for high-risk families, by exercising contract renewal options
by increasing the total price limitation by $12,545,842 from $22,758,809 to $35,305,651 and
extending the completion dates from June 30,2024 to June 30,2026, effective July 1,2024, upon
Govemor and Council approval. 18% Federal Funds. 82% General Funds.

The contracts were approved by Governor and Council In accordance with the table below.

Contractor

Name

Vendor

Code

Area Served Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

G&C

Approval

Waypoint

Manchester,
NH

177166

Claremont,
Concord,
Conway,
Keene,
Laconia,

Manchester,
Rochester,
Seacoast,
Southern

$19,895,531 $10,921,842 $30,817,373

0; 11/18/20,
item #22

A1:12/8/21,
item #5A

A2: 6/28/23,
Item #30

The Family
Resource

Center at

Gorham

Gorham. NH

162412
Berlin and

Littleton
$2,863,278 $1,625,000 $4,488,278

0:11/18/20,
item #22

A1: 6/28/23,
item #30

Total; $22,758,809 $12,546,842 $35,305,651

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2025, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2026, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.
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EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is for the Contractors to continue providing support, case
management, and service coordination for high-risk families to strengthen family protective
factors, keep children safe, and prevent the need for subsequent involvement with the Division
for Children. Youth and Families (DCYF).

The Contractors provide a Community-Based Voluntary Services (CBVS) program that
serves high-risk families in need of additional support to prevent Wure DCYF involvement. After
meeting families' immediate needs and developing service plans. CBVS providers help families
build and maintain bridges to other parenting, economic, or behavioral/mental health services to
address underlying needs, strengthen protective factors, and promote family well-being. The goal
of CBVS is to safely prevent families from requiring DCYF intervention in the future.

Approximately 2,275 families will be served during State Fiscal Years 2025 and 2026.

The Contractors provide services to families who were recently assessed by the DCYF for
an allegation of abuse or neglect, utilizing an actuarial risk assessment tool; and were determined
to be at higher risk for future DCYF involvement. Services are provided with an emphasis on
working in partnerships with families, providing programmatic solutions to difficult family
experiences, and celebrating family progress.

The Department will continue to monitor each Contractor's performance through monthly
provider meetings that focus on performance topics including, but not limited to:

•  Persistent follow-up on referrals.

•  Service completion.

•  Long-term program outcomes.

•  Equitable service delivery.

As referenced in Exhibit A. Revisions to Standard Contract Provisions, of the original
agreements, the parties have the option to extend the agreements for up to two (2) additional
years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the
parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its option to renew
services for two (2) years of the two (2) years available.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, the Department
may be unable to prevent subsequent DCYF involvement with high-risk families, which may
include court involvement.

Areas Served: Statewide.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #93.658, FAIN #2401NHFOST.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, additional General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Weaver

Commissioner

The Dtpartmenl 0/Health ondHunuin Services' Mission is to join communUies and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

Community-Based Voluntary Services (RFP-2021-DCYF-03-COMMU)

05-95-042-421010-29580000, HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEFT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS.
HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIV, CHILD PROTECTION, CHILD - FAMILY SERVICES

21.56% Federal Funds, 78.44% General Funds

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

- 2021 102/500731 Contracts for Proqram Services 42105893 $561,028.00 $0.00 $561,028.00

2022 644/504195 SGFSER SGF Services 42105893 $546,000.00 $0.00 $546,000.00

2023 644/504195 SGFSER SGF Services 42105893 $981,250.00 $0.00 $981,250.00

2024 644/504195 SGFSER SGF Services 42105893 $775,000.00 $0.00 $775,000.00

2025 644/504195 SGFSER SGF Services 42105893 $0,00 $800,000.00 $800,000.00

2026 . 644/504195 SGFSER SGF Services 42105893 SO.OO $825,000.00 $825,000.00

Sub Total $2,863,278.00 $1,625,000.00 $4,488,278.00

05.95-042-421010-29580000, HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEFT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIV, CHILD PROTECTION, CHILD - FAMILY SERVICES

12.74% Federal Funds, 87.26% General Funds

WavDoint Vendor# 177166

State Fiscal

Year
Class/ Object Description Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Froq Svc 42105893 $3,848,418.00 $0.00 $3,848,418.00

2022 644/504195 SGFSER SGF Services 42105893 $5,125,271.00 $0.00 $5,125,271.00

2023 644/504195 SGFSER SGF Services 42105893 $5,460,921.00 $0.00 $5,460,921.00

2024 644/504195 SGFSER SGF Services 42105893 $5,460,921.00 $0.00 $5,460,921.00

2025 644/504195 SGFSER SGF Services 42105893 $0.00 $5,460,921.00 $5,460,921.00

2026 644/504195 SGFSER SGF Services 42105893 $0.00 $5,460,921.00 $5,460,921.00

Sub Total $  19,895,531.00 $10,921,842.00 $30,817,373.00

TOTALl $22,758,809.00 $12,546,842.00 $35,305,651.00

Governor and Council Letter Attachment

Fiscal Details
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1DocuSign Envelope ID: 8B6898F7-0EFCHCC4.B4FF-B879FE515DD9

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3
I

This Amendment to the Community-Based Voluntary Services contract is by and between the State of
New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Waypoint ("the
Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract"), approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on November 18, 2020 (Item #22), as amended on December 8, 2021 (Item #5A), and as amended on
June 28, 2023 (Item #30), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and .set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows;

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2026

2. ■ Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$30,817,373

3. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, by adding Section 1.5., to read:

1.5. Business Hours; Monday through Friday, 8:00 AM - 5:00 PM

4. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Section 2.1., toVead:

2.1. The Contractor shall ensure Community-Based Voluntary Services are available in cities and
towns covered by the Claremont, Concord, Conway, Keene, Laconia, Manchester,
Rochester, Seacoast, Southern/Southern telework Child Protective Services' (CPS) District
offices of the Division for Children, Youth and Families seven (7) days per week during
business hours, as well as outside of business hours. The Department anticipates referring
families for services each State Fiscal Year (SFY) (July 1 - June 30) of the contract period,
as follows:

2.1.1. Contract Effective Date through June 30, 2021 (SFY 2021): 600 families

2.1.2. SFY 2022: 960 families

2.1.3. SFY 2023: 960 families

2.1.4. SFY 2024: 960 families

2.1.5. SFY 2025: 1,010 families

2.1.6. SFY 2026: 1,060 families

5. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Section 2.6., to read:

2.6. The Contractor shall provide services to clients utilizing the Solution-Based Casework and
Motivational Interviewing models, and must ensure:

2.6.1. Staff maintain a caseload of not more than fifteen (15) families at any given time;
and

2.6.2. Staff meet with each family in person or via telehealth if requested, at least one (1)
time per week throughout the duration of service. —ds

wt
Waypoint A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials ^

RFP-2021-DCYF-03-COMMU-01-A03 Paqe1of4 Date
v7.12.23
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6. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, by adding Sections 2.18. through 2.19., to read:

2.18. The Contractor may be required to participate in quarterly on-site reviews conducted by
the Department, or as otherwise requested by the Department.

2.19. The Contractor may be required to facilitate quarterly file reviews conducted by the
Department, or as othenvise requeisted by the Department.

7. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit C, Amendment #3,
Payment Terms, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

Waypoint A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials
5/7/2024

RFP-2021 -DCYF.03-COMMU-01 -A03 Page 2 of 4 Date
v7.12.23

C—OS
Ut
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amehdment shall be effective July 1, 2024, upon Governor and Council
approval. /

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

5/8/2024

Date

DeeuSlgncd by:

Ikmi. Nm\a^
Narne!''^'^''^"'Noonan

Title: DCYF Interim Director

Waypoint

5/7/2024

Date

•DocuSlgncd by:

Title: president and CEO

Waypoint

RFP-2021-DCYF-03-COMMU-01-A03

V. 7.12.23

A-S-1.3

Page 3 of 4
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

•OocuSlgrttd by:

5/9/2024

Date

Title; Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Govemor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Waypoint A-S-1.3

RFP-2021-DCYF-03-COMMU-01-A03 Page 4 of 4
V. 7.12.23
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community-Based Voluntary Services

EXHIBIT C, Amendment #3

Payment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1.12.74% Federal Funds for Foster Care Title IV-E as awarded on 10/1/2022

and 10/1/2023, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services,
Administration for Children and Families, Assistance Listing Number
93.658, FAIN 2301NHFOST, and FAIN 2401NHFOST.

1.2.87.26% General funds.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement:

2.1. The Department has identified the Contractor as a Subrecipient, in
accordance with 2 CFR 200.330.

2.2. The Contractor's Indirect Cost Rate of 24.2% applies in accordance with 2
CFR §200.414.

3. Start Up Grant

3.1. For the purpose of this agreement, start-up funds in an amount not to
exceed $2,148,521 shall be provided to the Contractor for the expenses
incurred to launch services.

3.2.The Department shall make a one-lump sum payment to the Contractor
within thirty (30) days of the Contract Effective Date.

3.3.The Contractor shall submit a quarterly report to the Department within
fifteen (15) days of the end of the reporting period detailing all start up
expenditures.

3.4. All unspent funds shall be returned to the Department no later than twelve
(12) months after the Contract Effective Date.

4. Flex Funding

4.1. For the purpose of this agreement, the Department shall allocate flexible
funding to the Contractor to fullfill the services as described in Exhibit B,
Scope of Services.

4.2. Payment for flexible funding shall be on a cost reimbursement basis as
follows:

4.2.1. $335,650 for State Fiscal Year (SFY) 2025 of the contract.

4.2.2. $335,650 for State Fiscal Year (SFY) 2026 of the contract.

4.3^From Contract effective date through end of SFY 2024, payment is made
as follows:

4.3.1. One-lump sum payment of $540,750 within thirty (30) days of the
Contract Effective Date, equivalent to an estimated two (2) years
worth of flexible funding. /—

Waypoint Exhibit C Contractor Initials L

RFP-2021-DCYF-03-COMMU-01-A03 Page1of6 Dale



DocuSign Envelope ID: 8B6898F7-0EF(MCC4-B4FF-B879FE515DD9

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community-Based Voluntary Services

EXHIBIT C, Amendment #3

4.3.2. One-lump sum payment of $335,650 within thirty (30) days of the
beginning of SFY 2023.

4.3.3. One-lump sum payment of $335,650 within (30) days of the
beginning of SFY 2024.

4.3.4. Upon the end of State Fiscal Year 2024, the Contractor shall return
any remaining flex funds to the Department within thirty (30) days.

4.4. The Contractor shall not utiize flexible funds prior to the initial "face-to-face"
(but can use it for the face-to-face).

4.5.The Contractor shall manage flexible fund allocations in a manner
consistent with Exhibit B, Scope of Services, and shall have the ability to
vary the amount of flex funds spent to support each family (e.g., some
families can get $500 and others can get $150 or any other amount needed
to support the family). If the identified flexible funding need is higher than
$1,000 per client, the Contractor will consult with the Department prior to
funding the need.

4.6. The Contractor shall provide the following information to the Department
monthly via invoice:

4.6.1. The families who benefited from flexible fund purchases;

4.6.2. How much was spent per family (both average and individual
families); and

4.6.3. What the flexible funds were spent on.

5. Dailv Rate

5.1. For the purpose of this agreement, a daily rate of $48.75 will be awarded.

5.1.1. This will include a dual authorization as:

5.1.1.1. Community Based Case Management for $25.35/client
(family) per day.

5.1.1.2. Motivational Interviewing fo $23.40/client (family) per day,
which is incoprated into the IV-E claiming.

5.2. Payment shall be on a monthly basis and follow a process determined by
the Department.

5.3. Maximum allotment for daily rate expenditure by SFY is as follows:

5.3.1. Subtotal: $26,286,750

5.3.2. SFY 2021: $1,113,000 ^

5.3.3. SFY 2022: $5,034,750

5.3.4. SFY 2023: $5,034,750

5.3.5. SFY 2024: $5,034,750
-OS

wr
Waypoint • Exhibit C Contractor Initials ̂

RFP-2021-DCYF-03-COMMU-01-A03 Page 2 of 6
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community-Based Voluntary Services

EXHIBIT C, Amendment #3

5.3.6. SFY 2025; $5,034,750

5.3.7. SFY 2026: $5,034,750

5.4. Payment for daily rate shall be Initated six (6) months from the Contract
Effective Date and shall follow a process determined by the Department.

6. Bonus Payment

6.1. For the purpose of this agreement, bonus payments shall be paid to the
Contractor upon submission of the following:

6.1.1. Services and data as specified In Exhibit B, Scope of Services;
Section 2, Statement of Work; and Section 5, Performance
Measures and Performance Metrics;

6.1.2. Standard payment request form(s).

6.1.3. Other supplemental bonus payment documents as specified by the
Department.

6.2. A bonus payment shall be paid for each family who recieves a face-to-face
meeting within three (3) days of DCYF referral.

6.2.1. Bonus payment shall be $63.00 per family. This value is equal to
1 % of the value of six (6) months of service.

6.2.2. Face-to-face and referral date shall be defined as indicated in

Exhibit B, Scope of Services; Section 1, Key Definitions.

6.3. A bonus payment shall be paid for each family with no new open DCYF
case within six (6) months of referral.

6.3.1. Bonus payment shall be $63.00 per family. This value is equal to
1 % of the value of six (6) months of service.

6.3.2. No new open DCYF cases and referral date shall be defined as
indicated in Exhibit B, Scope of Services; Section 1, Key
Definitions.

6.4. The Contractor and the Department shall send all client information in
.  relation to/or in support of payment, utiizing a secure email system.

6.5. Payment shall be on a monthly basis in an amount specified by the
Contractor on appropriate documentation.

6.6. The maximum allotment for this contract for each SFY is as follows:

6.6.1. Total allocation: $498,752

6.6.2. SFY 2021: $46,147

6.6.3. SFY 2022: $90,521

6.6.4. SFY 2023: $90,521
/  DS

ut
Waypoint Exhibit C Contractor Initials ^

5/7/2024
RFP-2021-DCYF-03.COMMU-01-A03 Page 3of6 Date



DocuSign Envelope ID: 8B6898F7-0EF0-4CC4-B4FF-B879FE515DD9

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community-Based Voluntary Services

EXHIBIT C, Amendment #3

6.6.5. SFY 2024: $90,521 ^

6.6.6. SFY 2025: $90,521

6.6.7. SFY 2026: $90,521

6.7.The Contractor shall request bonus payments under the following
processes:

6.7.1. Percent (%) of families who receive a face-to-face within three (3)
days of referral.

.6.7.1.1. The Contractor shall enter data into a standard

spreadsheet to calculcate the bonus amount being
requested.

6.7.1.2. The Contractor shall submit the spreadsheet to identified
Department stafffor review and approval on a consistent
basis.

6.7.1.3. The Contractor shall request payment on a standard
form in an amount equal to that which was calculated on
the spreadsheet.

6.7.1.3.1. The form shall be agreed upon by the
•  Department and the Contractor.

6.7.2. Percent (%) of families who do not have a case opened within six
(6) months of referral date:

6.7.2.1. The Department shall provide to the Contractor, on a
monthly basis, a list of clients who have had a case
opened with DCYF.

6.7.2.2. Using the information from this list, the Contractor shall
request payment on a standard form agreed upon by the
Department and the Contractor.

6.8. The Department reserves the right to delay the monthly payout of bonuses
upon providing prior written notice to the Contractor that includes the
rationale for the delay, which may include, but is not limited to:

6.8.1. Staff availability.

6.8.2. IT updates.

6.8.3. Finance system maintenance.

6.9. The Department reserves the right to conduct audits of the Contractors
bonus payment reporting and allocations.

7. Qperatino Costs

ut
Waypoint Exhibit C Contractor Initials

5/7/2024
RFP-2021-DCYF-03-COMMU-01-A03 Page4of6 > Date



DocuSign Envelope ID: 8B6898F7-0EF0-4CC4-B4FF-B879FE515DD9

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community-Based Voluntary Services

EXHIBIT C, Amendment #3

7.1. Payment for costs incurred in excess of payment for the daily rate specified
in Section 5 above, necessary for operating services in Exhibit B, Scope
of Services; Section 2, Statement of Work; Phase 1: Referral and

Engagement, Family Stabilization, Service Planning shall be on a cost
reimbursement basis for actual expenditures, in accordance with the
approved line items specifed in Exhibit C-1, Amendment #1, Budget Sheet
(SFY 2022): and shall not exceed the amount of $979,675.99.

7.2.The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the
Department by the twenty-fifth (25th) working day of the following month,

which identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses
incurred in the prior month. The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is
completed, dated and returned to the Department in order to initiate
payment.

8. The Contractor shall submit an. invoice with supporting documentation to the
Department no later than the fifteenth (15th) working day of the month following
the month in which the services were provided. The Contractor shall ensure
each invoice:

8.1. Includes the Contractor's Vendor Number issued upon registering with
New Hampshire Department of Administrative Services.

8.2.1s submitted in a form that is provided by or otherwise acceptable to the
Department.

8.3. Identifies and requests payment for allowable costs incurred in the previous
month.

8.4. Includes supporting documentation of allowable costs with each invoice
that may include, but are not limited to, time sheets, payroll records,
-receipts for purchases, and proof of expenditures, as applicable.

8.5.1s completed, dated and returned to the Department with the supporting
documentation for allowable expenses to initiate payment.

8.6.1s assigned an electronic signature, includes supporting documentation,
and is emailed to pCYFInvoices@dhhs.nh.gov or mailed to:

Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

9. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit B, Scope of Services, in
compliance with funding requirements.

10. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in
whole or in part in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions
of Exhibit B, Scope of Services. '

.  ut
Waypoint Exhibit C Contractor Initials^

.  5/7/2024
RFP-2021-DCYF-03-COMMU-01-A03 Page 5 of 6 Date _____



DocuSign Envelope ID; 8B6898F7-0EF0-4CC4-B4FF-B879FE515DD9

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community-Based Voluntary Services

EXHIBIT C, Amendment #3

11. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the. Contractor agrees that
funding under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event
of non-compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable
to the services provided, or if the said services or products have not been
satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
agreement.

12. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified.

13. Audits (

13.1. The Contractor is required to submit an annual audit to the Department
if any of the following conditions exist:

13.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

13.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to,audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH .RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

13.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit.

13.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the
Department within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal
year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part
200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

13.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of tlie Contractor's fiscal year.

13.4. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Contract, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.

C—DS
wr

Waypoint Exhibit C , Contractor Initials

RFP-2021-DCYF-03-COMMU-01-A03 Page 6 Of 6 Date
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Sectary of State of the State of New Hampshire,-do hereby cerliiy that WAYPOINT is a New

Hampshire Norq)rofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on Septemlw 25, 1914.1 further certify that

all fe^ ̂  documents requir^ by the SecreUuy of State's office have be^ received and is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned

Business ID: 62585

Certificate Number; 'o6d63638M

Urn

O

<5^

5^

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I b^eto set my hand and cause'to be'^xed

the Seal of tlie State of New Hampshire,

Jthis 28tb day of December A.D. 2023.•

^'DaTHd M. Scanlan

Secretafy of State'
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m

WAYPOINT
Help Along the Way

fbJ n'»Wy
CHILD AND FAMILY SERVICES

CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

I. MARK C. ROUVALIS, Board Chair, do hereby certify that:

1. I am a duly elected Officer of WAYPOINT.

2. The following are true copies of two resolutions duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors
of the Agency duty held on 12/4/18:

RESOLVED: that this corporation enters into a contract witti the State of New Hampshire, and any of its
Agendas or Departments.

RESOLVED: Ttnat tfie PRESIDENT AND CEO is hereby authorized on t>ehatf of this Agency to enter into
the said contract with the State and to execute any and all documents, agreements and other
instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary,
desirable or appropriate.

BOfUA ALVAREZ DE TOLEDO is the duly elected PRESIDENT/CEO of the Agency'.

3. i hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect
as of the date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority
remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority, i further certify that It is
understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s)
listed above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the
corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the
corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Date / ' Mark C. Rouvalis
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATEOMfDOnrrYY)

12/21/2023

THIS CERTIHCATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERT1RCATE HOLDER THIS

CERT1RCATE DOES NOT AFRRMATTVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIRCATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTTTUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIRCATE HOLDER

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder b an ADDfTlONAL INSUf^D, the policy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or tw ertdorsed
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
thb certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PnOOUCER

Cross Insurance-Manchester

liWEbn Street

Manchester NH 03101

Stepharre PeSer

(603)663^18 (603)6454331

manch.certsClciDSsagency.com

MSURERtS) AFFORDOiC COVERAGE NAICS'

18058

OtSURED

Waypcint

PoBox448

Manchester NH 03105

Grarste state Health Care and Human Services Sett

Msurer C:' ^ ^ ̂ 31194

MSURERO:

MSURERE:

MSURBtF:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY TKATTHE POUOES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELCW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POUCY PETOOO

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMStT. TERM Oft CONDITION OF ANY COfmACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT VSmi RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY 8E ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLIOES KSCRIBED HERBN IS SUBJECT TO Aa THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONOmONS OF SUCH POLICIES. UMUS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN RBXXfD BY RAID CLAIMS.

w TYPEOFBtSURANCE POLICY NUMBER IMTTS 1

A

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABHJTY' /

-PHPIOSTOBia 07/01/2023 07^1/2024

EACH OCCURRENCE , 1,000,000

CLAMSMAOE. x| OCCUR'
LUAUGL IDiU/ILU
PRFMRFS tea oecunm)

, 100,000

MED EXP (Arw one peram) S 5,000

PERSONAL « ACN MJURY , 1,000,000

GENLAGGREGATE LaOTAPPUES P6L (»CRALAGGREGATE ^ 3,000,000

X POLICY 1 1 ̂  1 1 LOC
Professional Liability

PRODUCTS - COMPIOPAbo , 3,000,000

X Each incident SIM 8 3.000,000-agg

A

1 AUTOMOBLEUABOJIY

PHPK257d610 07/01/2023 07/01/2024

COMBINED SMGLEUUrr
lEasccMenn

8 1,000,000

X1 ANYAUTO
HEDULED
rros ■
VFOWNED
rros ONLY

BCCLY MJURY (Par person) 8

CMNED
AUTOS ONLY
HRED .
AUTOS CM.Y

sc
AL

BCOLY IHnjRY (Per acddenl) 8

NC
AL

PROPfcRTV UAMAOE
(Perxcktot) ' ~

8

8

A

X (ABRELLAUAB

EXCESSUAB
>< OCdjR

CLABi&MAOE
mUB869Si57 07/01/^

EACH OCCUrVtENCE
, 4,000,000

07/01/2023 AOOREGATE 1 4,000,000

1 D^ 1 Xl RETENTlibN 8 10.000 8

B j

WORKERS COMPENSATICN
AND EMPLOYERS'UABLfTY ' 1
ANY PROPRETORffWnCRCJCCunvE rrn'
OFFICERMEMBER EXaUDEO? :
(Mandatcvy In NI4 ''
lyes-deiofca untt
OEKRIPTVM OF 0PERATXM3 Utow

NIA HCHS2a240p0057e (3a.) NH 0101/2024 01A1/2025

ftK • OIH-
^ STATUTE FR '

E.L EACH ACCIDENT , 1,000,000

EL DISEASE • EA EkVLOYEE
, 1,000.000

EL DISEASE • PCiiCY LMTT I 1,000,000 '

C

i

Rddity^ Forgery'
"iokuTob" MAi/2021 ;

i
1

04/01/^24

Limit

Dedudible

<^,000

isod

DESCRIPTION OF OFERATXMS/LOCATKMS/VEHICLES (ACORD 101. AddMonalRsniartsSclvdule, may MRUChMlV men tpMt to raquirad}

Refer lb poBcy lor exclusionaiy endorsements and special provisions. ^

NH Departm^ of H^th.& Hunim Services Buri^ of Coritrads' &

Prooaemi^

l29,Pleas^,Stfied

Cohttxd NH 03301

1  ■

. SHOULD 7U(Y OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCFI1 FR BEFORE
■THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE VyiTH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZEO REPRESENTATIVE

'ACORD 2f(201^)
©1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORO name snd logo ere registered marks of ACORD
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WAYPOINT
Help Alotig the Way

rormtrfy

CHILD AND FAMILY SERVICES'

MtSSION STATEMENT:

Empowering people of all ages through an array of human services and advocacy

ii.
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WAYPOINT
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Melanson

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Trustees ,

Waypoint

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Waypoint, which comprise the

consolidated statement of financial position as of December 31, 2022, and the related

consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then

ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of Waypoint as of December 31, 2022, and the
changes In its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended In accordance with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with audltTng-stan'ciards generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in

Government Auditing Standards Issued^by the^eomptroller General of the United States. Our
responsibilities under those standards/are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent
of Waypoint and to meet our othir ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant
ethical requirements relating to oyjr aud^it. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provideia basjs for our audit opinion.

/  ' ^
Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management Is responsible for thej preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial^statements In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America, and for the'^design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and^fair pr^esentation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatementj whether due to fraud or error.

\ \ -xIn preparing the consolidated financial statements,^management is required to evaluate whether /
there are conditions or events, consideredun the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about./ /

V  ' V y /

/

\

Merrimack, New Hampshire

Andover, Massachusetts

Greenfield, Massachusetts

Ellsworth, Maine 800.282T2440 I melansoncpas.com
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1) Melanson
Waypoint's ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the date that the

consolidated financial statements are issued.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements ^
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and

to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and, therefore, is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is. higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are

considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they
would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the consolidated financial

statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain^profelSio^Lskepticism^roughout the
audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of materi^misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to frau^ or error, and design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks. Such^protedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence
regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

•  Obtain an understandingyDf inte^rnal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on theieffectiveness of Waypoint's internal control. Accordingly,
no such opinion is expjessed.7 /

•  Evaluate the appropriatene'p of^'accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accountingjestimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

\  I i ^
•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the

aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Waypoint's ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable.period of time. /

\ \ \ \ //
We are required to communicate v^.th those charged with governance regarding, among other' ̂
matters, the planned scope and timing of the aud[t, significant audit findings, and certain internal ■/
control-related matters that we identified during the.audit>. /

•

800.282.2440 I melansoncpas.com
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Melanson

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Waypolnt's 2021 consolidated financial statements, and we

expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited consolidated financial statements in our

report dated April 12, 2022. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented

herein as of and for the year ended December 31, 202i is consistent, in ail material respects, with
the audited consolidated financial statements from which it has been derived.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial

statements as a whole. The Consolidated Schedules of Operating Expenses for 2022 and 2021 are

presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the consolidated

financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from

and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the

consolidated financial statements. The Information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional

procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying

accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the

consolidated financial statements themselves, and other.^additional"pf!b;cedur.es in accordance

with auditing standards generally accepted in the^United States of America.TrToLir'opinion, the
information is fairly stated in all material /espects^in relation to the consolidated financial
statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government^uditi^g Standards, we have also issued our report dated
May 10,2023 on our consideratjon of Waypolnt's internal control over financial reporting and on
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant

agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our

testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinionjon the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting or
on compliance. That report jis an jintegral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standa/ds in considering Waypolnt's internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

Merrimack, New Hampshire

May 10, 2023

\

\

/ ,

j \

.//
//
i !

//
/

y

800.282.2440 I melansoncpas.com
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WAYPOINT.

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2022

(with comparative totals as of December 31, 2021)

2022

Assets

Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents j
Restricted cash

Accounts receivable, net

Grants receivable

Prepaid expenses

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:

Investments

Beneficial interest held in trusts

' Property and equipment, net

Operating right-of-use asset, net

Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets

Without Donor

Restrictions

712,445

76,756

801,732

1,274,880

587,001

3,452,814

14,896,850

10,105,143

334,034

25,336,027

With Donor

Restrictions

3,671,919

2,020,741

5,692,660

2022

Total

712.445

76,756

801,732

1,274,880

587,001

3,452,814

18,568,769

.2,020,741

10,105,143

334.034

31,028,687

2021

Total

$  28,788,841 $ 5.692,660 $ 34,481,501

1,337,022

74,103

650.657

639,234

311.664

3,012,680

23,526,432

2,202,347

6,677,229

32,406,008

$  35,418,688

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll and related liabilities

Other liabilities

Current portion of bonds payable

Current portion of operating lease liability

Refundable advances

Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities:

~  Bonds payable, net of current portion

Operating lease liability, net of current portion

Deferred loans - NHHFA

Interest rate swap agreements

Total Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities

246,312

891,489

205,887

175,000

175,381

443,742

2,137,811

3,355,167

.  160,212

1,250,000

399,935

5,165,314

7,303,125

246,312

891,489

205,887

175,000

175,381

443742

2,137,811

3,355,167

160,212

1,250,000

399,935

5,165,314

7,303,125

290,378

598,828

63,699

165,000

660,937

1,778,842

3,590,000

1,250,000

993,557

5,833,557

7,612,399

Net Assets:

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total Net Assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

21,485,716

21,485,716

28,788,841

5,692,660

$  5,692,660

21,485,716

5,692,660

27,178,376

S  34,^1,501

20,919,645

6,886,644

27,806,289

$  35,418,688

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these financial statements.

4
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WAYPOINT

Consolidated Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

(with summarized comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 2021)

2022

Without Donor With Donor 2022 2021

Restrictions Restrictions Total Total'

Support and Revenue

Support:

Government grants $  9,800,690 • S $  9,800,690 $  8,916,060
Contributions 740,809 2,100,152 2,840,961 2,159,537

in-kind contributions 48,536 . 48,536 33,700

Special events:

Gross revenue 224,603 392,352 616,955 443,686

Less cost of direct benefit to donors (153,690) . (153,690) . (56,246)

Net special events reveriue 70,913 392,352 463,265 387,440

Revenue:

Sen/ice fees 6,200,380 • 6,200,380 5,511,187
Other income .  40,684 • 40,684 21,655

Net Assets Released From Restrictions:

Program releases 2,966,121 (2,966,121) . .

Endowment releases 89,703 (89,703) . -

Endowment Transfer to Support Operations 842,559 . 842,559 643,173

Total Support and Revenue 20,800,395 (563,320) 20,237,075 17,672,752

'Operating Expenses

Program senrices 15,261,737 • 15,261,737 13,488,186

Management and general 2,816,820 - 2,816,820 2,533,833
Fundraistng ^ 795,129 - 795,129 647,250

Total Operating Expenses 18;873,686 . 18,873,686 16,669,269

Change in Net Assets From Operations 1,926,709 (563,320) " 1,363,389 1,003,483

Nonoperating Activities

Investment income (loss), net (3,647.593) (449,057) (4,096.650) 2,881,542

Unrealized gain (loss) on interest rate swap 593,622 - 593.622 289,196

Gain on the sale of asset 241,592 . 241,592 -

Change in beneficial interest • (413,854) (413,854) 214,476

Interest income 4,744 - 4,744 1,249

Endowment transfer to support operations (842,559) - (842,559) (643,173)
Transfer of assets from Richie McFarland

Children's Center (Note 21) 2,289,556 232,247 2,521,803 .

Total Nonoperating Activities (1,360,638) (630,664) (1,991,302) 2,743,290

Change in Net Assets 566,071 (1,193,984) (627,913) 3,746,773

Net Assets, Beginning of Year 20,919,645 6,886,644 27,806,289 24,059,516

Net Assets, End of Year S  21,485,716 S  5,692,660 $  27,178,376 S  27,806,289

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

5
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WAYPOINT

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

(with summarized comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 2021)

2022

Program Management 2022 2021

Services and General Fundraislna Total Total

Personnel expense: .
Salaries and wages S  8,769,046 S  1,441,503 S  508,864 S  10,719,413 S  9,650,270
Employee benefits 1,324,206 156,284 44,810 1,525,300 1,270,901
Retirement plan 92.034 20,467 8,898 121,399 101,614
Payroll taxes and other 874,069 112,764 39,253 1,026,086 885,256
Mileage reimbursement 360,146 9,703 1,747 371,596 236,673
Contracted sendees 648,S79 370,654 160,215 1,179,448 1,309,317

Subtotal personnel expense 12,068,080 2,111,375 763,787 14,943,242 13,454,031

Accounting 75 51,055 ' 51,130 35,380
Assistance to ir>dividuals 1,100,071 717 50,017 1,150,805 901,544
Communications 184,344 32,935 12,811 230,090 212,681
Conferences, conventions, meetings 132,818 49,868 2,628 185,314 100,827
Depreciation 320,715 170,620 8,600 499,935 458,709
Insurance 79,551 15,794 2,532 97,877 64,578
Interest 222,898 22,106 6,388 251,392 233,409
Legal 2,044 16,617 - 18,661 12,543
Membership dues 28,105 26,169 2,437 56,711 60,902
Miscellaneous 38,075 34,413 8,675 81,163 60,596
Occupancy 732,997 54,952 11,895 799,844 667,827
Printing and publications 29,688 29,232 67,493 126,413 .  70,853
Rental and equipment maintertance 157,766 174,987 8,806 341,559 247,684
Supplies 143,892 12,963 2,740 159,595 123,453
Travel 20,618 13,017 10 33,645 20,498

Total Expenses By Function 15,261,737 2,816,820 948,819 19,027,376 16,725,515

Less expenses included on the Statement of Activities:

Cost of direct benefits to donors - - (153,6901 (153.690) (56.246)

Total Expenses Reported on the Statement of Activities S  15,261,737 S  2,816,820 S  795,129 S  18,873,686 $  16,669,269

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

&
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WAYPOINT

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

(with comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 2021)

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Change in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets

to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation

Disposals of fixed assets

Amortization of operating right-of-use assets

Contributions restricted for endowment

Realized (gain) ioss on investments

Unrealized (gain) loss on investments

Change in beneficial interest in trusts

Change in interest rate swap

RMCC fixed assets and beneficial interest (Note 21)

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable

Grants receivable

. Prepaid expenses

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll and related liabilities

Other liabilities

Refundable advances

Operating lease liability

Net Cash Provided (Used) By Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities

Purchases of investments

Proceeds from sale of investments

Purchase of fixed assets

Net Cash Used By Investing Activities

Cash Flows From Financing Activities

Contributions restricted for endowment

Proceeds from line of credit

Principal payments on line of credit

Payment of long-term debt

Net Cash Used By Financing Activities

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash

Cash and Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash, Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash, End of Year

Supplmental Disclosure of Cash Flow Infonriation:

Cash paid during the year for interest

Supplemental Disclosure of Non-cash Investing Activity:

RMCC fixed assets and beneficial interest (Note 21)

As reported in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position,

cash balance consists of:

Cash and cash equivalents

Restricted cash

Total cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash

2022

S  (627,913)

499,935

242,906

173,740

(71,249)

(171,631)

4,768,167

413,854

(593,622)

(1,332,247)

(151,075)

(635,646)

(275,337)

- (44,066)

292,661

142,188

(217,195)

(172,182)

2,241,288

(571,135)

932,262

(3,070,755)

(2,709,628)

71,249

(224,833)

(153,584)

(621,924)

1.411,125

789,201

251,392

1,332,247

712,445

76,756

2021

$  3,746,773

458,709

1,889

(1,462,149)

(1,028,032)

(214,476)

(289,196)

(295,049)

205,925

(134.246)

(30,492)

60,092 .

(1,200)

(1,868,372)

(849,824)

(401,514)

697,285

(700.247)

(404,476)

4,841,239

(4,841,239)

(160,000)

(160,000)

(1,414,300)

2,825,425

1,411,125 .

233,409

$ 789,201

1,337,022

74,103

1,411,125

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

7
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WAYPOINT

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

1. Organization

Waypoint (the Organization) is a nonprofit organization, founded in 1850, that currently aids
more than 6,800 individuals, statewide, through an array of social services.

These services span the life cycle from prenatal to seniors, andean be grouped into the following
categories:

Family Support

Nearly 2,700 individuals received assistance.through the Early Childhood and Family Support

programs. Parents received education and support to improve parenting, strengthen families,

prevent child abuse and neglect, and ensure healthy development of children. Young children

starting life at a disadvantage received critical services to ensure a good beginning and to

optimize their chance for life-long success. Some of the programs focused on early childhood

include:

Early Support and Services

The Early Support and Services program provides family-centered support and therapies to

infants and toddlers who have developmental disabilities, delays, or are at risk of

developmental delays; Services work to optimize babies' cognitive, physical, emotional and

social development, and chance for success. Services are provided in the child's natural

environment (home, day care, playground, etc.).

Home Visiting Services

Anumber of different prevention programs are offered in the home during those critical early

years of a child's life.- A spectrum of services includes'support to new mothers and those

struggling to parent; services for children with chronic health conditions; prenatal services

for babies being born at a disadvantage into low-income farnilies; and programs to encourage

positive early parent/child relationships and promote optimal early childhood development.
Services are provided by nurses, social workers, developmental specialists, occupational

therapists, health educators, and home visitors.

•Partners in Health

Family Support Coordinators provide a variety of services to families who have a child with a

chronic health condition. Services include identifying needs and helping access available

resources, working with schools, insurance companies and health care providers and creating

social and recreational opportunities with other families that share similar concerns.
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The Children's Place and Parent Education Center

The Children's Place and Parent Education Center (TCP) In Concord, NH provides both
educational and social programs and services to strengthen and enrich the lives of families
with children, two months through six years old.

Family Preservation

The Organization contracts with the State of New Hampshire, the federal government, and
insurance companies, to provide a continuum of services for children, adolescents, and young
adults. Programs are delivered to 3,000 individuals in the home, schools, or community, and
include mental health counseling and substance abuse treatment, as well as a complex
system of family stabilization and preservation programs, child protection services, and

services for at-risk youth. Some of the programs include:

Foster Care ■

the Organization works with the State of New Hampshire in placing children who have been
rescued from dangerous home environments, into safe, stable, loving homes. The Organization
recruits and supports foster families and works to facilitate permanency for each child.

Home Based Services

The Organization has a number of programs provided in the family home that are designed to
help families who are struggling through daily life - where children are at risk. Services work
to thwart domestic violence, rebuild families, and to improve family functioning. The
Organization empowers families with the skills and resources they need to provide for their
children and become self-sufficient.

Community Based Voluntary Services
The Organization works with families at risk to. equip them with the skills and tools to
overcome life challenges and prevent the need for state involvement. The program partners
with families to recognize their strengths and find solutions to everyday problems by
removing barriers, tailoring services to their needs, and enhancing access to resources and
connections.

Runaway and Homeless Youth Services

The Organization is the sole provider of services for runaway and homeless youth In
Manchester and the Seacoast. In 2022, over 700 individuals were served. A full spectrum of
services features outreach to at-risk youth that includes survival aid on the streets and basic
needs fulfillment at the drop-in center, as well as crisis intervention, educational and
vocational advocacy, housing, and case management. The Organization operates the only
shelter specifically for adults aged 18-24 who are experiencing or are at-risk of homelessness.
The Organization also provides behavioral health and substance use counseling where needed.
The Organization works with school systems, police, and other agencies in addressing the
needs of New Hampshire's homeless youth,
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Home Care ,

The Organization helps 460 seniors and Individuals with chronic illness or disability to live at
home safely and with dignity, and to maintain quality of life. Services are delivered by
homemakers, companions, personal care service providers, and LNAs. The Organization's
caregivers go to client homes to help with everything from cooking and cleaning to personal
hygiene, medication reminders, mobility, travel to appointments, paying bills, help with daily
tasks, and communication with family members.

>

Other Programs

The New Hampshire Children's Lobby
Established in 1971, the New Hampshire Children's Lobby is the advocacy wing of Waypoint.
The program's mission is to improve the lives of children and families through legislative,
judicial, and public policy initiatives. This combination of advocacy and direct service practice
uniquely positions the Organization to serve the best interest of New Hampshire children.

Resources for Families Affected by Incarceration
A variety of programs and services are available that support the needs of incarcerated
parents, their children, and the parents/caregivers of the child during the period of
incarceration. This program is a partnership between Waypoint, New Hampshire Family
Resource Centers, Family Connections Center-NHDOC and New Hampshire Jails.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The follovying is a summary of significant accounting policies used in preparing and presenting
the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Basis of Financial Statement Presentation i

The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared on the accrual
basis of accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United

^  Statesof America (GAAR).

Change in Accounting Principle

ASU 2016-02, Leases

Effective January 1, 2022, the Organization adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 842, Leases. The Organization determines if
an arrangement contains a lease at inception based on whether the Organization has the
right to control the asset during the contract period and other facts and circumstances. The
Organization elected the package of practical expedients permitted under the transition
■guidance within the new standard, which among other things, allowed it to carry forward the
historical lease classification. The Organization elected the short-term lease recognition
exemption for all leases that qualify. Consequently, for those leases that qualify, the
Organization will-not recognize right-of-use assets or lease liabilities on the Statement of
Financial Position. The Organization generally does not have access to the rate implicit in the
lease and, therefore, the Organization utilizes a risk-free rate as the discount rate.

10
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The adoption of ASC 842 resulted in the recognition of right-to-use assets of $507,774 and
operating lease liabilities of $507,774 as of January 1, 2022. Results for periods beginning
prior to January 1, 2022 continue to be reported in accordance with the Organization's

historical accounting treatment. The adoption of ASC 842 did not have a material impact on
the Organization's results of operations and cash flows.

See Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Leases, for further discussion of the effects

of adopting ASC 842 on the Organization's significant accounting policies.

I

ASU 2020-07, Contributed Nonfinanciai Assets

In 2022, the Organization retrospectively adopted Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2020-

07, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958): Presentation and Disciosures by Not-for-Profit Entities
for Contributed Nonfinanciai Assets. The new guidance requires nonprofit entities to present
contributed nonfinanciai assets as a separate line item in the Statement of Activities, apart
from contributions of cash or other financial assets. The standard also increases the

disclosure requirements around contributed nonfinanciai assets, including disaggregating by
category the types of contributed nonfinanciai assets a nonprofit entity has received.
Adoption of this standard did not have a significant impact on the financial statements, with

the exception of increased disclosure.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include Waypoint and Child and Family Realty
Corporation, commonly controlled organizations. All ihter-organization transactions have
been eliminated. Unless otherwise noted, these consolidated entities are hereinafter

referred.to as "the Organization".

Comparative Financial Information

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include certain prior-year summarized
comparative information In total, but not by net asset class. Such information'does not include

sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with GAAP Accordingly, such
information should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements

for the year ended December 31, 2021, from which the summarized information was derived.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

All cash and highly liquid financial instruments with original maturities of three months or

less, and which are neither held for nor restricted by donors for long-term purposes, are
considered to be cash and cash equivalents. Cash and highly liquid financial instruments
invested for long-term purposes, including endowments that are perpetual in nature, are
excluded from this definition.

11
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Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consists primarily of noninterest-bearing amounts due for services and
programs. The allowance for uncollectable accounts receivable Is based on historical
experience, an assessment of economic conditions, and a review of subsequent collections.
Accounts receivable are written off when deemed uncollectable.

Grants Receivable

Grants receivable, that is, those with a measurable performance or other barrier, and a right
of return, are not recognized until the conditions on which they depend have been
substantially met. Amounts recorded as grants receivable represent cost-reimbursable
contracts and grants, which the incurrence of allowable qualifying expenses and/or the
performance of certain requirements have been met or performed. The allowance for
uncollectible grants receivable is based on historical experience and a review of subsequent
collections. Management has determined that no allowance is necessary.

• Investments

Investment purchases are recorded at cost, or if donated, at fair value on the date of
donation. Thereafter, investments are reported at their fair values in the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position. Net investment return/{loss) is reported In the Consolidated
Statement of Activities and consists of interest and dividend income, realized and unrealized
gains and losses, less external investment expenses.

The Organization maintains pooled investment accounts for Its endowment. Realized and
unrealized gains and losses are allocated to the individual endowments based on the
relationship of the market value of each endowment to the total market value of the pooled
investment accounts, as adjusted for additions to or deductions from those accounts, and
taking into consideration donor restrictions related to the treatment of investment earnings.

Beneficial Interest Held in Trusts

The Organization is the beneficiary of perpetual charitable trusts. The beneficial interest in
trusts is reported at its fair value, which is estimated as the fair value of the underlying trust
assets. Distributions of income from trust assets are restricted as to use and are reported as
increases in net assets with donor restrictions until expended in accordance with restrictions.
The value of the beneficial interest in the trusts is adjusted annually for the change in its
estimated fair value. Those changes in value are reported as increases in net assets with
donor restrictions. The assets in the trusts will never be distributed to the Organization.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment additions over $5,000 are recorded at cost, if purchased, and at fair
value at the date of donation. If donated. Depreciation Is computed using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the assets ranging from 5 to 50 years. When assets
are sold or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related depreciation is removed, and any
resulting gain or loss is included in the Consolidated Statement of Activities. Costs of

12
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maintenance and repairs that do not improve or extend the useful lives of the respective

assets are expensed. Assets not In service are not depreciated.

The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable

from the estimated future cash flows expected to result from its use and eventual disposition.
When considered impaired, an impairment loss is recognized to the extent carrying value

exceeds the fair value of the asset. There were no indicators of asset impairment in 2022 or
2021.

Leases

The Organization is a lessee in several noncancellable operating leases, for office space and

equipment. The Organization determines if an arrangement is a lease, or contains a lease, at

inception of a contract and when the terms of an existing contract are changed. The'
Organization recognizes a lease liability and a right-of-use (ROU) asset at the commencement
date of the lease. The lease liability is initially and subsequently recognized based on the
present value of its future lease payrhents. Variable payments are included in the future lease

payments when those variable payments depend on an Index or a rate. The Organization

generally does not have access to the rate implicit In the lease and, therefore, the

Organization utilizes a risk-free rate as the discount rate at the lease commencement date

for all classes of underlying assets. The ROU asset is subsequently measured throughout the

lease term at the amount of the remeasured lease liability (i.e., present value of the remaining
lease payments), plus unamortized initial direct costs, plus (minus) any prepaid (accrued)
lease payments, less the unamortized balance of lease incentives received, and any
Impairment recognized. Lease cost for lease payments is recognized on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

The Organization has elected, for all underlying classes of assets, to not recognize ROU assets

and lease liabilities for short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 rhonths or less at lease

commencement, and do not include an option to purchase the underlying asset that the

Organization is reasonably certain to exercise. The Organization recognizes lease costs

associated with short-term leases on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Organization has lease agreements with lease and non-lease components, which are

generally accounted for separately. The Organization has elected, for all underlying classes of
assets, to account for each separate jease component of a contract and its associated non-
lease components (repairs and maintenance) as a single lease component. For arrangements
accounted for as a single lease component, there may be variability in future lea'se payments
as the amount of the non-lease components is typically revised from one period to the next.

These variable lease payments are recognized in operating expenses in the period in which

the obligation for those payments was incurred.

13
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Interest Rate Swap

An interest rate swap is utilized to mitigate interest rate risk on bonds payable. The related

liability is reported at fair value in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, and

unrealized gains or losses are included in the Consolidated Statement of Activities.

Net Assets

Net assets, revenues, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or absence of

donor or grantor-imposed restrictions. ^

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions

Net assets available for use In general operations and not^subject to donor (or certain grantor)
imposed restrictions. The Board has designated, from net assets without donor restrictions,

net assets for a board-designated endowment.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Net assets subject to donor (or certain grantor) imposed restrictions. Some donor-imposed

restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of time or

other events specified by the donor. Other donor-Imposed, restrictions are perpetual in

nature, where the donor stipulates that resources be maintained in perpetuity while

permitting the Organization'to expend the income generated by the assets in accordance

with the provisions of additional donor-imposed stipulations or a Board approved spending

policy. Donor-imposed restrictions are released when a restriction expires, that is, when the

stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for' which the resource was

restricted has been fulfilled, or both. The Organization recognizes revenue from contributions

and grants that were initially conditional, which became unconditional with restrictions

during the reporting period, and for which those restrictions were met during the reporting

period, as net assets without donor restrictions.

Revenue and Revenue Recognition

A portion of the Organization's revenue is derived from cost-reimbursable contracts and grants,

which are conditioned upon certain performance requirements and/or the incurrence of
allowable qualifying expenses. Amounts received are' recognized as revenue when the
Organization has incurred expenditures in compliance with specific contract or grant provisions.

Amounts received prior to incurring qualifying expenditures are reported as refundable advances

in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.

The Organization recognizes contributions when cash, securities or other assets; an unconditional

promise to give; or a notification of a beneficial interest is received. Conditional promises to give
- that is, those with a measurable performance or other barrier and a right of return - are not

recognized until the conditions on which they depend have been met.

14
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The Organization records special events revenue equal to the fair value of direct benefits to

donors, and contribution income for the excess received when the event takes place.

Revenues derived from providing program services are recognized as-the services are provided.
Program service fees paid in advance are deferred to the period to which they relate. All other
amounts paid in advance are deferred to the period in which the underlying event or rental takes
place. Due to the nature and timing of. the performance and/or transfer of services, certain

contract liabilities at December 31 of each year are recognized in the following year.

Donated Services and In-Kind Contributions

Volunteers contribute significant amounts of time to program services, administration, and

fundraising and development activities; however, the financial statements do not reflect the

value of these contributed services because they do not meet recognition criteria prescribed
by GAAP. GAAP allows recognition of contributed services only if (a) the services create or

enhance nonfinancial assets or (b) the services would have been purchased if not provided
by contribution, require specialized skills, and are provided by individuals possessing those
skills. Donated professional services are recorded at the respective fair values of the services
received. Contributed goods are recorded at fair value at the date of donation and as

expenses when placed In service or distributed. Donated use of facilities is reported as a
contribution and as amexpense at the estimated fair value of similar space for rent under

similar conditions. If the use of the space is promised unconditionally for a period greater
than one year, the amount is reported as a contribution and an unconditional promise to give
at the date of the gift, and the expense is reported over the term of use.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and are reported in the Consolidated Statement
of Activities and Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs-of program and supporting services activities have been summarized on a

functional basis in the Consolidated Statement of Activities. The Consolidated Statement of

Functional Expenses presents the natural classification detail of expenses by function.

The consolidated financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are
attributed to more than one program or supporting function. Therefore, expenses require
allocation on a reasonable basis that is consistently applied. The expenses that are allocated
Include salary and benefits, which are allocated based on time and effort estimates, and
occupancy costs and depreciation which are allocated based on personnel count at the
location.

Measure of Operations

The Consolidated Statement of Activities reports all changes In net assets, including changes
in net assets from operating and nonoperating activities. Operating activities consist of those
Items attributable to the Organization's ongoing programs and services and include the

IS
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Organization's annual endowment transfer to support operations. Nonoperating activities

are limited to resources outside of those programs and services and are comprised of non
recurring gains and losses on sales and dispositions, investment income, and changes in the

value of beneficial interests and interest rate swaps.

Income Taxes ,

Waypoint has.been recognized by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) as exempt from federal
income taxes under Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section SOl(a) as an organization described
in IRC Section 501(c)(3), qualifies for charitable contribution deductions, and has been

determined not to be a private foundation. Child and Family Realty Corporation is exempt

from federal income tax under Section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code as an organization

described in Section S01(c)(25).

Each entity is annually required to file a Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax

(Form 990) with the IRS; In addition, each is subject to income tax on net income that is

derived from business activities that are unrelated to their exempt purpose.

Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires

management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets

and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated

financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the

reporting period. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Financial Instruments and Credit Risk

Deposit concentration risk is managed by placing cash deposits with financial institutions

believed to be creditworthy. At times, amounts on deposit may exceed insured limits. To

date, no losses have been experienced in any of these accounts. Credit risk associated with

receivables is considered to.be limited due to high historical collection rates. Investments are

exposed to various risks such as interest rate, market, and credit risks. Due to the level of risk

associated with certain investment securities, it is at least reasonably possible that changes

in the values of investment securities will occur in the near term and that such change could

materially affect the amounts reported in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.

Although the fair values of investments are subject to fluctuation on a year-to-year basis, the

Investment Committee believes that the investment policies and guidelines are prudent for

the long-term welfare of the Organization.

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures

Certain assets and liabilities are reported at fair value in the consolidated financial

statements. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer

a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal, or most advantageous, market at the

measurement date under current market conditions regardless of whether that price is

directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. Inputs used to determine

fair value refer broadly to the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the
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asset or liability, including assumptions about risk. Inputs may be observable or unobservable.
Observable inputs are inputs that reflect the assumptions market participants would use In
pricing the asset or liability based on market data obtained from sources independent of the
reporting entity. Unobservable inputs are Inputs that reflect the reporting entity's own

assumptions about the assumptions market participants would use In pricing the asset or
liability based on the best information available. A three-tier hierarchy categorizes the inputs
as follows:

•  Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

that are accessible at the measurement date.

•  Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for

the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. These Include quoted prices for similar
assets or liabilities In active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or

liabilities in markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are
observable for the asset or liability, and market-corroborated Inputs.

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. In these situations, inputs are
developed using the best information available in the circumstances.

In some cases, the Inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability might be
categorized within different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In those cases, the fair value
measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the
lowest level Input that is significant to the entire measurement. Assessing the significance of
a particular Input to entire measurement requires judgment, taking into account factors
specific to the asset or liability. The categorization of an asset or liability within the hierarchy
is based upon the pricing transparency of the asset or liability and does not necessarily
correspond to the assessment of the quality, risk, or liquidity profile of the asset or liability..

New Accounting Standards to be Adopted in the Future

Credit Losses

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial
instruments. The ASU requires a financial asset (including trade receivables) measured at
amortized cost basis to be presented at the net amount expected to be collected. Thus, the
Statement of Activities will reflect the measurement of credit losses for newly recognized
financial assets as well as the expected increases or decreases of expected credit losses that
have taken place during the period. This ASU will be effective for the Organization for the
year ending December 31, 2023. The Organization is currently In the process of evaluating
the Impact of adoption of this ASU on the consolidated financial statements.
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3. Liquidity and Availability

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions

limiting their use, within one year of the date of the Consolidated Statement of Financial

Position, were comprised of the following at December 31, 2022 and 2021:

2022 2021

Financial assets at year end:

Cash and cash equivalents

Restricted cash

Accounts receivable, net

Grants receivable

Investments

Beneficial interest held in trusts

Total financial assets

712,445 $ 1,337,022

76,756

801,732

1,274,880

18,568,769

2,020,741

23,455,323

74,103

. 650,657

639,234

23,526,432

2,202,347

28,429,795

Less amounts not available to be used within one year:

Restricted cash not available for general expenditure 76,756

Net assets with donor restrictions 5,692,660

Less:

Net assets with purpose restrictions to be met in

less than a year (1,133,668)

Donor-restricted endowment subject to spending

policy rate and appropriation (73,998)

74,103 ^

6,886,644

(1,678,535)

(120,230)

Board-designated endowment

Less:

Board-designated endowment annual spending

policy rate and appropriation

Total amounts not available to be used within one year

Financial assets available to meet general expenditures

over the next year

14,896,850

(868,594)

18,590,006

18,842,135

(541,770)

23,462,347

$  4,865,317 $ 4,967,448

Endowment funds consist of'donor-restricted endowments and funds designated by the
Board to function as endowments. Income from donor-restricted endowments is restricted

for specific purposes. The portion of endowment funds that are perpetual in nature are not

available for general expenditure.

The board-designated endowment is subject to an annual spending rate as determined by
the Board. Although there is no intention to spend from the board-designated endowment
(other than amounts appropriated for general expenditure as part of the Board's annual
budget approval and appropriation), these amounts could be made available if necessary.
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As part of its liquidity management plan, the Organization also has a $1,500,000 revolving
line of credit available to meet cash flow needs.

4. Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consisted of the following at December 31, 2022 and 2021:

2022 2021

Receivable Allowance Net Receivable Allowance Net

Fees for service $ 802,032 $ (300) $ 801,732 $ 650,957 $ {300) $ 650,657

Total $ 802,032 $ (300) $ 801,732 $ 650,957. $ (300) $ 650,657

5. Prepaid Expenseis
t

Prepaid expenses at year-end relate primarily to prepaid insurance and contracts.

6. Investments

Investments measured at fair value on a recurring basis consisted of mutual funds totaling

$18,568,769 and $23,526,432 at December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. During 2022 and

2021, the Organization recognized $(4,596,536) and $2,490,181, respectively, of net gains
and losses on investments. Of those amounts, $(4,596,536) and $2,490,181 was recognized
on investments of equity securities held at December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

f.

Under the terms of the Organization's line of credit agreement (Note 9), the Organization has

agreed not to pledge these investments as security on any other debt.

The Organization's policy is to avail itself of a Board-approved percentage of investment
income for operations with any remaining interest, dividends, or appreciation reinvested. The
spending policy approved by the Board of Trustees is a percentage of the average total
endowment value over the previous twelve quarters, with a 1% contingency margin. In 2022,

the approved rate was 5.00%. In 2021, the approved rate was 4.00% from January through
September and 5.00% thereafter.

/

As discussed in Note 2 to these consolidated financial statements, the Organization is

required to report its fair value measurements in one of three levels, which are based on the
ability to observe in the marketplace the inputs to the Organization's valuation techniques.

Level 1, the most observable level of inputs, is for investments measured at quoted prices in

active markets for identical investments. Level 2 is for investments measured using inputs

such as quoted prices for similar assets, quoted prices for the identical'asset in inactive

markets, and for ihvestments measured at net asset value that can be redeemed in the near
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term. Level 3 is for investments measured using inputs that are unobservable, and is used in

situations for which there is little, if any, market activity for the investment.

The Organization uses the following method to determine the fair value of its investments:

Mutual funds: Level 1 as determined by the published value per unit at the end of the last

trading day of the year, which is the basis for transactions at that date.

7. Beneficial Interest Held in Trusts i

The Organization is the sole beneficiary of four funds that are administered by the New

Hampshire Charitable Foundation (NHCF). Income from the funds is to provide assistance to

children attending camp and for capital improvements to the camp, and to support the Early

'  Supports and Services program based in the Stratham office. The fund's resolutions provide
that distributions from the funds can be made at the discretion of the NHCF Board of

Directors.

At December 31, 2022 and 2021, the fair market value of the funds, which approximates the

present value of future benefits expected to be received, was $1,152,876.and $1,112,493,
respectively.

In addition, the Organization has a split-interest in three charitable remainder trusts. The

assets are held in trust by banks as permanent trustees of the trusts. The fair value of these

beneficial interests is deterrnined by applying the. Organization's percentage interest to the
fair value of the trust assets as reported by the trustee.

1

Percentage

Trust Interest 2022 2021

Greenleaf 100% $ 335,096 $ 415,006

Spaulding 100% 300,889 380,406

Cogswell 50% 231,880 294,442

Total $ 867,865 $ 1,089,854

Beneficial interest held in trusts Is reported at fair value, which is estimated as the present
value of expected future cash inflows on a recurring basis. As discussed in Note 2, the
valuation technique used by the Organization is a Level 3 measure because there are no

observable market transactions.
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8. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment was comprised of the following at December 31, 2022 and 2021:

2022 2021

Land and land improvements $  958,884 $ 943,800

Buildings and improvements 10,995,856 7,376,874

Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 962,064 ' 908,672
Vehicles 68,761 86,019'
Software 503,924 503,924

Construction in progress 15,220 426,668

Assets held for sale (Gamp Spaulding) 2,069,667 2,069,667

Subtotal 15,574,376 12,315,624

Less accumulated depreciation (5,469,233) (5,638,395)

Total $  10,105,143 $ 6,677,229

9. Line of Credit >

The Organization has a $1,500,000 revolving line of credit agreement with a bank, which is
payable on demand. The line is secured by a first lien on accounts receivable, double negative
pledge on all investments of the borrower, and carries a variable rate of interest at the Wall

Street Journal prime rate (7.5% at December 31, 2022), adjusted daily. At December 31, 2022
and 2021, there was no outstanding balance on this line of credit. .

10. Bonds Payable

During 2007, the New Hampshire Health and Education Facilities Authority (the "Authority")
sold $5,540,000 of Its Revenue Bonds, Child and Family Services Issue, Series 2007, and
loaned the proceeds of the bonds to the Organization to refund its Series 1999 Series Bonds
and to finance certain improvements to the Organization's facilities. The Series 2007 Bonds
were issued with a variable interest rate determined on a weekly basis. Prior to issuing the
Bonds, the Organization entered into an interest rate swap agreement (the "Swap
Agreement") with Citizens Bank of NH (the "Counterparty") for the life of the bond issue to
hedge the interest rate risk associated with the Series 2007 Bonds. The interest rate swap
agreement requires the Organization to pay the Counterparty a fixed rate of 3.915%; in

'  exchange, the Counterparty will pay the Organization a variable rate on the notional amount

based on the 67% of one month LIBOR. Counterparty payments to the Organization were
intended to offset Organization payments of variable rate interest to bondholders.

Counterparty credit worthiness and market variability can impact the variable rates received
and paid by the Organization, with the potential of increasing Organization interest
payments. As a result, the cost of the interest rate swap for 2022 and 2021 is added to interest
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expense in the Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses. The bonds mature in 2038

and can be repaid at any time.

The Organization is required to include the fair value of the swap in the. Consolidated

Statement of Financial Position, and annual changes, if any, in the fair value of the swap in

the Consolidated Statement of Activities. For example, during the bond's 30-year holding

period,'th€ annually calculated value of the swap will be reported as an asset if interest rates
increase above those in effect on the date of the swap was entered into (and as an unrealized

gain in the Consolidated Statement of Activities), which will generally be indicative that the

net fixed rate the Organization is paying on the swap Is below market expectations of rates

during the remaining term of the swap. The swap will be reported as a liability (and as an

unrealized loss in the Consolidated Statement of Activities) if Interest rates decrease below

those in effect on the date the swap was entered into, which will generally be indicative that

the net fixed rate the Organization Is paying on the swap is above market expectations of

rates during the remaining term of the swap. The annual accounting adjustments of value

changes in the swap transaction are non-cash recognition requirements, the net effect of

which will be zero at the end of the bond's 30-year term. At December 31, 2022 and 2021,

the Organization recorded the swap liability position of $399,395 and $993,557, respectively.
During 2009, there occurred a downgrading of the credit rating of the Counterparty to the

letter of credit reimbursement agreement, which triggered a mandatory tender of the Series

2007 Bonds in whole and a temporary conversioh of one hundred percent of the principal

amount to a bank purchase mode under the terms of said letter of credit reimbursement

agreement. Since it became evident that the credit markets would not soon return to

normalcy, the Organization elected to convert the Series 2007 Bonds from a weekly rate

mode to a bank purchase mode. This new bank purchase mode created a rate period in which

the Series 2007 Bonds bear interest at the tax adjusted bank purchase rate of 68% of the sum

of the adjusted period LIBOR (30 day) rate and 325 basis points. The bank purchase mode

commenced on July 31, 2009 and expired on July 31, 2014; however, the expiration date was

extended by the Counterparty and the Organization had the option to convert back to the

weekly rate mode. The Series 2007 Bond documents require the Organization to comply with

certain financial covenants. As of December 31, 2022, the Organization was in compliance

with these covenants.
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The following is a summary of future payrhents on the previously mentioned bonds payable:

Year Amount

2023 $ 175,000

2024 180,000

2025 195,000

2026 200,000

2027 205,000

Thereafter 2,575,167

Total $ 3,530,167

11. Leases

The Organization rents property and equipment under non-cancelable operating lease
agreements with monthly payments ranging from $1,430 to $3,229. The leases expire at
various dates through October 2025.

While all agreements provide minimum lease payments, some include payments adjusted for
inflation or variable cornmon area maintenance charges. Variable payments are not

determinable at the lease commencement and are not included in the measurement of lease

assets and liabilities. The lease agreements do not include any material residual value
guarantees or restrictive covenants.

The components of operating lease expense that are included in the Statement of Activities
for the year ended December 31, 2022 were as follows:

Fixed lease cost , " $ 176,300

Variable lease cost 57,396

Short-term lease cost 14,000

Total lease cost $ 247,696
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During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Organization had the following cash and non-
cash activities related to operating leases:

Cash paid for amounts included in the

--measurement of lease liabilities:

Operating cashflows for operating leases $ 176,600

Non-cash investing and financing activities:

Lease assets obtained in exchange

for lease liabilities:

Operating leases $ 507,774

Weighted average lease term and discount rate at December 31, 2022, were as follows:-

Weighted average remaining lease term (years) 2.14

Weighted average discount rate 1.04%

Future payments due under operating leases as of December 31, 2022, were as follows for

the years ending December 31:

2023 S 178,096

2024 115,716

2025 45,900

Total lease payments 339,712 .

Less imputed interest ^ 4,119

Present value of lease liabilities $ 335,593

Rent expense, as previously defined under FASB ASC 840, for all operating leases was

$227,552 for the year ended December 31, 2021.

12. Refundable Advances

Refundable advances totaling $443,742 and $660,937 at December 31, 2022 and 2021,
respectively, primarily include granffunds received in advance from the New Hampshire

Department of Health and Human Services for community-based voluntary services and

American Rescue Plan Act funds. Revenues will be recognized as the conditions of the grants

are met.

24



DocuSign'Envelope ID: 8B6898F7.0EF0-4CC4-B4FF-B879FE515DD9

13. Deferred Loans - NHHFA

.  Deferred loans at December 31, 2022 and 2021 were comprised of the following:

Note payable to the New Hampshire Housing and Finance Authority (NHHFA) dated June 7,
2005. The face amount of the note is $550,000, does not require the payment of interest, and
is due in 30 years. The note is secured by real estate located in Dover, New Hampshire. In line
with the regulatory agreement related to the note payable, the Organization has remitted to
NHHFA funds to establish an operating and replacement reserve. The balance of this.reserve
is reported as restricted cash on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. The
restricted cash balance related to this note as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 totaled
$33,336 and $32,102, respectively.

.  Note payable to the New Hampshire Housing and Finance Authority dated May 22, 2007. The
face amount of the note is $700,000, does not require the payment of interest, and is due in
30 years. The note is secured by real estate located in Manchester, New Hampshire. In line
with the regulatory agreement related to the note payable, the Organization has remitted to
NHHFA funds to establish an operating and replacement reserve. The balance of this reserve
is reported as restricted cash on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. The

restricted cash balance as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 related to this note totaled
$43,420 and $42,001, respectively.

14. Endowment Funds

Types of Funds ^
The Organization's endowment consists of various individual funds established for a variety
of purposes. The endowment includes both donor-restricted funds and funds designated by
the Board of Trustees to function as endowments. As required by GAAP, net assets associated
with endowment funds, including funds designated by the Board of Trustees to function as
endowments, are classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donor-

.  imposed restrictions.

Board-Designated Endowment

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Board of Trustees had designated $14,896,850 and
$18,842,135 respectively, of net assets without donor restrictions as a general endowment
fund to support the mission of the Organization.

Donor-Designated Endowments

The Board of Trustees of the Organization has interpreted the Uniform Prudent Management of
Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA) as requiring the preservation of the fair value of the original
gift as of the gift date for donor-restricted perpetual endowment funds, absent explicit donor
stipulations to the contrary. As a result of this interpretation, the Organization classifies as
perpetually restricted net assets (a) the original value of gifts donated to the endowment.
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(b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the endowment, and (c) accumulations to the

endowment made in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at
the time the accumulation is added. The remaining portion of the donor-restricted

endowment fund that is not classified as perpetually restricted is classified as net assets with

donor restrictions until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure by the Organization

in a manner consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by UPMIFA. In accordance

with UPMIFA, the Organization considers the following factors in making a determination to

appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds: (1) the duration and

preservation of the various funds, (2) the purposes of the donor-restricted endowment funds,

(3) general economic conditions, (4) the possible effect of inflation and deflation, (5) the
expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments, (6) other resources

of the Organization, and (7) the Organization's investment policies. •'

Funds with Deficiencies
/

The Organization considers a fund to be underwater if the fair value of the fund is less than the

sum of (a) the original value of initial and subsequent gift amounts donated to the fund and (b)

any accumulations to the fund that are required to be maintained in perpetuity in accordance

with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument. The Organization complies with

UPMIFA and has interpreted UPMIFA to permit spending from underwater funds in

accordance with prudent measures required under the law. The Organization had no
underwater endowment funds at December 31, 2022 or 2021.

investment Policy

The Organization has adopted an investment and spending policy to ensure a total return
(income plus capital change) necessary to preserve and enhance the principal of the fund

and, at the same time, provide a dependable source of support for current operations and

programs. The withdrawal from the fund in support of current operations is expected to

remain a constant percentage of the total fund, adjusted for new gifts to the fund.

In recognition of the prudence required of fiduciaries, reasonable diversification is sought
where possible. Experience has shown financial markets and inflation rates are cyclical and,
therefore, control of volatility will be achieved through investment styles. Asset allocation

parameters have been developed.for various funds within the structure, based on investment

objectives, liquidity, needs, and time horizon for intended use.

Measurement of investment performance against policy objectives will be computed on a

total return basis, net of management fees and transaction costs. Total return is defined as

dividend or interest income plus realized and unrealized capital appreciation or depreciation

at fair market value.

r
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Spending Policy

The Organization's spending policy rate is a percentage of the average total endowment value
over the trailing 12 quarters with a 1% contingency margin. This includes Interest and

dividends paid out to the Organization. In 2022, the approved rate was 5.00%. In 2021, the

approved rate was 4.00% from January through September and 5.00% thereafter.

Changes in endowment Net Assets

The net asset composition of endowment net assets as of December 31, 2022 and changes in

endowment net assets for the year ended December 31, 2022 were as follows:

With Donor Restrictions

Without Donor

Restrictions

Endowment net assets, beginning of year S 18,842,13S

Contributions

Appropriations from endowment (842,559)

Temporary appropriation for

purpose-restricted net assets 544,867

Investment income, rwt (3,647,593)

Purpose

Restricted

1,678,535

(544,867)

Cumulative

ADoreciation

S  1,327,161 5

(89,703)

(449,057)

Perpetually

Restricted Total

Total

Endowment

Net Assets

1,678,601 S 4,684,297 $ 23,526,432

71,249 71,249

(89,703)

(544,867)

(449,057)

71,249

(932,262)

(4.096,650)

Endowment net assets, end Of year S 14,896,850 5 1,133,668 S 788,401 S 1,749.850 S 3.671.919 5 18.568.769

The net asset composition of endowment net assets as of December 31, 2021 and changes in

endowment net assets for the year ended December 31, 2021 were as follows:

With Donor Restrictions

Without Donor Purpose

Restrictions Restricted

Endowment net assets, beginning of year 5 18,612,885 5

Contributions

Appropriatloru from endowment (643,173)

Temporary appropriation for

purpose-restricted net assets

Investment income, net

(1,678,535)

2,550,958

1,678,535

Cumulative

Appreciation

S  1,050,689

(54,112)

330,584

Perpetually

Restricted

5  1,678,601 S

Total

Endowment

Total Net Assets

2,729,290 5 21,342,175

(54,112)

1,678,535

330.584

(697,285)

2.881.542

Endowment net a$$eu,etxl of year S 18,842,135 S 1,678,535 5 1.327,161 5 1,678,601 5 4,684.297 5 23,526,432

15. Net Assets

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions

Net assets without donor restrictions were comprised of the following at December 31, 2022

and 2021:

Undesignated net assets

Board-designated endowment

Total

2022

$  6,588,866

14,896,850

2021

S  2,077,510

18,842,135

$ 21,485,716 $ 20,919,645
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Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions were comprised of the following at December 31, 2022

and 2021:.

2022 2021

Subject to expenditure'for specified purpose:

Camp S 59,441 $ 88,373
Family preservation 77,825 30,273

Family resource center 236,029 146,872

Homecare 151,410 183,474

Staff training and other projects 12,544 110,841

Teen and youth 581,804 1,091,207

The Children's Place . 14,615 27,495

1,133,668 1,678,535

Accumulated earnings restricted by donors for:

General operations 158,281 252,088

Camp operations 252,769 422,315

Other purposes' 377,351 652,758

788,401 1,327,161

Original gift restricted by donors for:

General operations 136,532 133,407

Camp operations , 548,183 548,183

Other purposes 1,065,135 997,011

1,749,850 1,678,601

Not subject to spending policy or appropriation:

Beneficial interest in trusts 2,020,741 2,202,347

Total $ .5,692,660 $ 6,886,644
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Net assets were released from donor restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the
restricted purpose or by occurrence of the passage of time or other events specified by the
donors as follows for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021:

Satisfaction of purpose restrictions:

Camp

Family preservation

Family resource center

Homecare

Staff training and other projects

Teen and youth

The Children's Place

Restricted purpose spending-rate

distributions and appropriations:

General operations

Other purposes

Total

2022

46,947

233,742

234,362

339,340

150,258

1,918,666

42,806

2,966,121

15,259

74,444

89,703

2021

7,969

37,476

142,366

149,511

44,981

115,589

42,559

540,451

14,100,

40,012

54,112

$  3,055,824 $ 594,563
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16. Contributed Nonfinancial Assets

The Organization received the following contributions of nonfinancial assets for the years
ended December 31; 2022 and 2021:

Revenue Recognized Utilization in

2022 2021 Pfoe rams/Activities

Food S 27,599 $ 22,738 Family Preservation,

Homecare, and Teen &

Youth Services.

Supplies 11,751

Storage 297

Clothing 4,055

9,480 Administration, Family

Preservation, and Teen &

Youth Services.

Teen & Youth Services ,

1,482 Family Preservation, and

Teen & Youth Services.

Toys 777

Services 4;057

Family Preservation

Family Preservation

Total $ 48,536 S 33,700

Valuation Techniques

and Inputs

U.S. retail prices of identical products using
pricing data under a 'like-kind' mediodology

considering the good's conditions and utility
for use at the time of contribution.

U.S. retail prices of identical products using
pricing data under a 'like-kind' methodolc^y

considering the good's conditions and utility
for use at the time of contribution.

Valued at the estimated fair value based on

current rates for similar storage space.

U.S. retail prices of identical products using

pricing data under a 'like-kind' methodology

considering the good's conditions and utility

for use at the time of contribution.

U.S. retail prices of identical products using
pricing data under a 'like-kind' methodology

considering the good's conditions and utility
for use at the time of contribution.

Contributed professional sen/ices are valued

at the estimated fair value based on current

rates for similar services.

There were no associated donor restrictions with the above contributed nonfinancial assets.
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17. Assistance to Individuals

Assistance to indlvlduals'was comprised of the following for the' years ended December 31,
2022 and 2021:

■ 2022 2021

Payment to parents of foster children $  79,831 $  112,950
Housing assistance to youth at risk of homelessness 259,436 242,386

Gift cards provided to families during holiday season 50,000 51,000

Food for at risk youth 36,872 25,914

In kind assistances 48,536 33,700

Other assistance such as medical, childcare.

transportation, and family activities 676,130 435,594

Total $  1,150,805 $  901,544

18. Defined Contribution Plan

The Organization maintains a 403(b) Thrift Plan (the Plan). The Plan is a defined contribution
plan that all eligible employees may immediately make elective participant contributions to
upon hire. A pretax voluntary contribution is permitted by employees up to limits imposed
by the Internal Revenue Code and other limitations specified in the Plan. Contributions made
to the plan by the Organization for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 totaled
$121,399 and $101,614, respectively.

19. Related Party Transactions

The Organization procures a portion of their legal services from a local law firm that employs
an attorney who also serves on the Organization's Board of. Trustees. The attorney board
member does not personally perform the legal services. For the years ended December 31,
2022 and 2021, the total legal expense from related parties was $10,190 and $13,989,
respectively.

20. Concentration of Risk

The majority of the Organization's grants are received from agencies of the State of New
Hampshire. As such, the Organization's ability to generate resources via grants is dependent
upon the economic health of that area and of the State of New Hampshire. An economic
downturn could cause a decrease in grants that coincides with an increase in demand for the
Organization's services.
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21. Transfer of Assets - Richie McFarland Children's Center

On January 1, 2022, the State of New Hampshire certified the merger of the Organization with
the Richie McFarland Children's Center (the Center). The agreement called for all the related
assets and liabilities of the Center to be merged entirely into the Organization. This agreement
allowed the Organization to expand various child.service program offerings throughout the
eastern side of the State of New Hampshire.

The Organization recognized the following assets and liabilities on the acquisition date
(January 1, 2022):

Assets:

Cash S 1,128,199

f  Accounts receivable 83,635

Prepaid expenses .5,845

Beneficial interest held in trusts 232,247

Property and equipment 1,100,000

Total Assets $ 2,549,926

Liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 2,782
Accrued payroll and related liabilities 25,341

Total Liabilities $ 28,123

Net Assets:

Net assets without donor restrictions • $ 2,289,556

Net assets with donor restrictions 232,247

Total Net Assets $ 2,521,803

22. Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications of amounts previously reported have been made to the accompanying
consolidated financial statements to maintain consistency between periods presented. During
2022, the Organization reviewed and updated Its program classifications to align to the current
operations of the Organization. The update resulted in a change In the allocation of certain
expenses. The Organization determined the appropriate response to the change was to
recalculate and reclassify 2021 allocations using the current year methodology. The
reclassifications had no impact on previously reported net assets.

32



DocuSign Envelope ID: 8B6898F7-0EF0-4CC4.B4FF-B879FE515DD9

23. Subsequent. Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through May 10, 2023, the date the consolidated
financial statements were available to be issued.
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WAYPOINT

Consolidated Schedule of Operating Expenses
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

FamHy Family Runaway 8 Total

Management

and

Pieiervadon Suopon Homeless Voutft Homecaie Advocacy Cama Proeram General Fundraiilne

SaliHet ind wages 6  2,933,799 6  3,187,126 6  1,136,714 6  1.386,070 6 127,338 6' ' 5 8,769,046 6  1,441.603 6  608,864

Emplovee benefits 606,008 481,385 174,838 168,266 4,709 1,324,206 156,284 M.810

Ratlrcinent plan 29,164 39,168 11,168 10,704 1,840 92,034 20,467 8,898

Payell taies and other 298,323 323,621 107,986 134,636 9,606 874,069 112,764 39,253

Mileage reimbursement 197.673 '  93,924 26,602 41,762 186 360,146 9,703 1,747

Contracted services 36,039 222,122 339,713 9,166 42,560 648,679 370,664 160,216

Accounting 76 75 61,066

Assistance to Individuals 324,486 374,691 400,629 349 16 1,100,071 717 60,017

CommunfcaUorts 63,406 61,846 60,477 17,468 1,136 12 184,344 32,936 12,811

Conferences, convcntloru.

rtveetings 20,786 48,462 6,601 1,868 8,183 46,929 132,818 49,868 2,628

Oeprtciation 69,324 100,813 110,886 48,113 1,579 320,716 ,  170,620 8,600

Insurance 30,297 22,469 22,800 3,272 713 79,561 15,794 2,632

Interest 44,070 74,891 67,022 35,742 1,173 222,898 22,106 6,388

legal 1,666 388 2,044 16,617

Membership dues 826- 7,870 13,666 5,704 60 28,105 26,169 2,437

Miscellaneous 9,466 21,098 6,366 1,1S6 38,076 34,413 8,676

Occupancy 242.992 148,368 286,994 60,166 1,269 4,229 ,  732,997 64,952 11,896

Printing ar>d pubiicatiom 4,873 17,729 4,446 267 2,373 29,688 29,232 67,493

Rental and equipment

nulntenartce 79,252 26,162 60,974 1,341 37 157,706 174,987 8,806

Supplies 23,140 62,896 60,666 6,9(9 134 .  77 143,892 12,963 2,740

Travel 3.634 4.196 12.819 66 S 20.618 13.017 10

Toul 6  4,906,436 6  6.310.480 6  2879.321 5  1,912,081 $ 702.769 6 61.661 6 15.261.737 6  7.816.820 6  948.819

2022

Totil

i  10.719,413

1.52S,300

121,399

1,026,096

371,696

1,179,448

61,130

1,160,806

230,090

185,314

499,936

97,877

251,392

18.661

66,711

81,163

799,844

126,413

341,669

169,696

33,M5

6  19,027,376

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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WAYPOINT

Consolidated Schedule of Operating Expenses
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

Martagement

FamilY Family Runaway S Total and 2021

Pretervatinn Sunnen Hor*li^! Youth Horrtecare Advocacy Camp Preeram General Fonrlraltlne Total

S<l(r1«t »nd waiei S  2,978,149 s 2,456,195 5  898,837 5  1,503,164 5  127,284 5 5  7,963,629 5  1,305,839 5  380,802 5 9,650,270

rmployM ben«<lt> 431,S39 345,908 151,351 169,647 '  4,064 1,102,509 142,701 25,691 1,270,901

Rccircmtni plan 22,971 22,722 8,334 6,321 2,119 62,467 33,340 5,807 101,614

Payrdl U05 and ether 288,915 244,674 86,915 155,905 9,485 785,894 69,615 .  29,747 885,256

Mjltage reicnbunemenl 130,1IK 35,970 20,697 46,612 233,405 3,250 18 236,673

Contracted tertlcet 42,954 324,479 518,896 3,177 14,700 1,488 905,694 314,483 89,140 1,309,317

Accountlnf 75 75 35,305 35,380

Attlttance to Individual! 237,092 237,041 367,522 175 6,481 848,311 233 53,000 901,544

Cenvnunlcatlent 65,085 51,158 39,507 11,083 1,358 10 168,181 34,673 9,827 212,681
ConfererKe!, convention!.

meetini! 15,296 48,188 •2,745 638 1,834 68,701 27,937 4,189 100,827

Depreciation 48,057 85,009 114,362 13,857 4,128 265,413 185,336 7,960 458,709

Iruurance 16,096 14.857 15,198 2,235 551 48,937 14,071 1,570 64,578

Irrteretl 40,260 71,217 75,497 11,609 3,458 202,041 24,699 6,669 233,409

legal 12,543 12,543

Meirbeohip duel 986 7,295 11,447 5,363 50 25,141 32,379 3,382 60,902

Mltcellaneou! 2,878 1,084 6,089 1,320 11,371 35,039 14,186 60,596

Occupancy 195,554 169,810 177,112 22,211 3,023 2,263 569,953 79,464 18,410 667,827

Printing and publicacloni 4,714 12,627 945 1,228 227 19,741 12,631 38,481 70,853

Rental and equiptninn
maintenance 58,792 25,045 6,617 272 90,726 144,596 12,362 247,684

Suppliei 26,321 40,422 34,421 4,849 355 40 106,408 14,790 2,255 123,453

Travel 1.346 772 7.376 95 9.589 10.909 20.498

Total 5  4.607.071 5 4,194,548 5  2.543.868 5  1.959.781 5  172.636 5 10,282 5  13.488.186 5  2.533.833 5  703.496 5 16,725,515

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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Borja Alvarez de Toledo, M.Ed.

Pix)fesaloriaI Profile

•  A seasoned leader v^lth more' than 18 years of senior level non-profit management experfence.
■  -Strong business acumen with ernphasla on developing processes to ensure the alignment of.

etratogy, operafions, and outcomes.wlth a sfrength based approach to leadership development
•  Coriaboratlve leader using systemic and strategic framework in program development, supervlsloh

and conflict resolution

Prbfesslohai Experience

Waypolnt, formerly Child and Family Services of New Hampshire
Manchester, NH December2p13-Present

President and CEO

•  Re^onsibleforprogram planning and development, Ireunng'that Waypolnt meets the oommurilty
needs.

•  Advance the public pfonie of .Waypolnt by developing innovative approaohes and building prpducdve
relafiohshl^ with government, re^onal and national constituencies.

•  Acte esadyisorto the.Boord of Directors and mah^ns relationships vi,1th the region^ Boards
•  Respdnalbio'fbr all aspoote of financial Frfannlng, sustalnabllily and oversight of Waypolnt*s assets
• s Woric yvilh DoveJopment staff and Board,of Directors to design and implement ail fundralslng
' actlviti^. Including cuRlvation and sollcl^on of key.individuais, foundations.and corporations

Rfverelde Community Care
Dedham.MA, 2009-2013

>

Division OfrBCtor, Child andFamlly Services
•  Responsible tor strategic vlsbn, planning and fanplemenfetioh of the, programmatic, operational and

financlal sustalnEtollity of a $i 7M division with, more than'300 employees.
:• In partnershlp.wfto The Guidance Center, Irw.'c bo^ of directors, played leaderehip role In

eucoessfully'metoing with Riverside. Cpmmurilty.(pare,'thrdugh a process that involved strategic
plannlng/^aJysIs andjselecflqn .of a viable partner.-

•  iProvlde supervlsbh tp manageto using a stfength based approach ahd'a collaborattve.coaohing
model to leaderehlp devWopment.

The Guidance Center,inc.
Cambridge, MA 1998 ■ 2009

^ Chief OperadngOfficer .2007-2009
•  Hired fnldally as Director bt'an Intensive home^based farhily program arid through eiicces^e

proindtions becaiTie respohsibis for all operatiohe In the oiganizQtbn.
•  Responsible fbf slipervision of DMsibn Dlrectore, slratogb planning and_ deyebpm.ent of mw

inltiativBe;'
•  Developed .strategio reiatiionships with state and local tonders, and partnered with community

• agencies.to.Bupp.qrt the healthy'grpwth of chlidreh and families.

Private Practice In Peychqfa^^ Cllrilcal Consultation ,. . . ,
,f»^adrld,Spa|h 1992-1996
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Unlversldad Pontlficia de Comlllas

Madrid, Spain 1991-1996

"Ai^u'nct FacuHy
•  Taught ghaduate l^el courts Iri Farhily and Coupl^ Therapy prbgram
•  PrE^cum prograrh supervisor: Supervised first year Master's Degree students through live

supervision in the treatment of multi-problem famliies.

Centro Mddlco-Psicbpedagdgicb
Madrid, Spain 1994 -1997

.'^Cilnfcai Coordlnator^Irectqr of TraJnlng.
•  Merpber 4^ a multi-dlsclpnnary team that provided assessmjentand treatmOTttofsmilles victims of

terrorism and had developed Posl Traumatic Stress Disorder.

(TAD (instituto for Alcohoi and Drug Treatment),
Madrid. Spain <ie91- 1994

- Senior Drug and Alcohol Counselor, Drug and Alcohol Program
• ' Provided evaluation and treatment for chemically dependent adults and their femllles.

Sen/or Family Therapist, Couples and Family Therapy Program
• Worlced as a f^Dy therapist In the evaluation and treatment of adolescents and families. '

Charles River Health Management
Boston, MA 1989-.1991

~ Senior Family^ Therapist, Home Based Family Treatment Program.

Education

Graduate CerUflcate of Buslneee

IJnIversity of Massachusetts, Lowell, 2000.
IWastei^s Degree In Education
Counseling Psychology Program. Boston Univerdty.T989.
B.A. In Clinical Psychology
Unlversldad Pondficla de Comlilas, Madrid, Spain. 1.988

Publications

2009 Ayers.S A lvarez de Toledp.'BrCbrnrnun htehtal Health with Children and Famlles. Iri A.
R. Roberts (Ed.) iSoclal Workeys Desk Reference (2'»',ed.),Nev/York: Oxford University Press, 2009

2008 Toplcel Dl^sslon: Advancing Communlty-Bcsod Clinicol Practice and Research: Learning In the
Fikd. Presentpd at the 10'''Annual Research Conference: A System of Care for.Chlldren'c Mental
Health: E:pjandlng the Research Base, February 2008, Tampa, FL

2001 Lyrhan, D!R.;Si^ei.R.: Alvarez de'toledo, B.; Ayers.S.; MIkula.l How to be little and still think
big: Creating a grassrootsi evidence based system of care. Symposium presented at the 14"*
Annual Reseaioh Conference in Children's Mental Health, Re^e^h and Training Center for
'ChUdreh's.Menial Health, Febfuary 2001, Tarhpa, FL

2006 Lyman, DR., B.'Alvarez de Toledo, The Bcology of interisl\m community based intervention. In
Ughtburn, A., P. Sessions. Handbook of Community Based Clinical Pracfice. Oxford University
press, 2006, England.

2001 Lyrhah, D.R., B. Alvarez ii6To)edo{20D^)Rls}<factorsarklHeatment6u^cdmesin a strategic
Inierisive familyprtgrarn. In Newman, .C, C. Llberton, K. Kutash and R. Friedman, (Eds.) A System
,,of Care for Children's'Mental Health: Expanding the Research Base (2002), pp. 55-68.: Research
aridtraining Center ftir Children's h^ental Health, Unlverelty of South Florida, Jampa.-FL

1994-98 Research papers and. professional presentations in peer'revlewed joumals in jSpalh

Languages

Fluent in,Spanish; French and Italian.
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COLLEEN M

CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER

Proactive executive, with a formidable record of management
Sstrator ̂th.stretogio planning business style who achieves exceptional.

and individuals.

professional experience

cdmmunlty-tjased^ services.

f  of p-pgram dei.ery iPduding; flsc^ and personnel manage.dn., quality assu^nce and
program development

and affordable housing sectors.

Vice President. Operdtions & Quality ̂ 0"^°' achievinq stiategic objectlves through oversight of the da^to-
.  Report to prlnoipals wth oyerali .tf by providing support at the transadional level as

best practices,;

throughout New England. , ^

Tran^ormed titm^e of ao^unt.biliW ^dkl^on-slte and (wtemal analysis of 11 rslall

. . . .ohih\ riP«5ldn^ and taught Inttoductdiy andupperl^^^^

psychology ana , ay cOLLEEN M. IVES • Page 2 •
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GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING. Concord, NH • 2001-2005
Statewide nonprofit offering long-term care, employment, transportation, advocacy, and other communlty-based
services.

Acting Executive Director & Chief Operating Officer , ̂ ,
Led internal operations, including service and program delivery, finance, human resources, fundraising and
marketing, transformed organization's culture by promoting a climate of excellence, systemic solullons and .
learning that benefited the organization and individual employees. Evaluated operational results and facilitated
business processes and controls that promoted efficiency and internal infoimation flow. Developed short- and
loho-range operating plans. Supported up to 14 management-level employees,.staff of 90. and $13M annual
operating' budget. Held-complete performance.management authority as well as autonomy.to engage in pnvate
and state/federal contracts. i
•  Increased revenue by 78% with more effective grant administration, successful applications for new

competitive grants, initiating a comprehensive development / fundraising plan, and Increasing the fee-forr
service lines of business. ' , ^ ,_4>

.  Increased consumers served from 400 to 3,000+ Individuals within three-year period by restructuring existing
programs, developing new programs and Increasing program accountability with monthly management reports.

.. Established foundation for 36-month capacity building plan to enhance infrastructure and overall operations by
.conducting full organizatlorial audit and successfully presenting to Board of Directors.

•  Expanded services arid leveraged long-term grant opportunity through company acquisition. Successfully
Integrated orgahizatiorial cultures and business practices. Including human resource policies, management
teams and compensation/benefits.

.  Recomm.end.ed. designed and implemented internal controls and operating procedures for all departments
(Human Resources, Finance. Public Relations/ Development, Long-Term Care, Community Living and.
Employment Services).- , - ^ c

.  Increased efficiency, rai^d credibility of finandal reporting and reduced headcount by irriplementlng state of
the art technojogy v^th ̂ pertise of retained IT consultant.

NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, VOCATIONAL REHABILITATION, SERVICES FOR
BLIND AND VISUALLY IMPAIRED, Concord, NH* 1992-2000
Statewide organization providing Registry of Legal Blindness. Sight Services for Iridependent Living, Vocational
Rehabilitatipri and a Business Enterprise program.

Statewide Director . .
Managed professlbnarstaff of 8 to deliver services that indude'd 15 statev^de rehabilrtative support groups, career
counseling and vending machinej^ood service enterprises in State and Federal buildings.
.  Awarded $1.2M 3-year federal grant to provide pear support services In 15 locations across the. state
.  -Led Department to highest rarik in standards and benchmarks aniong 7 other regional offices.
.  Enhanced.tearn-atmosphere.by jntegratiiig 4 distinct/statewide programs into a .cohesive unit.
•  rCultrvated relationships and formal .'partnerships withvarious.stakeholders in the statevyide network of sdcial

and human,services and.empjoymeht.arenas.

EDUCATION

Doctorate In Human and Orgarilzatlonal Systems
Master of Arts in Human Development

■Fielding Graduate University. Santa Barbara. Calrfomia
Master of Arts/CAGS in Rehabllitatlpri Counseling
Bachelor of Arts In Psychology iahd Philosophy

Assumption College'. Worcester, Massachusetts
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DEMISE A. BENNETT

WORK EXPERIENCE

Director of Finance

04/2023 to Present

Waypoint

464 Chestnut Street, Manchester, NH 03101

Responsible for managing all aspects of the Accounting Department. Create and maintain agency budget of $20 million.

Work with directors and senior management on finances for the agency. Responsible for recording the investment activity

as well as overseeing the real estate holding company. Review and approve all outgoing contract billings.

Controller

09/1993 to 04/2023

Waypoint

464 Chestnut Street, Manchester, NH 03101

Oversaw the Accounting department including payroll, a/p & a/r. Assisted senior management in preparing the annual

budget for a $20 million agency. Prepared month end financial statements for all programs. Met with Directors to review

financials monthly. Responsible for all outside audits. '

Office Manager
07/1990 to 02/1992

TRW

Bedford, NH

Managed regional sales office. Assistant to regional sales manager.

SKILLS

Budgeting - 10+years

Financial Reporting - 10+ years

Month End Closing - 10+years

Responsible for ail audits - 10+ years
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EDUCATION

Southern NH University
Bachelor's

Business Management

Manchester, NH

09/1985 to 05/1988

Southern NH University
Associate

Accounting

Manchester. NH

09/1983 to 05/1985
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

KEY PERSONNEL

List those primarily responsible for meeting the terms and conditions of the agreement.

Job descriptions not required for vacant positions.
)

Contractor Name: Waypoint

NAME
I

n.

JOB TITLE,
.li

a  i

ANNUAL

AMOUNT PAID

FROM THIS

CONTRACT

ANNUAL

SALARY /f:

Borja Alvarez de Toledo President and GEO $0.00 .$195,000

Colleen Ives COO $0.00 $127,338.

Denise Bennett Director of Finance $0.00 $125,000

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00
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STATE OF NEW HAMi^HrRE

DEPAi^ENT OF HEALTH AND HUIV^ SERVICES

DmSfON FOR CHILDREN, YOUTH A FAMILIES

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCX)RD. NH 03301-3857

003-27I-44SI 1-800-852-3345 Eit 4451
F«x: 603-27M729 TDO Acctti: 1-800-735-2904 www^hba.nh^ev

May 22. 2023

Hio Exceilency, QovemprChristppher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Children, Youth and
Families, to amend existing contracts with the Contractors listed below modify the payment terms
and to funding to support additional case management and service coordination for high-risk
families to strengthen family protective factors, keep chiidren safe, by increasing the total price
limitation by $616,750 from $22,140,059 to $22,758,809 wlh no change to the contract
completion dates of June 30, 2024, effective upon Governor and Councii approval. 23% Federal
Funds. 77% ̂neral Funds.

The Individual contracts were approved by Governor and Council as specified in the table
below.

Contractor

Narne

Vendor

Code
Area l^rved Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised
Amount

O&C

Approval

VVaypoirit,
Manchsster,

NH

1^66-
B002

Oaremont.
Concord.

■Conway, Keens,
Laconla,

Manchester,
Rochester,
Seacoast,
Souihern.

$19,895,531 $0 $19,895,531

0; 11/18/20.
|tem.#22 '

Ai: 12/8/21
ltem#5A

The Family;
Resource
Center at
Gorham'
(PRC).

Gorham, NH

162412-
BObI

Beriin and
LHtieton $2,244,528 $618,750 $2,863,278 0; 11/18/20,

Itemd22

Total: $22,140,059 $818,760 $22,768,809

FurKls are avail^le In the fpljovying axpunts fpr State Fiscal Year 2023, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year. 2024, upon the availabH'rty and continued
appropriation of furids in the future operating budget, with the authorfty to adjust budget lirie items

If needed and Justified,
See attached fiscal details.
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His Excenency. Oovemor Christopher T. Sununu
-end the Honorabto CouncD

Page 2 of 3

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request Is for the Department to revise the payment terms to authorize
the utilization of IV-E federal claims for Community Based Case Management and Motivational
Interviewing. The Department is adding additional funding to The Family Resource Center at
Gorham contract to allow for the Contractor to provide additional support, case management, and
servica coordination for high-risk families to strengthen family protective factors, keep children
safe, and prevent the need for subsequent involvement with the Department's Division for
Children. Youth and Families.

Contract management data has shown that the number of farnllies e[igit>l6 for this service
in the Berlin and Littleton is higher than inliiaify projected. Addilionalfy. Family Resource Center
at Gorham has successfully engaged and enrolled a higher percentage of families than initially
projected.

Approximately 4,000 families will be served from January 1. 2021 to June 30. 2024.

The Contractors provide services to families who/whom; were recently assessed by the
Dtvlaion of Children, Youth and Families for an allegation of abuse or neglect, or as part of their
CPS assessment were scored as being at high/very high-risk of future Division of Children. Youth
and Families Invotvement using an actuarial risk assessment tool. . v

Additionally, the Contractors provide sendees to clients utilizing the Solution-Based
Casework and Motivational Interviewing models with a focus on the following priorities:.

• Working in partnerships with families.

•  Focusing on family progress^

•  Focusing on programmatic solutions to difficult family experiencas.

• Celebrating family progress.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request the Fanilly
Resource.Center at Gorham will not have the funding available to sustain services to high-risk
families to strengthen family protective factors, keep children safe, and prevent the need for
subsequent involvernent with the Department. Additionally, the Department will be unable to
revise the payment terms to reflect the proper funding allocations, which the Department Is
required to do under 2 CFR 200.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number # 93.658, FAIN # 2301NHFOST.

Areas Served: Statewide.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer avaiiabje, additional General Funds
wiil not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Weaver

Interim Commissioner

TTieDtporlmtntofHcaUh'QndHumcti S€nnce$'Mittion itta f'oin tommunUittand (amilitt
■in pnvidingopporUiniiitsforciiium to aehitvo health orui independence.
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

OS-0&^2•421010-29660000, HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OP HEALTH AND HUMAN SV8. HHS;
HUMAN SERVICES DIV, CHILD PROTECTION. CHILD - FAMILY SERVICES

16 % Federal Fund*, 65% General Funde

Vendor Name Waypolnl, Vendor #177166

Slate Fiacai

Year
Class/O&ioct OescripUon Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Oecroasol
Revised Amount

2021 102/500/31 Contracts for Proa Svc 42105893 S  3.846.418.00 S $  3.646.418.00
2022 644/504165 SGFSER SGF Services 42105893 6  5.125,271.00 $  • $  5.125.271.00
2023 644/504165 SGFSER SGF Services 42105893 6  5.460.621.00 $ S  5.460.621.00.
2024 644/504165 SGFSER SGF Services 42105893 S  5.460.621.00 s S  5.460.621.00

Sub Total $  19.865.531.00 t S 16.895.531.00

TOTAL S22.140.OSg.00 S61S.760.00 S22.76e.e09.00

/

wt

RFP-2021rDCYF-03-COMMU-0l-A02

Waypf>in(

Governor ond Council Letter Attechrrtent

Firiancisl Detail

Page 1 of 1

Conlrector Initials

DateS/26/20Z3
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2

This Amendment to the Community-Based Voluntary Services contract is by and betweeri the Stale of
New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Waypoint ("the
Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Govemor and Executive Council
on November 18. 2020, (Item #22) and amended on December 8, 2021. (Item #5A). the Contractor agreed
to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract and in
consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions. Paragraph 17. and Exhibit A, Revisions to
Standard Contract Provisions, Subsection 3,3. the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of
the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to rnodify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these
services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9.. Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Robert W. Moore, Director.

2. Modify ExhibicC, Payment Terms, Section'l.. to read:
1. This Agreement is funded by;

1.1.15% Federal Funds for Foster Care Title IV-E as awarded by the Administration
for Children and Families on 10/1/2023, CFDA #; 93.658, FAIN #: 2301NHFOST.

1.2.85% General Funds.

3. Modify Exhibit 0. Payment Terms, Section 5., Daily Rate. Subsection 5.1., to read:

5.1. For the purpose of this agreement, a dally rate will be awarded:

5.1.1. For CBVS cases opened through and after January'1, 2023, this will
include a dual authorization as:

5.1.1.1. Community Based Case Management for $18.14/client
(family) per day.

5.1.1.2. Motivational Interviewing fo $16.86/clienl (family) per day,
which Is incoprated into the IV-E claimirig.

5.1.2; For CBVS cases opened through and after July 1. 2023, this will
include a dual authorization as:

5.1.2.1. Community Based Case Management for $25.35/client
•' (family) per day.

5.1.2.2. Motivational Interviewing fo $23.4b/client (family) per day,
which is incoprated Into the IV-E claiming.

4. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 7., to read:

wt
RFP-2021-DCYF-03-COMMU-01-A02 f Conlrador initials V

.  5/26/2023
Waypdnt Pago lot 4 Date ^
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7. The Contractor shall submit an Invoice with supporting documentation to the
Department no later than the fifteenth (15th) working day of the month following the
month in which the services were provided. The Contractor shall ensure each invoice:

7.1 Includes the Contractor's Vendor Number issued upon registering with New
Hampshire Department of Administrative Services.

7.2 Is submitted in a form that is provided by or otherwise acceptable to the
Department.

7.3 Identifies and requests payment for allowable costs incurred in the previous
month.

7.4 Includes supporting documentation of allowable costs with each Invoice that
may include, but are not limited to, time sheets, payroll records, receipts for
purchases, and proof of expenditures, as applicable. .

7.5 Is completed, dated and retumed to the Department with the supporting
documentation for allowable expenses to Initiate payment.

7.6 Is assigned an electronic signature, includes supporting documentation, and is
emailed to DCYFInvoices@dhhs.nh.gov or mailed to:

Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services

-  129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

RFP-2021-DCYF-03-COMMU-01-A02

Waypolnt Page 2 of 4

Contractor Initials

Date
5/26/2625
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All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain in full force and effect.
This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

5/26/2023

Date

l>oeuSlg«M b;

Joseph

•OoevStgimatr.

E. Ribsam, Jr.

E. RfbsMl, 3r.

Title: Director

S/26/2023

Date

Waypoint

—DMuSqnM by;

i^fltTAT
juu

g^^^r'-^fja-'Alvarez dc Toledo
Title: president and CEO

RFP..2021-OCYF-03-COMMU-01-A02

Waypoint Page 3 of 4
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

OocuSlgrtM »)r.

5/30/2023

Date Cuari no
Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

RFP.2021-OCYF-03-COMMU^1-A02

Waypolnt Page 4 of 4
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STATE OF NEW.HAlVfPSHrRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Vmi/O/V FOR CHILDREN, YOUTH Si FAMILIES

i«riA <u>si>ld>i(r 129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD, NH0330I-M57
603-27M451 1-800-852-3345 Eit 4451

Fax:603-271-4729 TDDAcmii: 1-800-735-2964 %tw.dhhs.nh.gov
J(»C(lbE.RIbura,Jr.

Director

-  November Ifl, 2021

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 0330.1
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Children, Youth and
Families, to amend an existing contract with Waypoint to provide case management and servite
coordination for high-risk families to strengthen family protective factors, keep children safe, and
prevent the need for subsequent involvement with the Division for Children, Youth, and Families
(DCYF), with no change to the price limitation of $19,895,531 and no change to the contract
completion date of June 30, 2024. effective November 18. 2021, or upon Governor and Council
approval, whichever Is later. ,

The original contracts were approved by Governor and Couricil on November 18. 2020.
item #22.

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to continue the Contractor's ability to provide support, case
management, and service coordination for high-risk families by modifying the payment terms to
allow payment for ongoing operating costs on a cost reimbursement basis. Payment will only be
made for incurred operating costs not covered by the dally rate. This amendment will not increase
the total price limitation and will allow the Contractor to continue to operate to fidelity while
enroilmenl numbers continue to increase to a stable point that is sustainable by the daily rate.

•Approximately 4.000 families wfill be served from January 1, 2021, to June 30. 2024.
' The Contractor provides services to families vyho were recently assessed by Division for

Children. Youth and Families for an ailegalion of abuse or neglect and were scored as being at
■high or very high-risk of future Division for Children, Youth and Families involvement as part of
their Child Protection Services (CPS) risk assessment tool.- Additionally, the Contractors provide
services to clients utilizirTig the Solution-Based Casework and Motivational Interviewing models
with a focus on the following priorities: ' ^r.

• Working In partnership with families, *■ . ?:
•  Focusing on family progress. •

•  Focusing on programmatic solutions to difficult family experiences.
,  • Celebrating family progress. > „

■ Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, the Contractor will
"not have the furxling available to sustain services high-risk families to strengthen family protective
.factors, keep children safe, and prevent the need for subsequent involvement with the Division
for Children. Youth, and Families. .

77ic DtpoHmenl of Health and Httmon Scrvicti' Mifsion i* to join cooimnnilin pnri families
in pnOidingopfJorlunitiesforcitUtns to achieve licallh and independence.



OocuSign Envoiopo 10:6E7A7Ce5-882MB77-Be78-77AC249B03^2

Hcs ExoeQoncy. Oovemof CMMphe; T. Sununu
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Respectfully submitted,

/-fvA—-
otn

Lon A. Shibinette

Commisslortef
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State of New Hampshire
Departmer^t of Heahh and Human Services

Amendment #1

This Amendment to the Community-Based Voluntary Services cpntract Is by and between the State of
New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Waypolnl ("the
Contractor"). -

WHEREAS, pursuant lo an agreement (the "Contract") approved,by the Governor and Executive Council
on November 18.2020, (Item #22). the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant lo Form P-37. General Provisions. Paragraph 17. and Exhibit A. Revisions to.,
Standard Contract Provisions. Subsection 3.3. the Contract may be emended upon written agreement of
(he parlies and approval from (he Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to modify the scope of services to support conllnued delivery of these
services; and

NOW THEREFORE, In consideration of the foregoing end the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Modify Exhibit C. Payment Terms, by renumbering Sections 7 through 12. and all references
thereto, as Sections 8 through 13, and adding (he following Section after Section 6, to read:

7. Ooeratin'Q Costs

7.1. Payment for costs incurred in excess of payment for the daily rate specified In
Subsection 5.1 above and that are necessary for operating services in Exhibit 6,
Section 2. Statement of Work, Phase 1 Referral and Engagement. Family Stabilization.
Service Planning. Statement of Work, shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual
expenditures, in accordance with the approved line items speclfed In Exhibit C-1.
Budget, and shall rK>l exceed the amount of $979,675.99.

7.2. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory lo the Department by the
twenty fifth (25lh) working day of the following month, which identifies and requests
reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month. The Contractor shall
ensure the invoice Is completed, dated and returned to the Department In order to Initiate
payment.

8. Add Exhibit C-1, Amendment #1, Budget Sheet, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

RFP-2021 -OCVF .03-COMMU-01 -ADI

A-S-1.0

Wsypolnl

Page i of 3

@1-
Coniroctof Irdilals

n/iOTTtyzr
Date •
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All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain in full force and effect.
This Amendment shall be effective November 18, 2021 or upon the date of Governor and Execuiive
Council approval, whichever Is later.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parlies have set their harxis as of the date written below.

Stale of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

li/i7/2on

Dale

Joseph E. Ribsam, Jr. .

t. Kiosaw. jr.

Title: Oi rector

Waypoint

11/10/2021

Dale

!«. diuAnA Jju tdiM

Title:
sorja Alvarez de Toledo

president and CEO

.RFP.2021 -OCYF-03-COMMU-01 -AO 1

AS-l.C

Waypoini

P89a 2 of 3
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Th6 pfocodlng A/n^ndnrioni. having ba^n reviewed by Ihis office, is approved as lo form, substance, and
execution;

- OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

J. ftUrsU.

Diii Naye""^"^'" Hdr^tian
Title. Asststant Attorney GeneVal

I hereby certify thai the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the fi^eeiing on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name;

Title:

RFP.2021-DCVT-0>COMMU01.A0.1 Waypoint

AS-l.p PageOofS
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UH A. SblNnent

Coaolukpcr

Jewpb-L Rlbuta, Jr.
Director '

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMEPTT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR CHILDREN, YOUTH & FAMtUES

179 PtEASArfrSTftCer.CONCORD,NH D330i-M57
60J.27l^Sl I.S0^S5i-134SEii.445l

Pti:M3-37Mn» TDDACCCJC: l<60D-73S-2964 .www.dbbi.flh.gov

October 20. 2020

Hie Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and (he Honorable Council

State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Action 1: Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Children,
Youth and Families, to enter into contracts. wKh tl^ vendors listed below in an amount not to
exceed 922,140,059 to provide case management and service coordination for high-risk families
to strengthen family protective factors, keep children safe, and prevent the need fpr subsequent
involvement with the Division for Children, Youth, and Families (DCYF), with the option to renew
for up to two (2) additional years, effective upon Governor and Council approval through June 30,
2024.100% General Funds.

Action 2: Further authorize en advance payment in the amount of $3,154,971 to the
vendors listed below, in accordance with the terms of the contracts, effective upon Governor and
Executive Council approval. 100% General Funds.

Vendor Name Vendor Code Area Served Contract Amount

Waypoint

Manchester. NH
1.7766-8002

Claremont, Concord,
Conway, Keene.

Laconia, Manchester.
Rochester, Seacoast,

Southern

/

$19:695,531

The Family Resource '
Center at Gorham

Gorham, NH

162412-B001 Berlin and Littleton $2,244,528

■\

Total: $22,140,059

Funds are available in the following account for State' Fiscal Year 2021, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2022, 2023 and 2024, upon the availability and.
continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority tp adjust budget
line items within the price limiiation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the
Budget Office, if needed end justified.

Vit OtporlnitntolHtollh ond NiimoA it lojoik eemmunlliu ond fomiliu
'  in pnuidindopporU'nitiufor titia/u leechitiM htoithofid iftdtptndtn(v
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CS-e&^2-421010-29$80000. HEAtTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HNS: HUMAN SERVICES OIV. CHILD PROTECTION, CHILD - FAMILY
SERVICES

State
Flocot Year

Claeef

Account
Clasa Title Job Number Total Amount

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42105893 94,409.448

2022 044/904195 Contracts for Prog Svc 42109893 95.671.271

.2023 644/504195 Contracts for Prog Svc 42105893 $6,029,671

2024 644/504195 Contracts for Prog Svc 421056B3 96,029.671

•i"

• i
Total 922,140,059

TTte purpose of (his request ts (or the ContredOfB to provide eupporl, case mar^egement,
end service cbordinolion (or high-risk remliles to strengthen (emily protective fadors, keep
children sefe; and prevent the need for subsequent Invotvement with the Depaitmenl's Oivtsion
for Children. Youth and Famaies (PCYF).

One of DCYF'e goals Is to prevent (emtles who come to the attenUort of tiw Division from
requtr1r>g future DCYF Irrtervention. Today, many of the famllieo who receive a Child Prolective
Services (CPS) assessment (I.e., Investigallon) for child abuse/negieci return to DCYF for further
tnlerventfon. A recent ar^alyels' found thai 32% of sll families assessed by DCYF In calendar year
2017 returr>ed to DCYF for a subsequent assessment within 12 months (and 40% returned within
18 months). This rate is higher for families assessed to be at high- or vary hlgh-nsk for eubsequenl
tnvotvemem uetng en ac^rtat risk asoessmenttool. rising to 45% and M% for12 and 16 months
respactivaty. This cycle of recurrence suggests families' undertytng needs.and challenges linked
to child ebuse/negJect are not being aufficiently addressed.

However, until recently. DCYF has been uneble to provide supports and services to
prevent recurrence to many of the fsmlDes that could ben^il mbsi. Traditionally, OCYF has
eseessed many families but provided ongoing services to a small few, This is because > prior to
the relntroductlon of voluntary services by the legislature In SFY2018 - OCYF was only allowed
to provide origoing case msnagemant end home-based oeryloes to families after an assessment
if they received a legal finding o1 child abuse or rwglect. But; due to the relatively stringent legal
requirements nacesaary to obtain a court-rmding In New Hampshire, many families who are at-
risk of future mallreatmenl have their assessments closed without findings and do not receive
or^golng aervtces. As a result, families often need to experience another crisis, and need to re-
enter the OCYF eystem to recalvo services that 6trer)gthen faniStas. enable children to remain
safely at home, Br>d prevent future OCYF Involvement. DCYF swks to break" this cycle of
recunrenoo t)y eigniftcently expanding the number of families who receive services on a vojunlary
basis, focusing on the highest-risk familieB.
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The Contf^ore wlll provUe a community-based voluntary eervioes program {C6-VS) thai
wtI7 serve these high-risk families, who r)eed additional support to prevent future OCYF
involvemef^t. After meeting any Immediate family rweds and developing a service pl8r>. C6-VS
providers will help families buiW end mainleln bridges to other parenUhg. economic, or
bshavtoraVmenta) health aarvlces to eddrees undadylng rteods. atrengihen protecdve feclore, artd.
promote family wel^-betng. Thb overall outcome gooJ of C&-yS b to safely prevent femlDes from
requiring DCYF Intervention In tho future.

Approximatety 4,000 families will be served from January 1, 202i to Juno 00.2024.

The Contractort wtti provide sorvices to famiCes whoAvhom were recently assessed by
DCYP for en eUegation of abuse or neglect and as pan of their CPS essassmant were scored as.
being at higtYVery high-risk of future DCYF Involvement uslr^ an actuarial risk assessment toot.
Additionolly. the Contractors wit) provide services to ctierrts uHldlng the SotutlD(v6ased.Casev«rk
and Motivational Interviewing models with a focus on the following priorities:

•  Workmglnparlnefshlpwlthfamilies

•  Focusing on family progness

•  Focusing on programmatic solutions to. difficull family experiertces

•  Oelabrating family progress

Contractors wiD provide CB-VS servlcos in two phases:

Phase 1: Referral and Engagement, Family Stabflleatlon, Service Planning

Refofral and Engagomont: The Contractors will Ofien| ttie family to the CB-VS end build a
rapport eo the family will be willing to receive family siabiiization supports and participate
I/) eervtoe ptarining.

Family Stsbllltatlon: The Contractdrs will address immediate rteeds of the family,
emphasizing what needs may make it diffrcull to establish family eng^emenl.- tmmediato
needs include but are not limhod to: unstable housing, lack of consistent transportation.
Inadequate or lack of health insurance, discontinuation of state benefits, health concerns,
and hospHelizatlons.

Service Plahnlng: The Coniractors will develop an Initial service plan that reflects the goals
and perspectivee of the family, and the nafeds identified by (he assessment too).

Phase 2: Service Ntanegement, TrenslUon and Closure

Service Management: The Contractors will meet the family's needs and ochieva iho goals
Identified In the service plan.

Tronsldo.n and Closure; Contractors will assess when ongolng.case management supports
ore no longer needed, arid devdiop a plan with the family to transition out of CB-VS and
into existing community based aupports.
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The Oepsflmenl wiO monllor contracted wrvicos using (he followlrtg performance
measures:

Scjvicc

Aciivily:
Key (icriorinnncc tnutrict>:

w
A.Referrsi A

engegement

• % of referred farhilies who enroll in CB-ys

• % of referred (amlftes who receive face-io-foce meeting wtthin 3 days of
referral

I B.Famliy
: etsbllizetlon • % of famlDeo that are stabilized within the first 90 daya

C.Servtce
planning • % of famlBes with Q case plan within the first 30 days

t4
D.Servloe
managenr»ent

• Median e of days from InHial assessment to enrollment In addlllooBl
'  supports and services. ,
• % of families who are accessir)g OCYF paid home-based services
■ % of families who meet their service ptan qoats

E. Transition

A closure

• % of families who ere sucoessfulfy established in ongoing euppcrts
ft % of families who see Improvement In assessment tool (to be opedfled by

DCYF)

ft Family ealiefectlon with CB-VS (e.g.. Net Promoter Score)

I
% of families referred (0 CB^VS

• who have a eubstantieted allegation of maltreatment within 6 months of the referral
dale

• who have a subsequent assessment (investigation) 6 and 12 morrths after CB*V$
discharge

The Oepattment selected the Contrectors through a competitive bid proceso using a
Request for Proposals (RFP) that was posted ori the Department's websHe from 4/1672019
thrDu^h 6/14/2020. The Deportment received sbrteen (16) responses that were reviewed and
scored by a team of qualified Indhnduals. The Scoftng Sheet Is attached.

As referenced In Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Contract Provisions Section 1.1.. of the
attached contracts, the parties have the, option to extend the egreemer^ts for up to two (2)
additionat years, contingent upon ssUstactory deiivery of services, available funding, agreement
of the parties, end Governor end Council approval.

Should the Governor and Counci! not authorize this request OCYF will be unable to meet
the needs of high risk famBiee v^o come to OCYF's anenllon. wtiich would perpetuate e system
which Is.unable to break proacllvely Intervene to prevent child abuse and neglect.

Areas served: Statewide

Respecdully submitted.

Lori A. Shiblnette
Commissioner
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Business Operations
Contracts & Procurement Unit ;;

Scoring Sheet

Communlty^Based Voluntary Services

RPP Name

Bidder Name

1.

2.

3.

Big Brother Big Ststors of New HampsMre

htountain View Counseling

Easter Seals Now Hampshire. Irrc.

NeurodevolopmBntal.Institute of Now Hampshire,
LLC

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

County

Family Resource Center at Gorham

Scacoast Youth Services

Homo Based Collaborativo Family Counseling

Ascentria Community Services. Inc.

- Greater TItton Family Area Family Resource
Center

11. Spaulding Youth Center

RFP-2021-OCYF-03^OMMU

Community Action Partnership of Stratford

RFP Number

P«se/Fan

MajUmitffl

Points

Actual

Points

WA 100

KTA 1M <7

N/A too 64

NiA 100 es

n;a •100 69

N/A 100 65

n;a 100 71

N/A ' 100 74

. N/A 100 . 75

N/A 100 76

N/A 100 77

Reviewer Names

1,

2.

Affiena Cote

Ccrtney Levesque

Oariffl Tenner

e.

5.

GereiOo Plarski

Joseph Rbsam

KsSGWwidmo

Kristi Hart'

Mvt) llB

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

P«tridi PrVilson
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VNAatHCS, Inc. N/A 100 79
14.

Northeast Family Services of Now Hempshire; Inc. WA 100 92 15. -

Beacon Health Optiorts K/A 100 97 18.

Waypoint WA 100 89 17.

TLC .Family Resource Center N/A 100 70 18.



DooiSion Envelope ID; 6E7A7CBS«82A-4B77-8E7e.77AC249B03f2

OecuSlQn Envctope'fD: 72tE9t>0&O56<M£9E'eE70-26F9£lC>9C0£D

OMuS^ £met«p« O; A84020ip^T2<«E7.1-A27P')90e«Aft»0002
rORM MIM8ER P07(»frt]on 11/11/2019)

S«bJ««i:_Community-B8sed VolunUry Services (RfP'2021 •DCYF^3-COMMU'Ol)

Noiice: Thisi^Kmeni and ili ofitsBiiKhmmU shall become public upon submission loCovtmor and
Executive Council for approval. Arty inromaiion (hit is private, conndemial or propricidry must
be clearljr identified to the i^cncy and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

acreement

The Sritc of New Hxmpshirc and the Coalroaor hereby mutually agree as' follows:

CenrCRAL PROVISIONS

I.I Sitic Agency Name

New Hampshire Oepanmeni ofHeallh and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 0)301.3857

1.3 Coftiracior Name

Waypoint

1.4 COAtraclOf Address

464 (Thesmui Street

Msnchesicrj NH, 03105

I.S Conimctof Phone

Nurnbcr

<603)318-4000

1.6 Account Number -

05-095-042-421010-

29580000

t.7 Completion Date

June 30.2024

1.8 Price Limitation

$19,895,531

1.9 Contracting OfTtccr for Suie Agency

Nathan D. While, Director

1.10 State Agency TelcpHo'ne Number

(003)271-9631

l.ll ContractorSigniiure

[ fi**)! dL-^ Ol tujle °"''10/Wt020

1.12 Name arM) Title of Contractor Signatory

eorja Alvarez oe Toledo

Presidcrtt and CC6

1.13 SiiJC itgefi^y'signature
. •> Oiiir»ii Ihr.

1 Joseph E. Ribsam. Jr. ^'^-10/15/2020

1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory
loseph E. fitbsan. 3r.

Director

1.15 Approval by in'i N.H. Depanmcni of Administration. Orvjsion of Personnel (if vppUctible)

By: - Director. On:

1.16 AppfOyal^by^lhc Aitorney Cencml (Form, Subsiirtce and Execution) (ifopplicoble}

On:

•V;—o« >«mt)Kva..

1.17 Approval by the Governor and Executive CoynctI fif appUccbte)

0£C Item number: G&C Meeting Date:

Page I of 4
Contraciorlniiihls

'0*

Date 10/14/2020
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The Sitic of New
Hempfhtre. uiing Uiroogh tht igencjr idemtncd in block I.I
("Suic'^), engages conlrwtor idcniiHcd in block 1.3
CConireclor") lo perfomi. and the Conmcior shall pcKdnn. the
work;or sale of goods, or boih, ideniiricd and ntore panieularly
described in ihe tiiiehed EXHIBIT- 8 which is incorporated
herein by reference ('•Serv'ices").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Noiwiihsttnding any provision of this Agreemcru to the
conirvy. and subject to- the oporoval of (he Governor ond
Executive Cotirtcil of the Slate o7New Hampshire, if applicable,
this AgreemcM, ortd all obligations of the parties hereurtder. shall
become cfTective en the. date the Governor and CxeciNive

Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block I.l7.
unless fto tiich approval isrequired. In which case the Agreement
shflli becontc efrcctive on the date the Agreement ii sigrKd by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 C'Efrcciivr Dote").
3.2 If the Contractor commenca (he Services prior to the
Effect ivc Dale, all Services performed by iKe Contractor prior to
the Effective Dote shall be performed ot the sole risk of (he
Coniroctor. artditi the event that this Agreenxnt docs not become
qffKtivc. the State shall have no liability to (he Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay. the
Coniraetoi for any costs irKuntd or Services perlormcd.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
Sptcined in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATUf^e OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithflanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hcreunder, including,
wiihoul limiiftiion. the coniinuonee of payments hercunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any state or federal legitlaiive or executive
action thai reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for (his Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT 8, in whole or In
part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hereuTxIcr inexccisofsuch availableoppropnotcd funds. In the
event of a rcduciion or termination of appropriated funds, the
Siate shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become ovaltable. if ever, ami shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agre'ctncnt Immediately upon
giving the Contnctor notice of Such reduction or termination.
The Stale shall not be required to transfer funds from any other.
account or source lo the Account identified in block 1.0 in the

event funds in (hat Account arc reduced or unavailable.

5. contract price/price LIMITATION/
PAVMENT.

5.1 The contract pripe, method ofpaymerti, and terms ofpayment
are identified ar>d more panicutsHy described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The-paymcnt by the State of iKc ooniraci price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursemtnt to the Conltocior for all
expenses, of whatever rtaiurc incurred by the Coniracior in the
performance hereof, and Shalt be the only artd the complete

compenstion to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have rSo liability to the Conuacior other than the contract price.
5.3 The Sidle reserves the right to offset from any.amounis
oiherwite payable to the Conirocior u.nder this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitiEd by N.H. RSA SO:?
through RS A 80:7< or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
conirvy. and notwithstanding imexpccied clrcumstaneet. in no
eveni shall the total of all payments authorixcd. or actually made,
hcreunder. exceed the Price Limiiklion set forth itt block U.

«. COMPLIANCE BV CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOVMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In coruteciign with (he performance of the Servicct. t^
Contractor shall comply with all applicable siaiuies, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
iuihoriiies which Impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to. civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in arty pan by monies of the United States, the Coniracior
shall comply with oil federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and BUutei, and wiih any rules, regulatiocu artd guidelines as (he
Slate or thc-Unitcd States issue to implement th^c regulaiions.
The Contractor shall also comply with ell applicable intelleeiuai
property laws.
6.2 During the ivm of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate agting employees or applicants for employinent
because of race, color, religion, cre^, age. sex. handicap, sexual
orleniaiiort. or national origin and will lakc.afrirmaiivc action to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The Contractor agrees (0 permit the State or United Siatea
Kcc ts to any of the Coniructor's books, records and occounts for
the purpose of escenoining compliance with all rules, regulations
ortd orders, and the covenants, irrmi Df>d conditions of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its owm expense provide ell pctsohrtel
ncccsury to paform the Services. The Conirtcior warrants (hat
all personnel engaged In the Services shall be qualifieil to
perform the Services, and shall be property licensed tr>d
dihcrwisc author!acd to do so under all ipplicable lawit.
7.2 Unless oihenvise outhorited in writing, during the term of
ihli Agreement.'and for a period of six (6) months oflcr the
Completion Date in block 1.7. the Contractor shall not hire, and
Shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a eombitted effort to
perform (he Services to hire, any person who is a State employee
or official, who is materialfy jnvpivcd in (he procurement,
■dminigraiion or pcrformsnce of (his Agreement. This
provision shall survive icrminatlon of (his Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9. or his or her
successor, shall be the Stale's representative. In the event ofony
dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Coniraciing OrTicer's decision shall be final for the State.

Pftgciord Contractor Inilidls.l,.^^^
Daic 10/14/2020
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8. CV£NT OF DCFAULT/REAieOieS.

8.1 Any one or mort of Utt rollowfng icu or omiuioni or (he
Contractor ihnll constiiutc cm event of derauli hcrcunikr ("Event
or Default"):

8.1.1 fftvturc (0 perform the Services satisfKiorily or on
schedule:

8.1.2 fsihirc to submit enyrcpon required hcreondcr; snd/of
8.1.3 Allure to perfonn any other eovcroni, icrra or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of tkfauli. the Siaie may
take any one. or more, or all. of the followirts actions:
8,3.1 give the Contractor 0 written notice specifying the Event of
Default end requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
aptdier or ksser specificailon of lime, thirty (30) days from the
gate of (he notice; and ifihc Event orDcfawli Is rtoi timely cured,
lerminile this Agree mem, cfTcctive two (2) days after giving the
Contractor notice of terminiiiort;
Z.22 ̂ve (he Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and Suspertding all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the ponion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to ihe Conlraclor during the
period' fmm the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Dcfauli
shall ocvCT be paid to the Comrtetor;
8.2 J give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Ocftuli and set ofT against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Contractor any tJamages the State suffcrt by reason of
any Event of Ocftuli: and/or-
8.2.4 give (he Coniraetora wriiicn notice specifying the Event of
Ocfeuli, ireai the Agrecmcni as breached, (crminaic the
Agreement and pursue any of lu remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof oftcr
any Event of Oefauli shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard 10 that Event of Default, or any subsequent Everu of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a u-alVer of the right of the State to enforce each and
ali of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Ocfiuli on the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.
9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8. the State may, at its aole
d^scfetio^ (ermlnaie the Agrecmcni for any reason, in whole or
in pan, by ihlny (30) days wrinen notice to Ihe Contractor that
the State is e.xerdsing its option to icrm'tnaie the Agreement.
,9.2- In the event of an early le^inaiion of this Agreement for
any reason other than the c^pleiion of (he Services, the
Contractor shall, oi the State's d'lscrct'ion, deliver to the
Contracting OfTiccr, no't later thin fi ftecn (15} days after the date
of (crmifuiton. a rcpon (Termination Report'') describing in
detail all Services perrormetl. and'the cootraa price earned, to

.tand including the date of termination. The form, subject matte/,
content, onit number of copies of ihe Termination Report shall
be Idenlical'to those ofany Final Repon described in the attached
EXHIBIT B. In oddilion, at Ihc Sutc's discraion, the Contractor
shall, within 13 days of hoi'icc of early lerminailon, develop and

Page 3

submit to the State a Transiiion Plan for servica under ihe

Agreemem.

10. dATA/ACCESSA:ONFlDENTIAtlTY/
PRESERVATION.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word ''dato" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
perforrmnce of. or acquired or developed by reason of, (his
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, rcpons,
flics, formulae, curvrys. maps, chans, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
rrpresentaiions. computer programs, computer prittiouts, rsoies,
loieri, memoranda, papers, and docvmenis. all wtiethcr

finished or unfmudietJ.

10.2 All data and any property which haa been received from,
the Slate or puichas^ with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of ihc State, and
shall be rciumcd to the State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 ConndemlDliiy of data shall be governed by N.H. RS A
chapter 91'A or other e.%isting law. Oitclosurecfdau requires
prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

performance of this Agreement the Contractor ts in all respects
an independent contractor, and is. neither en agent nor an
employee of ihe State. Neither the Coniroctor nor any of its
offiecrt, employees, agents or membcrt shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any.bcncrns, workers' compciuatlon or
other emolumems provided by the Sute to its err^loyeei.

12. ASSlCNMENT/OELECATION/SUDCONTRACrS.

12.1 The Conirsctor shall not O&sign, or Otherwise transfer any
inictesi in this Agreement without the prior worilten nodcc. which
shsil be provided <o the State at least nrteen (13) days prior, to
Ihe assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purposes
of this paragraph, s Change of Control shall coiutitulc
tsslgnmem. "Change uf Control'' means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a iran.eaetion or series of related transactions in

which t third party, togdhcr sviih its Bfrilitles. becomes the
direa or indirect owner qf fifty percent (303i) or more, of (he
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or subsianiioUy all
of the assets of the Cbnirtcior.

17.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by (he
Contractor without prior \^iten notice and consent of ihc Stale.
The State iseniitleOio'copicsofal) subconiracis end.assignmcni
agreements end shall ooi be bound by any provisions contained
in k iubconiraci or an auignmeni agreement (o u4t>ch it.is not a
pany.

I y. INDEM NI FICATION. Unleu otherwise cscmpictl by law.
the Coniracior shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
ofTicers and employees, from and ogalnsi any end oil claims,
liabiiiiies and cosii for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright Inrringcmeoi. or Other claims asserted against
the State, its olTiccrii or employees, tvhich arise Out of (or whkh
may be claimed to arise out of), the acts or ontisjiaQjofvihe

ofd

Contrecior ii^iiiats'
Dnic 10/1*/2020
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f  . ,
Contreclor. or nbconinciors. including but noi tSmiicd (O (he
negli|encc, reckleu or Inuniionsl conduct. The Siaie shall noi
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contnclor arising under
this paragnph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of(he sovereign
immunity of the State, whieh immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

14. insurance.

14.1 The Contraelor shall, at its sole expense, obtain artj
continuously mslniain In force, and shall require any
Subeonlnclor or usignee lo obtain and maintain in force, the
rottowing insurttncc;
14.1.1 commcrclat general llabiiiiy insuranoe against all claimi
of b^ily injury, duih or propcny damage, in atnoums of not
less than Sl.000.000 per occurrertce and S2,000,000 aggregate
orcxeess:and

'  I4.l.2sp«cialcouseoriosscoveragc form covering all property
subject to subparograph 10.2 herein, in an amount noi less than
80% of the whole rcpUcemeni value of the property.
14.2 The policiu described in subparignph 14.1 hcircin shall h'c
on policy forms end endorsements apprwed for use in the State
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Oepanment of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hirrvshire.
14.3 The Cortiractor'shall furnish to the Contracting OfTieer
ideniincd in block 1.9. or his or her successor, a ccrtificateli) of
insurance for all insurance required under this AgrccnKnl.
Contractor shall also fdmiih to the Comricilng OITiccr Identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, eenincaie(s) of insurance
for all renewBl(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration dale of each
[nttunmce policy. The cenificoic(s) of insurance and any
renewals ihaeof shall be aiiachcd and arc incorporated herein by
refereftce:

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Comraaor agrees, certifies
and warratusthsi the Contractor is in comptiancc with or e.tempi
from, ihc requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("Workers'
Compensoiion").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor Is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain,-and
require any tubeontracior or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers' Compensation in connection with
activities which the persorr proposes to undertake pursuant to (hi.^
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Ofncer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proofof Workers'
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
' 281-A and any applicable rcnewal(s) thereof, which shall be

attached and arc incorporated herein by reference. The State.
Shall not be responsible fqr 'payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for fin;y other.claim or benefit for
Coniraetor. or any subcontractor or employee of Controeior.
which might arise under applicable Stoic of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

Id. NOTICE. Any rtoiice by a party hereto to (he other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United Stales
Post OfTice oddrciscd to the panics at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be emended, waived
or ditchargctl only by on Instrument in writing signed by (he
panics hereto and only oDer approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Govcntor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is rcquirM
under the circumsiancci puriuoni <o State taw, rule pr policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW and FORUM. This Agreement Shall
be governed, interpreted and connrued in accordance with the
liwi of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the panics and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording ascd in (hit Agreement is the wording
chosen by the panics to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in fat^r of any party.
Any actioAS arising out of (his Agreement shall be brought tr^
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
e.^ciusivejirris(liC(ion thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS, in the event of a eonfliei

l^wten the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A)-Bnd/or aiiachmems and fimendmeni thereof, (he terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The ptnics hereto do not Imervd to
beneni any third panics and (his Agreement shall not be
construed lb confer any such benefit.'

21. HCADINCS. The headings throughout (he Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the'
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set fonh in the oitoched EXHI BIT A ere Incorporated
herein by reference. ^

23. SEVCRABILITV. In the evtni any of the provisions ofihis
Agreement arc held by a court of competent junsdicilon to be
conjrary to any state Of federal law. the remaining provisions of
this Agie'emcm will remain in full force imd effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterpans. each of which sholl be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agrccrnent and -
understanding between the ponies, and supersedes ail prior
agreements find iinderstDndings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.

Page 4 of 4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Servlcee
Community^Baeed Voluntary Services

EXHIBIT A

REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT PROVISIONS

Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3. Etfeclive Daie/Compietion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows:

- 3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to two (2) additional years
from the Completion Dale, coniingent upon satisfactory delivery of

■ services, available funding, agreement of the parlies, and approval of (he
Governor and Executive Council.

1.2. Paragraph 12. Assignment/Delegalion/Subcontracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows;

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure, subcontractor
compliance .with those conditions. The Contractor shall, have written
agreements with all subcohiractors, specifying the work to be performed
and how corrective action shall be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is inadequate. The Contractor shall manage the
subcontractor's performance on an. ongoing basis and take corrective
action as necessary. The Contractor shall annually provide the State with
a list of ail subcontractors provided for urkJer this Agreement and notify
the Stale of any inadequate subcontractor performance.

RPP'202l.C)CYr-OVCOMMUOi EdtfWi A'RavHIttis loSundftreConinci Com/KtorU^
^ 10/14/2020
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community-Based Voluntary Services

EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1.- Key Dermitions

1 1 Date of Referral: Shall be defmed as 'trie date in vvhich the referral Is made*. The referral
"  ' date should correspond wilh ihe "Begin dale of services', indicated on the Division of

ChMren Youth end Femilios (OCYF) Servlco Authorization Form.

1.2. Days: Shall be defined as a complete •overnight", calendar days, and shall Indude
Saturday. Sundays and Holidays. -

1.3. Face-lo-Faco; Shall be defined as the first face-to-face interaction following the Dale of
Referral In which a pfovider begins working wilh the families to delrver Community-Based
Voluntary Services (CB-VS). Face-to-Face shall further be defined as
Interactions; however. DCYF reserves Ihe right to adjust the definition, with e thirty ,(30)
day written or verbal notice to the Contractor agency.

1.4. Open Case: Open case shall be defined as any case opened to DCYF. Ir^udlng
assessment, voluntary case, court case with focus on the family wrved by CB-VS.

2. Statement of Work

2.1. The Conlreclor shall ensure Community Besed-Voluntery Services are availatrfe In towns
covered by the Claremonl. Cor^cdrd, Conway. Keene. Laconia. Manchester. Rochesler.
Seacoast. Southern (+telework ) CPS District offices of Division for ChUdren Youth and
Families. OCYF enticipaled to refer from these sources the foltowirig number of families
jn yearState Fiscal Year

2.1.1. From start of contract to end of SFY21: 600 families

2.1.2. SFY22;960.famiIies

2.1.3. SFY23: 960 families

2.1.4. SFy24: 960 families

2.2. The Contractor shall provide case management and service coordination for .high-risk
families to strengthen family protective factors, keep children safe, and prevent the
need for subsequent Involvement with OCYF:

2.3. The Contractor shall provide services described in this agreement to families
who/whom:

2.3.1. Were recently assessed by OCYF lor en allegation of abuse or neglect,

2.3.2. As part of their CPS assessment, were scored as being at high/very hlgh-rislc of
future DCYF involvement using an actuarial risk assessment tool.

RFP-JMI-DCYFOJ-COMMU- .
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New Hampshire Department of Heatth and Human Services
Community*Based Voluntary Services

EXHIBIT B

2.3.3. Did not receive a court findiog of abuse/neglecl as a resuli of their DCYF
assessmeni, and

2.3.4. Coukj berterd from eddlilonal supports and bo safely served in the comrhunity.

2:4^ The Oepartmer^t reserves the right to refer other famities to ensure adequate caseloads.

2.5. AD referrals shaO bo accepted by the Conirector regardless of any other drcumstances.

2.6.'Th© Contractor shall provide services to clients utilizing the Sdulion-Based CaseworV
and Motivational Interviewing models.

2.7. The Contractor shall provide services in a manner thai Includes, but is not limited to. the
following priorities:

2.7.1.. Priorilizing woft^jng In partner^ipvrilh families •

2.7.2. Focusing family progress

2.7.3. Focusing on progremmalic solutions to difficult family experiences

2.7.4. Celebrating family progress , • . -

2.8. The Contractor shall ensure eli families receive referral and engagement, family
stabilization and service planning activities within thirty (30) days of referral.

2.9. The Contractor shall embed within the.tocal Olslrici Office on a semi-regular basis to
provide in-person consultation to DCYF field service staff es needed.

2.10. The Contractor shall develop and maintain records on each family, log contact and
interactions for each.family, and rr\ainiain documentalipn of senrice plans. They will
also maintain up'to-date farrtily information, including contact Information end service
history.

Phase 1: Roforral end Engagement, Family Slablllzation, Service Planning

2.11. Referral and Engagement: The Contractor shall orient family to the CB-VS
.(Community-Based Voluntary Service) and build a rapport so the family win be willing
to receive family slabilizaiion supports.artd participate in service planning.

2.1T.1. The Contractor shall partidpale In a warm handoff wilh ihe Department
assessment woiier to introduce the family and ensure a seamless transition from

• ' the Department assessmeni to CB-VS. . ^

2.11.2. The Contractor shall utilize an assessment tool specified by the Department.

2.11.3. The Contractor shall collect basic family Inlormation. including but not llmltfid to:

RFP-2021 DCYF.0J-COMMU- I MV
CmuBdof Ifd'iaiR,

10/14/2020
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New Hampshire Department of Health ar>d Human Services
Community-Based Voluntary Services

EXHIBIT B

2.11.3.1. Address and Phone number
2.11.3.2. Demographic Information including but rKl limited to; Race. Age of clients.

Numt>er of children In the honr\e, Gender of prfrT\3ry care giveits)

2.11.4. The Contractor shall process and make initial contact with famines within three
(3) days of receiving DCVF referral.

2.11.4.1. Referral days shall be deOned as indicated In Section 1.1., and Section 1.2
shall conclude on the close of business on the third (3"^) day. For example,
families referred on Friday. 10/2/20 at 3:00 p.m. w^d have until close of
business on Monday 10/05/20 to-establish initial contact! .

2.11.4.2. The Contractor sha\l maintain the ability to dictate staffing patterns that
most epproprialety align with this scope of work.

2.11.5. The Contractor shall ensure thai families who have disengaged from the program
remain connected with the services through persistent foOcw up irxiludlng txrt no}
limited to: Flexible schedubng and rescheduling. Telephone Correspondence.
Digital and personal interactions

2.11.6. The Contractor shall develop referral form m coliaboreiion with the Department.

2.12. Family Stabilization: The Contractor shall address immadidie needs of the family,
emphasizing what rweds may make it difficult to establish family engagement.
'Immediate needs include but are no) Ttmited to: Unstable housing. Leek of consistent
transportation, Inadequate or lack of health insurance. Dtsconiimjation of state
benefits. Health concerns, such as Gee outbreaks arx) bedbugs, hospitalizations.

2.12.1. The Contractor shall develop with the family a near-term plan end address eny
irrvnediate needs.

2.12.2. The Contractor shall facilitate purchases for the family to address immediate
needs, including but not limited to: Lice Treatment. House'hotd items. Cleanup
expenses, Gas cards. Items for children.

2.13. Sorvico Planning: The Contractor shall develop an Inliial service plan that reflects the
goats and perspectives of the family, the provider vA^rker assigned to support the
famUy and the needs idenlified by the assessment too).. .

2.13.1. The Contractor shall utilize an assessment tool, determined by the Department to
understand the needs of the family end identify opportunUies to reduce the rate of
subsequent DCYF involvement.

.2.13.2. The Contractor shall complete aO assessments within thirty (30) days, or within
Phase 1, as approprialo for family needs.

-6}

RFF-202lOCyFOKJOMMU-

0» ConUoaorlniiiau UR

Woy^nl P,5e3ol8



OocuSion Envoiopo 0; 6E7A7CB5^2MB77-6C78-77AC249B03P2

OocuStgnCnvctope 10: 72iE9DDB-O$C0<4E3£-eE70-2eFeEi'o9COEO

OooiS^n Envftcpe rO: A0eO2OlM>«72-4E7t-A27&-39OEMMOO7

Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community«Based Voluntary Services

EXHIBIT B

2.13.3. The Contractor shaD support the families In identftying goals for their time In and
after the service Is complete and ideniiiv and prioritize r>eeds and chailenges.

2.13.4. The Cofttrector ̂ all develop an Initial service plan in collsboratlon with the
family. r

2.13.5. The Contractor shail coltatMrate vwlth the Department to develop the service plan.

2.13.6. The Contractor shiii uHlize OepartmeN provided criteria, completed
ossessmenis. profeasionat judgement, and families input to Identify If DCYF-paid,
homo based services ere required.

2.13.7. The Contractor shall verify and update any family Information relevant to
preparation of Phase 2. as Indicated in Section 2.11.1, IrKtudinp but not limited
to: Ensuring basic demographic information is up to date, adjusting meeting

. frequency, duralbn and limes as needed

Phase 2: Service Managarnent, Transition and Closure

2.14. Service Managoment: The Contractor shall meet the family's needs and achieve the-
goalli identiried in the service plan.

2.14.1. The Contractor shall ensure the r^eeds of the famliy arc met and the goals
identified In the service plan are met.

\  .'4

2.14.2. The Contractor shall implement the service plan, coordinate critical services with
parents, children and youth, including but not limited to:

.. .2.14.2.1. Providing service coordination and system navigation

;; 2.14.2.2. Referring and connecting families to communlty.bascd scrwce providers,
'  includlng.bul not limited to: Mental Health, behavioral He^th, concrete supports

erxf services,.DCYF-paid home-based services

2.14.3. The Contractor shall utilize flexible funding, where applicable, to facilitate
purchase to help the family suocesafuily occess supports and services.

2.14.4. The Contractor shall pre-plan for formal trans'tlion IromCB-VS services. Including
for Instances where the family has only received minimal service management.

Other requirements

2.15. The Contractor shall obtain, at their expense, a Criminal BacKground ChecK for all
staff, including volunteers, providing direct services to client's under the contract.

"2.16. The Contractor shall ensure staff have no convictions for the following crimes:

r"^
RFP-2071-bCYF.03.COMMU- ■
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EXHIBIT B

2.16.1. A felony for child abuse or neglect, spousal abuse, and any crime against
children or adults, including but not limited to: child porrography. rape,
sexual assault, or homicide;

2.16.2. A vioteni or sexually related cime against a child or adult, or a crime «vhich
may indicete a person might be reasortebly expected to pose o threat to a
chiw or eduH; and

2.16.3. A felony for physical assault, battery, or a drug-related offense committed
wthrn the past frve (5) years in eccordance with 42 USC 671 (a)(sOXA){ii).

2.17. The Contractor shall report to CX^YF Central Intake any suspicion of child abuse or
neglact.

3. Exhibits Incorporated

3.1. The Coni/aclor shall use and disclose Protected Health Informaiion in compliance with
the Slaiyfards for Privacy of individually Identifiable Health Information (Privacy Rule) (45
CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health Insurance Portability and Accountabiliry Act
(HIPAA) of 1996. end in eccordarxre u<f(h (he attached Exhibit I. Busmess. Associate
Agreement, which has been executed by the parties.

3.2. The Contractor shall mar^ge all conrcdenlial Oala related to this Agreement In eccordance
with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Iniormation Security Requirements.

3.3. The Contractor shall comply wlih all Exhibits 0 through K. which are attached hereto and
Incorporated by reference herein.

4. Reporling Requirements

4.1. The Contractor shatl submit monthly reports, which Include, but are r>ot limited to: Data
to support performance improvement dctiviiles.

4.2. The Oepartmehi reserves the right to request end the Contractor agency shall provide
information on the following: What families beneOied from flexible fund purchases, how
much was spent per family (both average dr>d individual families), and what the flexible
funding money was sperit on.

4!3. The Depanmeni reserves the right to establish data reporting and deliverable
requlr^ents throughout the duration of the contract.

4.4. The Department reserves (he right to request service plan and other documentation,
as indicaled in Section 2.13. to comply with federal requirements upon request.

5. Performance Measures and Porfbrmanco Metrics

5.1. In order for tho Depa^rtmenl to monitor Contractor performance, the Contraclor end the
Department shall hold monthly provider meetings focused on performance topics
including but not (imited to: persistent follow-up on referrals, service completion, use
of home-based services,-long-term program outcomes, and equliable service delivery^

5.2. • The Conlraclor shall monitor the Conlraclor's performance by using the following
performance melfics:

•»»
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EXHIBITS

Service Activity; Key performance metrics;

o

R'
X

^ ft.

A. Reterral&
engagement

• % of referred families v^o enroll In CB-VS
♦ % of referred families who receive face-to-face meeiir>g within 3 days of
.  referral

B. Family
stabilization

• % of farr^lles in crisis that are stabilized wiiwn the first BO days

C. Service

planning
• % of families with a case plan wiihlr> the Hrsl 30 days •

w '

ft
0-J
.n
X

*

0. Service 1
1 management

•  fytedian U of days from Initial assessment to enrollment in additional
supports and services

• • % of families who are accessing DCYF paid honne-based services
• % of families who meet their service plan aoals

E. Transition
& closure

• % of families who are successfully established in or^oing supports
• % of families who see irhprovemenl In assessment tod (to be specified by

DCYF)
•  Family satisfaction with CB-VS (e.g.. Net Promoter Score)

Outcomes:

% of famiDes referred 10 C8-VS "
•  who have e substantiated allegation of malireaiment within 6 months Of the referral

date • ■

♦ who have a subsequent assessment (invesiigation) § and 12 months after CB-VS
discharge

the cioso of business on ihe last day of iho six (6) monih period.

5.3. Addllional Key output and process melrics:
•  f# of families currently enrolted In C8-VS and % of CB-VS slots currently used
•  « of families lhal ere offered CB-VS and % of offerkJ families who decide to receive

C0-VS

•  # of families who receive a warm handoff lo the CB-VS provider
•  <f of referrals, including Ihe numl>er in tlie defined target population dnd % of

referrals in the CB-VS definod target population
•  p of enrollaes. Including the number Inthe defined target population and % of

onrollees In the CB-VS defined target population
.  # of days from OCYF assessment start data lo referral dale
•  p of days from feferral date to first face-to-foce meeting
•. » of days from first face-to-lace meeting lo family stabilization date
•  ft of days from first face-lo-race meeting lo Initial service plan finailzalion dale
•  U of days from service management start dale lo service management end dale
•  ft of days from service management start date to service goal 1. 2;..., etc. achieved

date ^ r-: .
•  ft of days from transition start dale to closure date

r - • % of clients who respond to Nei Promoter survey

RFP.2021-DCYFOVCOMUU-
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-  EXHIBIT B r

5.4. The Contradof shall actively and regularly collaborate with the Department to enhance
conlraci management. Improve results, and adjust program delivery and policy based
on successful outcomes.

5.5. The Contractor may be required to provide other key data and meirtcs to the
Department, includir^ clieni-level demographic, performance, and service data.

5.6. Whore applicable, the Contractor shall coHect arxl share data with the tDepanment In
a format specified by the Department.

5.7. The Oepartment reserves the right to evaluate the program for effectiveness of service
delivered during the duration of the contract.

6. .Additional Terms

6.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Loglslatlvo Changes

6.1.1. The Contractor agreesThat, to the extent future state or federal legislation
or court orders may have an irnpact on the Services descnbed herein, the
Stale' has. the right to modily Service priorities and expenditure requirements
under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

6.2. Ffidaral Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate
Programs and Services

6.2.1. The Contractor shall submit, within ten (10) days of the Contract Eff^ive
Date, a detailed description of the communication access and language
assistance services to be provided to ensure* meaningful access to
programs.and/br serv'xies to indrviduals with limited English proHciancy:
individuals wtv) are deaf or have hearing loss; individuals who are blind or.
have low vision; ar>d individuals who have speech challenges.

6.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

6.3.1. All docurhenta. notices, press reledses. research reports and other rnaterials
prepared during or resulting from (he performance of the services of the
Contract shall include the following statement, *The preparation of this
(report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the Stale of New
Hampshire, Department of Health end Human Services, with funds provided
In part by the Stale of New Hampshire end/or such other funding sources
as were available or required, e.g., (he United Stales Department of Health
and Human Services."

6.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the contrdct shall have prior
approval from the Oepartment before printing, production, dislribul'on or
use, \

6.3.3. The Department shad retain copyright ownership for any end all original
materials produced, including, but not limited to:

6.3.3.1. Brochures.

'  6.3.3.2. Resource direclories.

RfP.202l-DCYFO«:OMMU.
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EXHIBIT B

6.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

^  6.3.3.4. , Poslers. >

6.3.3.S. Reports.

6.3.4. The ContrBCtor shall r>oi reproduce any malerials produced under (he
OOntrad withoul prior wriRen epproval.lrom the OeparvnerU.

7. Records

7.1. The Contractor shall keep records thai include, but are not famited to:

7.1.1. Books, rocords. documents and other electronic or physical data evidencing
and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the
pertormance of the Contract, and all income received or collected by the
Contractor.

7.1.2. All records rnust t>e maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and
practices, which suffictenily and property renecl all such costs and expenses.
ar>d which are acceptable to the Department, end to Include, without limitation,
all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as purchase
requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for malerials, invenlories.
valuations of In-Kind contribulions, lat>or time cards, payrolls, and other records
requesled or required by the DepartmenL

7.1.3. Stalisticai. enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records shafl include ell records of application and eligibility
(Including aD forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient),
records regarding the provision of services and all invoices sutvnitled to the
Department to obtain payment for such services.

• 7.1.4. Medical records on each patiant/recipienl of services.

7.2. During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder. the
Department, the United States Department of Heallh and Human Services, and any of

'their designated representatives shall have access -to ail reports and records
maintained pursuant to (he Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and
Iranscnpts. Upon the purchase by the Department of the maximum number of units-
provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation hereunder. the
Contract and ell the obligations of ihe parties hereunder (except such obligations as.
by the terms ol the Contract are lo be performed after the erxJ of Ihe term of this
Contract and/or survive the termination df the Contract) shall terminate, provided
however, that 11. upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department shall
disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder (he Oepartmerit^
shall retain the right, at its discretbn, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are
disallowed or io recover such sums from the Contractor.
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EXHIBIT C

Payment Terms

1. This Agreemen! is funded by:

1.1.100% General fur>ds. and as applicable as federal funding is anlicipated
(Of this conlract.

2. Fof the purposes of this Agreement:

2.1.The Department has ideniified the Contractor as a Sub-redpeint, in
accordance with 2 CFR 200.330.

\  : ■ •

2.2. The Contractor's Indirect Cost Rate of 24.2% applies in accordance with 2
CFR §200.414.

3. Start Up Grant

3.1.For the purpose of this agreement, the start-up funds in the amount of
. $2,146,521 shall be provided to (he Contractor, for the expenses incurred
to launch services.

3.2. The Department shall make one tump sum payment to the Contractor
within thirty (30) dayS of the ConlracI Effective Dale.

3.3.The Contractor shall submit a puarierly report to the Department within
fifteen (15) days of the end of the reporting period detailing all start up
expenditures.

3.4. All unspent funds shall be returned to (he Department twelve (12) rhonths
after the Contract Effective Date.

4. Ftex Funding r

4.1. For the purpose of this agreement, the Department shall allocate flexible
funding to (he Contractor agency to fullfill the work described Exhibil B,
Scope of Work; '

4.2.The pepartmenl shall make payment as follows:

4.2.1. One lump sum payment of $540,750 within thirty (30) day of the
•Conlreci Effective Date, equivalent to an estimated two years worth
of flexible funding.

4.2.2. The nessessity and the amount of additional flexible funding for
Slate Fiscal Year 2022 shall be determined by the Department, The
funds shall be provided only if additional funds are needed to
sustain Rexible funding. Any additional payment shall be' made
within thirty (30) days of the beginning of the State Fiscal Year.

4.2.3. One lump sum payment of $335,650 in State Fiscal Year 2023 of
the contract, to be paid within thirty (3|0) days, of the beginning of
the Stale Fiscal Year.

r
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EXHIBIT C

4.2.4. One lump sum payment of $33S.6S0 in State Fiscal Year 2024 of
the conlmct, to be paid within (30) days of the t)eginning of the state
fiscal year.

4.2.5. Additior>ai funding increases paid in State Fiscal Year 2023 end
Stale Fiscal Year 2024 shall be used to increase the account as
needed to an amount not to exceed S335,6$0.

4.3. Upon the Contract Completion Date, the Contractor shall return to the
OepartmenI any remaining flex funds within thirty (30) days.

4.4. The Contractor shall rxjt uilize flexible funds prior lb the initiai 'face-to-face'
(but can use It for the face-to4ace).

4.5. The Contractor shall manage flexible fund allocations in a manner
conslslenl with Exhibit B. Scope of Work, and shall have the ability to vary
the amount of flex funds spent to support each family (e.g., some families,
can gel $500 and others can get $150 or any other ammount needed to
Support the family).

4.6. The Department reserves the right to request and the Contractor shall
provide information on the foDowing;

4.6.1. What farniiies benefited from flexible fund purchases

, 4.6.2. How much was spent per family (both average and Individual families)

4.6.3. Whai the money was flexible funds were spent on

5. Daily Rate

5.1.For the purpose of this agreement, a daily rate will be awarded in the
amount of $35.00 per dieni (family) per day.

5.2. Payment shall be on a monthly basis and follow a process determined by
the Department. . "

5.3. Maximum allotment for daily rate expenditure by fiscal year Is as follows:

Sub-total: $16,217,250

Year 1: $1.1.1 a.OOb
Year 2: $5,034,750

Year 3; $5,034,750

Year 4: $5,034,750

'  5.4.Payment for daily rate shall be inllated six (6) months from the Contract
Effective Date and shall follow a process determined by the Department.

Wiypoim EiNDdC CcnlTKtOf milUts'
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EXHIBIT C •

6. Bonus Payment

6.1.For the purpose of this agreement, bonus paymenls shall be paid to the
Contractor agency upon delivery of the following:

6.1.1. Services and data as indicated in Exhibit 8. Section 2. Scope of
Wortt and Section 5. Performance Measures and Performance
f^eirics.

6.1.2. Submission oi standard payment request form(s).

6.1.3. Submission of any other supplemental bonus payment documents
specified by the Department.

6.2. A bonus payment shall be paid for each family who redeves a face-to-face
meeting within three (3) days of DCYF referral.

6.2.1. Bonus payment shall be $63.00 per family. This value is equal to 1%
of the value of a six(6) month long service.

6.2.2. Face-to-face and referral date shall be defined as indicated In Exhibit

B. Scope of Worlc. Section 1. Key Dennllions.

6.3.A bonus payment shall be paid for each family with no new open OCYF
case with six (6) months of referral.

6,3.1. Bonus payment shall be $63.00 per family. This value is equal to 1%
of the value of.a six (6) month long service.

6.l2. No new open DCYF cases and referral dale shajl be defined as
indicated in Exhibit B. Scope of Work,' Section 1, Key Definitions.

6.4. The Contractor and the Department shall send all client information in
relation.lo/or In support of payment, ullizing a secure email system.

6.5.Payment shall be on a monthly basis in an amount specified by the
Contractor agency on appropriate documenlallon.

6.6. The maximurn allotment for this contract for each fiscal year Is as follows:

Total allocation: $317,710
»  Vr

Year 1: $46,147

,  Year 2: $90,521

Year 3: $90,521

Year 4: $90,521

6.7.The Conlraclor shall request bonus payments under the following
processes:

6.7.1. % of fdmiiles who receive a face-to-face within 3 days of referral.

Wflypotal
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EXHIBIT C

V;

6.7.1.1. The Conlractor shall enter data into a standard
spreadsheel In order to calculcale the bonus amount
they are requasling.

6.7.1.2. The Conlractor shall (hen send that spreadsheet back to
identified Department staff. The Department shall review
the spreadsheet for accuracy on a consistant basis.

6.7.1.3. The Contracior shall request payment on a standard
form in an amount equal to that which was calculated on
the spreadsheel.

6.7.1.3.1. The form shall be agreed upon by the
Department and the Conlractor.

6.7.2. % farnilies who do not have a case opened within six (6) months of
• referral dale:

6.7.2.1. The Department shall share with the Contracior. on.a'
monthly basis, a list of clients who have had a case
op^ed with DCYF. ,

6.7.2.2. Using (he information from (his list, the Contractor shall
request payment on a standard form, agreed upon by (he
Department and the Contractor. .

6.6.The Department reserves the right todelay the monthly payout of bonuses
so long as they give prior notice with the Conlractor. Rationale for delays
shall Include but are not limited to:

6.6.1. Absenteeism of finance staff

6.6.2. IT updates or mainlinece. etc.

i'V . 6.9. The Department reserves the right to conduct audits of the Contractors
bonus payment reporting and allocations.

7. tn lieu of hard copies, all Invoices rnay be assigned an electronic signature and
emailed to DCYFlnvoicestgdhhs.nh.gov. or Invoices may be mailed to:

Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

8. The Contractor musl.pro.vide the services in Exhibit B, Scope of Services, fn
compliance with funding requirements.

9. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in
whole Of in part in ̂ e event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions
of Exhibit B. Scope of Services.

t.
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EXHIBIT C

10. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that
funding under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or In pah. in the event
of non-compliance with any Federal or State law. rule or regulation applicable
to the services provided, or if the said services or products have not been
salisfactohly completed in accordance with the ternf^s and conditions of this
agreement.

11. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to adjusting amounts within' the price llmitetibn and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Yearn and budget class tines through the
Budget OfTtce may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justined.

12. Audits " • .

12.1. The (^nlractoris required to submit an annual audit to the Department
11 any of the following conditions exist:

12.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
(  federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part

200. during (he most recently completed fiscal, year.

12.1.2. Condition B • The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, jli-b, pehaintng to charitable
organizations receiving support of $l .000,000 or more.

12.1.3. Condition C • The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
subrhil an annual financial audit.

12:2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the
Department within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal
year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part
200, Subparl F of the Uniform Administrative Requiremenls. Cost

■ Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards. i

12.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an

' arinual financial audit performed by an .independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

12.4. In addition to. and not in any. way In limitalion of obligations of-the
Contract, it is understood and agreed by (he Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any-state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all paymenis made under ihe
Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.
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CERriFtCATtQM REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUtREMENTS

The Vendor Identified In Section 1.3 of the Generel Pfovlsions egrees to comply with the provisions of
SectioosSlSt-StSO of the Orug-Free Workplece Aclol 1988 (Pub. L. 10(^690. Title V. SutTtiUe D: 41
U.S.C. 701 el seq.). and further agrees to have (he Conliaclor's represerrtetive. as Identified in Sections
1.11 end l.l2of1he Generel Provisions execute the following Ceniricotion:

ALTERNATIVE I • FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIOUAI.S

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION . CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

This certification Is required by the regulations implemenUng Sections 51 Si St 60 ol the Drug-Free
vyorliplaceActof 1988(Pub.L. 100-690. Tille V. SuWItlc D; 41 U.S.C. 701 eiseq.). The January 3i.
1089 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25. 1990 Federal Register (pages

■21681-21691). and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-granlecs and sub-
conlraclors). prior lo oward. that they wtll maintain a drug-free worXplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a granlce (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that Is o State
may elect.to make one certification to the Oepartmeni In each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant durlng lhe federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below Is a.
material represenlation of fact upon which reliance l$ placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shaD be grounds for suspension of paymartis, suspension or
termination of grants, or govammenl v4de suspension or debarment Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner
NH Oepartmeni ol Health and Human Servkes
129 Pleasant Street.
Concvd. NH 03301-6SOS

t. The grantee certifies that It wfll or will continue lo provide a d/ug-lree tvorkplace by:
1.1. • Pubfishlng a statement notifying employees that the urUawfufl menufadure. distribution,

dispensitig, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited In the grantee's.
' - workplace and specifying the actions that win be'taken against-employees for violation of such

prohibition:
t.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free.awareness program to inform employees about

1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of mainlalning a drug-free workplace:
1.2:3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, end employee assistance programs: and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

^ occurring in the workptace;'
,1.3. Making It a requirement thai each ^ployee to be engaged Ir^ the perforrnance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (8);
1.4, Notifying the employee in the siatcmeni required by paragraph (a) that, as a cqndlUon of

employment under Ihe granl, the employee will
,1.4.1'. Atyide by the terms of the statement: and
1.4.2. Notify Ihe employer in writing of his or her conviction (or a violation ol 8 criiTiinal drug

statute occurring In the workplace no later than five uterydar days alter such
conviction; . .

1.5. Notifying the agency in vsriiing. within ten calendar days after reccMng notice under
sobparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Erhployers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to eve^ grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the FederaUgency

"wPt
6jtf<0ilO-Cc«1iSc4Cenfee»r4ii<On»Qfi<e Vendor '

Wofk(riic*R*<)uiremenis 10/14/2020
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Holke shad include (he
identification numt>er(s) of each affecied Qrani:

1.6. Tailing one of the foUo^Ung acllons, v4(hin 30 calerujar days of receMrtg notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2. with respect to any employee Mho is'so convlcled
1.6.1. Taxing epproprlaie personnel action against such an employee, up to and incfuding

termination, consistent with the regiriremems of the RehabJiiistion Act of 197-3, as
emended; or

t .6.2. Requiring such employee to participate salisfecloniy in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by o Federal. State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other opproprtsie agency:

Making o good faKh effort lo cortiinue to matntatn'e'druB>(ree workplace ihrough
implemerttaiionofparagrdphs'1.1,1.2. 1.3.1.4. t.s. and i.6.

1.7.

2. The granite may inaert In the space provided betow the siiefs) for Ihe performance of work done in
conne^lipnwith ihe speciricgianl.

Race of Performahce fstreet address, c'lty, county, stale, zip code} (list each location)

Check □ if there ere workplaces on file that are not Identified here.

lO/ia/2020

Date

Vendor Name:

Name:'^'5Vf*- 'ATverez De Toledo
Tllle. President and CEO

CUDMOrilOfl)

EihiDh D - CcnificiilMVfftQsrdlno DAgPiee
Wortp(«c» RequXamenU
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CERTIRCATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The vendor idcnuned (n .Section t .3 of the General Provisions agrees to comphr wiih the provisions of
Sect!or> 319 of Public lew 101-121. Goverrtmenl vsnde Guidance for New Restrictions on l^bylng. end
31 U.S.C. 1352. end further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the roiiovt4ng Certificbtion:

us DEPARTMENT OP HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

' Programs (indicate eppbcabte program covered):
'Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Tilts IV'A •
'Child Support Enrbrcement Program under Tide IV-D
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX .
'Medicald Program under Tide XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title vt
'Child Care Oevelopmeni Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, lo the best of his or her krtowiedge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been'paid or will be paid by or on behatf of the undersigned, to
any person lor ln(luenc(r>g or attempting to Influence an ofTrcer or employee of any agency, o Member
of Congress, on officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress In
connection with the 8wardlr>g of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amoftdmeni, or
modification of any Federal conuact, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (qr>d by specific mention
sutHgranlee or sub-conlreclor).

2*. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting lo influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an ofTicer or employee of Cor>gress. or an employee of a Member of Congress in correction with (his
Federal contract, grant. I'oan. or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-graniee or sub
contractor). (he undersigned shan'complele and submit Standard Form ILL, (Oisclosure Form to
Report Lobbying. In accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E:i.)

3. The undersigned thai) repube thai the language of this cehiricaiion be included In the award
document for sub-awards at ell tiers (including subconlracls. sub-grenls. and conlrocis under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all tub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material represenietion of fact upon which reSancc was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into.'* Submission of this certlfcalion Is a prerequisite for making of entering into this
transaction Imposed (>y Section 1352, Tide 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certificaiion snaUbe subject too cM) penally of not less than Si0.000 end not more than St00,000 for
each such failure.

Ver^orName:

10/14/7020

bate ^ KfaftBrWVfi^'A'lvarce oc Toledo

t»Y)iL rtUarvh Pu VLiM

Tide:
President and ceo

EahWl E -CcnOtlSonRepinJinoLoSbytflg • Vendwtffeiti^
10/14/2020
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• CEHTIFICATtON REGARDING DEBftRMEKT. SUSPEHSjQN
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Conlraclor idenlif«d in Section 1.3 of the General Previsions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive OfTice of the President. Executive Order 12S49 and 45 CFR Pa/176 regarding Oebarment.
Suspension, and Other ResponslbiSty Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
represeruative. as ideniifted in Sections t.ii and V12 oi me Generei Provisions execute the foOowing
CeitiftceUon;

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
t. By signing ond cubmintng this proposal (contract), the prospective primaiy participani is providing the

certlftcailon sol out betow.

2. The inabitity of s person to provide tho cediilcatiOA required below will not r^ecessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered Iransacllon. If necessary, the prospective participani shaO submit an
explanalior) of why It cannot provide the certiticatian. The certification or explanation wlD be
considered In connection with the NH Department of IHealth and Human Services' (OHMS)
dctcrmlnationwhelheftocnterintothlitransaction. Hosvever, failure of the prospective p^ary
participant to furnish a certification or on explanation shad disquanfy such person from participation In
this transaction.

3. The certincation in this dauseis a material representation of fact upon which retiar>ce was placed
when QhhS determined to enier into'this transaction. If it is later determined'thai the prospective .
primary participant Knowngly rendered an erroneous certitication.'ln addition to olher remedies -
available to the Federal Government, OHHS may termmate this transaction for cause or dofautl

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immeidiaie writterv notice to the 0.HH$ agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any limo the prospective primary partidpani learns
that its cerHricatlon was erroneous when submitted or'has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms 'covered transectioni* 'deb8rTed.**suspendcd,* 'ineliglbfe.' lower tier covered
transocllon.* 'participant.* 'person.* 'primary coveted transaction.* 'principal.* 'proposol,' and
'voluntarily excluded/ as used in'this clause, have the meanings set out In the Definitions and
Coverege sections of (he rules impiemenling Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Port 76: See the.
attached definliions.

6. Tho prospective primary participani agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into. It shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transBcUon with o person who Is debarred, suspended, declared Ineligible, or voiunlariiy excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by-DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clauso titled 'Certification Regarding Debarmenl, Suspension. Ineligibility end Voluntary Exclusion •
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,? provided by OHHS, wilhoul modification, in all iower^llor covered
transactions and in an so^iiatipns for lower tier covered transactions.

6. A participant In a covered t/ensaction rnay rely upon a certification ot a prospective participani In a
lower tier covered transaction lhal it is not debaned, suspended. inoGgibie, or involuntarily excluded
from the.covered transaction, unless it knows that the certifcaiion is' erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which It determines (ha eligibiliiy of its principals. Each
participani may. but is not required lo, check (he Nonprocurcmeni List (of excluded parties}.

9.. Nothing contained in the forego'ing shall be-ccnstrued to require oslabllshment of o system ol.r^ords
In order lo render In good faith tho certification required by this dause. The knowledge and ■

Exhfet F - CwtWcallon Rtjiidlng Suipertiiori Coftlrxaw bVltab^—■ " ■ ■
Aft4 0ihc'RMpbrubSZyM«twn 10/14/2070
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Information of o partidpanl is oqI required to exceed (bat w^'ch is normsOy possessed by a pAidenl
person in tbo o.'dlriary course of business deaSngs.

10. Except tor trsnsactlons aumortzed under paragraph 6 of these (nstnjctions. if o partitipar^l In a
covered trar^action knowingly enters Into o tower tier covered Uansadion with a person wtio b
suspended, debarred. IneEgibta, or votunudly-czduded from psrticfpatior> In (his transaction, in
edtfUion to other rem^ies avaOabta to the Federal government, ohhS rhay lerrrdnate this transaction
for cauae or defoulL

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. Tho prospecli^ primary .particip&ni certifies to the best of its knowledgo and belief, that it and Us

prirtdpals:
11.1. arenotpresen^debanad, suspended, proposed for debarmenl, declared Inellglbta. or

voluntorUy exc^ded from covered iransacilcns by ony Federei depertmeni or ogency.
11.2. have r\ol within a three^year period preceding thb proposal tcontmcl) been convicted of or had

e dvQ judgment rendered Dgeinsl th^ for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federei, Slate or [ocal)
transaction or a contract urtder o public tiansaclion; vtoiation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or" commisstoft ot embealemenl. thefl. forgery, bribery, (alsificalion or destnictlcrt of
rocords, maldng false statements, or recefving stolen property.

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise crtmlnelly or civiiiy charged by a governmcnlaj entity.
(Federal; State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumeroted in paragraph (l}(b)
of this cerVRcotion; and

11.4. have not wtlhin a three-year period preceding this appEcatiorYproposal had one or more pubSc
transadlons (Federal, State or'iocai) terminated for cause or dofsull

12. Where tho prospective prtmary partidpenl Is unable to certify to ony of tho stoternents In this
certificdtion. such prospoclive pertidpant shall attach an exptanallon to thb proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By s'igning end submitting (Ns lower tier proposa) (contract), the prospective lower tier partidpdnt, e$

defined In '45 CFR Part 76. ceitifias to the best of its knowledge end belief thai it and Its prindpats:
.13.1. ere not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, dedarod Ineiigible. or

voluntarily excluded from pa/lldpdtion in this tmnsaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospectivo lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective portidpanl shall attach en exptanalion to this proposal (conlracO-

14. The prospective lower.Uer paitldparu further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that li i^I]
Include this cbuse entitled 'Ccrtificalron Regarding Debarment, Suspension, inelrglbility. end'
Voluntary Exclusion • Lower Tier Covered TronsocUons.* without rnoditfication In ell lower Uer covered
trensactions end In ell sollcitaUons for lower tier covered IrensscUons.

Contractor Name:

1  KT-

xp/14/2020 I /ItioaTV^ Pc fUo/e
DC Toledo

f-/ pres.ident and CEO

EiNbS F - CcitifceileA Resiidhe Oebtnnenl. Sutpenslon ConWcto/ lAltii)}
ArO OthcfRffipomlbfSrytoaon 10/14/2020
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CEftTIPICATIQW OP COMPUANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEOERAt NONOtSCRIMINATtOW. EQUAL TREATWEMT OF FAITH-BASEO ORGANIZATIONS AND

• WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTtONS

The Contractor (dandrted in Section 1.3 of the GenersI Provisions agrees by slonslure of the Cbnl/8Ctor'&
representative oi identified In Sections 1.1 f end 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the foD^ng
certiTtcotion:

Coniraclor will compfy. ertd wlllrco«/lre eny subprantets or subcontractors to comply, with eny eppticable
federal nondiscrimlnailon requirements, which may Include;

• the Omnibus Crime Control end Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 tJ.S.C. Section 37d9d) which prohibits
recipients ol federal funding ur>der this statute from discnminaiing. either in enrtploymeni practices or In
ihe debvery of servlces or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national ohgin. arid sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan; ■

• the JuvenQe justice Delinquency Prevention Acl of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligeOons ot the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibiied from dlscdminaling. either in emptoymenl practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act inctudes Equal
Employment Opportunity Ptan requkremenls;

• the CM) Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits rcdplcnls of federal rmandal
assbtance from dbchmlnating on the basis of race, color, or r%aiiortal origin in any program or activity):

- the Retiabililabon Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). which prohlblis recipients of Federal rir>arKi8l
a$sblor>ce-from discrwuneiing on the basis of dbebiiity, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits. In any program or acbvity;
• the Americans with OisabiElies Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections >2131-34)..which prohibits
disc/lminalion and ensures equal opportunity for persorvs with drsdbiliilcs in employmenl. Stale arid tocal
government services, public Dccommodetions. commercial (aciGlies. and transportation;

rthe Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681. 1683. 1685-66). which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assbled ediicaUon programs;

• the Age Discrimination Act of 1975,(42 tj.S.C. SecDons 6106-07). which prohit)its dischmlnolron on ihe '
basis of pge |n programs or activities receiving Federal rmancial assistance, K does not include'
employrnenl discrimlnalioo;

• 26 C.F.R. pL 31.(U.S. Depanmeni of Justice Regulations - OJJOP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pi 42
(U.S. OepartmenI of Justice Regulations •> Non'dischmhelk>r>; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protecijon of ihe l8>vs for falih'based and community
organUations); Executive Order No. 13559. wtilch provide fundamental principles 8r>d policy-making
chioria for partnerships with faltiv^sed and nelghbori«od organizations;

• 26 C.F.R. pi. 38 (U.S. Oeparlmeni of Juslico Regulailons - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
QrganlzaOons); and Whislleblowef protections 4i U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act(NDAA) for Faca) Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2.2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Cqntraci Employee Whislfeblower Proteciions. which protects employees against
reprbal tor ceftain fistic blo<^ng aclrvilles In connection with federal grar^ts arid contracts.

The ceritricate set out below is a maicriai represenisllon of fact upon which reliance Is placed when Ihe
egency awards (he grant.. False certiricatlpn or violailon of ihe certification shaB be grounds for
suspenson.of paymenis. suspension or. (crminaiion ot grants, or government wide suspension or
'debarmenL

EdftbG

Ccnfxoorlnhlili
I 'M H'Wn'ag • VtorV (vMr Opvturbn*

• .4 :

vi'M 10/14/2020
«»-. iwi/M PigeiolJ Oi»c



DocuSign Envotopo 10: 6E7A7CB5^2A-4B77^E70.77AC2498O3F2

OocuSipn EnwtoM 10:771EraD&O3E(ME)£-d£70-26f QEtODCOEO

OOGUSI^) CnvfloM 10; ABtO70iai>«72-«E7lwa7B-99aEeAUMO2

Now Hampshire Oopartment of Hoallh and Human Scrvicea
EahlbllG

In the event a Fedef&i or Siele court or Federal or S^te administrative agerKy makes a finding of
discrimir\aiion after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
ageinsi a recipient of fur)ds..tha recipient wilt forward a copy of the finding to the Office tor CivD Rights. io
(he applicable conlracUnig agency or division within the Department ol Health er^d Human Services, and
to the Departrrient of Health and Humar>'Sarvices Office ol ihe Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section i .3 of the General Provisions agrees by stgnaiuro of the Coni/acior't
repreienlativo as idcnlif«d in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of (he General Provisions, le execute Ihe following
certirieatlon:

I. By signing and submltling this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provfslorxa
indicated above.

'  Contractor Name:

»r

10/14/2020 I UUyvA, (?(. UiM
Date Namenf5^7«""A"iv«ftx oe Toledo

President and CCD

Edilbil G

Ccntraaor Inbttlt
¥ Cu I nu p¥U>i^mrmr0 woiwrtii 11,1 1 <w l4»—>1V

[m
10/14/2020
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CERT1PICATI0N REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBftCCO SMOKE

PuUic Low 103-227. Part C.- Enwonmentol Tobocco Smoke, otso known as the Pro-Childfen Act of 1994
(Act), roduifos thai smoking not be permitted in any portion of eny indoor facaity owned or ̂ ased or
ooniraclod for by an entity and used roulir^ly or regularly for the provrslon of health, day core. educalior>,
or library services to c^ldreA under the age ci 18, it Pie services ere tur>ded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal granL contracL loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does nol apply to children'a aervicas provided in private residences, fadfilies kmded sdefy by
Medicare or M^icaid funds, 'and portions of faciitias used for Inpaiient drug or alcohol Ireatmenl. Failure
10 comply with the provisions of the law may result in tha imposition ol a chrll mOr>etery penalty ot up to
HOOO per day arxiror the imposition of an administrative compOar^ order on th'e responsible entity.

The Contractor idcntiriod in Section i .3 of the General Provisions agrees, by tignaluro of the Contractor's,
representative as identified in Section i.ll end l.i?ollhe General Provisions, lo execute the following
certificoiion:

1. By signing and subrr^ing this contract, tne Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts lo comply
with all eppliceble provisions ol PubGc Law 103-227. Part C. krKiwn as the Pro-Children Act of 1^4.

Comracior Name:

10/14/J020

Dele

I  aijMrv^ Pl
Name:"yi^ii^J'^A'lvire2 oe Toledo
Title:

Presider)t and CEO

CuOHHSntOh)

EKhbl H - C«rS3ea0on RegitCmp
ErnfaoMn«n|»IToe*cc« Sm6k«

Pigc I ci«

Conir*€iO> tnlbb

['mdt
Oftte

10/14/2020
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTAfllLITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

. The Conirector.identtfied in Section 1.3 pf (he General Provisions of (he Agreement ̂ rees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability end Accountebilily Act, Public Law 1CM>191 and
wi(h.the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individuaity Identitoble Health information. 45
CFR Paris 160 and 164'applicable to business associales. As defined herein. 'Business
As&odaie' shell mean the Contrector and-subcontraclors end agents of the Contractor (hat
receive, use or have access to'protected heailh mformalion under this Agreement and 'Covered
.60117/ shall mean the Slate of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

i1) Definltiona.

a. 'Breach', shall have the same meaning as the lerm 'Breach' in section 164.402 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associata'has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45. Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered Enlitv' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. 'Designated Rigcord Set* shall have the same meaning as the term 'designated record set'
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. 'Data Aaoreoation* shali have the same meaning as the term 'data aggregation' In 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. 'Health Care Ooerations* shall have the same meaning as the lerm 'health care operalions"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501. » ^

g. 'HITECH Ad* mear>s the Heailh Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act. TitleXIII, Sublille 0. Pad 1 & 2 of the Arnerican Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. 'HIPAA' means the Heailh Insurance Portability and Accountablilty Act of 1996. Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy end Security of.Individually Identiriabte Health
Information. 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

I. 'Individuar shell have the same meaning as the term Tndivlduar In 45 CFR Section 160.103
end shall include a person who qualifies as a parsonai representative in accordar^e with 45
CFR SectionT64.501(g).

j. 'Pfivacv Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Heailh
information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promutgated under HIPM by the United States
Department of Heailh and Human Services.

k. 'Protected Health information' shall have,the same nrreanlng as the lerm 'proleclcd heailh
information' In 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or.received^
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. j ,

3/2014 EiMMl ConUiOor
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I. •RgguifedbvLaw* shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CPR
Section 164.103.

m. 'Secretary' shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Heatth and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. 'Seqjrltv Rute' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health information at 45 CFR Part 164. Subpan C. and amendments thereto.

0. 'Unyy^ured Proteeled Health Informalion" means protected health Infom^llon that is not
secured t)y a technology standard that renders protected health Information unusable,
unreadable, or Indecipherable to urtauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a elandards developing organization that is accredited by the American Naiional Standards
Institute.

p. nther Definitions - All terms not oiherwise defined herein shall have Ihe meaning
eslablished urtder 45 C.F.R. Parts 160.162 and 164. as amended from tin* to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Uae and Disclosufe of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use. disclose, mainlein or transmit Protected Health
InformaUon (PHI) excepl'as reasonably necessary to provide Ihe services outlined under
Exhibll A of the Agreement. Further. Business Associate, including but not limited to ell
hs direclori. officers, employees and agents, shaD not use. disclose, maintain or transmit
PHi In any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI;
I. For the proper rnanagement end odministration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law. pursuant to the lerms set forth in paragraph d. below; or •
III. For data aggregation purposes.for the health care operations of Covered

Entity. .
..4

c. To the extent Business Associate Is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to e
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confrdenlially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which It was
disclosed to (he third party; and (ii) an agreemenl from such third party to notify Business
Associate. In accordance with the HIPAA Privacy. Security, and Breach Notificatton
Rules of any breaches of the conr«denliality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. . The Business Associate shall not. unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreemenl. disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that il is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to Object to the disclosur^nd
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the:

3/2014
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Associate sHaP refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted ell
remedies.

e. tr the'Covered Entity notiries the Business Associate tha.t Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additlonsl restrtcUons over end eboye those uses or disclosures 0/ security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Busiriess Associate
shell be bound by such edditlonel restrictions and shell not disclose PHi in violation of
such eddltlonst restrictions or>d shall eblde by ony odditibnel security safeguards.

(5) Obligations and Activities of Business Aasbciato.

a. ~ The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer Immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disciosure of protected
healih information noi provided for by.the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment wheh It becomes
aware of any of the above Situelions: The risK-essessmenl shall indude, but not be "
limited to:

0  The nature and extent of the protected heetlh information involved, including the
types of identiners and the likelihood of re-idenlirtcation;

0  The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disciosure was made:

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0  The extent to which the risk to the protected health Inlormation has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours-of the
breach and immediately report the findings of (he risk assessment In writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy. Security, end
Breach Notincetion Rule. ^

d. Business Associate shall make evailable all of Its Internal pofides and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by (he Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity (0 the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's corhpliance with KIPAA arid the Privacy and
Security Rule.

6: Business Associate shall require ad of its business associates that receive, use or have
>; access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to (he same

restrictions end conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, Including
the duty (0 return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business disrate
agreements with Contractor's Intended business associates, who will be receivi/^

3/20U ' EedUll ConVedor
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pufsuani to iMs Agreement, with rights of enforcement end indemnlficetion from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph 913 of (he standard
contract provisions (P'37} of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of

. protected health Infonrtallon.

f.. ' Within five (&} business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Assoo'ate shall rr\atie available during rTormal busirtess hours at Us offices an
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use end disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabiir^ Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's com^^iance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set lo (he
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an Individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CPR Section 1$4.S24.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in apeslgnaled Record
Set. the Business Associate shall make such Phil avaifable to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such emendmeni lo enat^ Covered Entity to fulfill its
obfigal'ions under 45 CPR Section 164.526.

I. Business Associate shall documeni such disclosures of PHt and Informatioh related to-
such disclosures os would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an c
Individual for en accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CPR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receivli^ a wrirten request from Covered Entity for e
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI. Business Associate shall make evaQable
to Covered Entity-such infonmalion as Covered Entity may require to fulfill Us obiigeiions
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance wiih 45 CPR
Section-164.S28.

k. . In the event any Individual requests access to. amendment of. or accounting of PHI
directly frotn the Business Associate, (he Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Eritity shaP have (he
responsibility of respbnding lo forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Eniity or the Business
Associate to viotate HIPAA arid (he Privacy and Seturity Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the Individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such resportse as soon as practicable.

I. Wiihin ten (iO) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall nol retain any copies or back«up tapes of such PHI. If return or
.destruction Is not feasitde. or the disposition of the PHI has t>een otherwise agreed to in

*  the Agreement. Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHi and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to i
purposes that make the return or-deslrucllon (nfeasible. (or so long as Business
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Associate maintains such PHt. If Coveretf Entity, in Its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has t>een destroyed.

(4) ObHoations of Coveroci Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or timltationfs) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices.provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CER.Section
164.520. to Uie extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use Of disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall prorhptty notify Business Associate of any changes In, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuats whose PHt may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under.ihis Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506or45CFRSeclion164.50B.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHt that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
.to the eiilenl thai such restriction may aKect Business.Associate's use or disclosure of.
PHI.

(5) Tefmlnaticn for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms ar>d conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediatety terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may cllher immediately
terrtiinate the Agreement or provide on opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach wiiNn a limeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report (he
viotation to the Secretary.

(6) MlsceHanoous

a.r Oermltions and Reoutatofv References. All terms used, hut not otherwise defined herein,
Shan have the same meaning as those lerrns In the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from lime to lime. A reference in the Agreement. aS amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Seclion as in effect or as
emended.

b. Amendment. Covered Eniirv and Busir^ss Associate agree to take such action as Is '
necessary to amend the Agreen^ent, from time to lime as Is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA. the Privacy and
Security Rule, end applicable federal end slate law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights •
with reaped to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d.. Interpretation, the parties agree thai any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be rjcwived
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA. Ihe Privacy end Security Rule.
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Seoreoatton. If any term or condiiion of Ihis Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(8} or circumstar^ca Is held invalid, such Invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to Ihis end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severebte.

Survivai. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding (he use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the proiecllons o1 the Agreement in section {3) I. the'
defense and indemnini^Uon provisions of section (3). e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37). shall survive the lermlnaiion of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Oepsrtmsnt of HaaJlh sod Human Services warpoinc

Tt>eiEtate 1 yNasaeigJLibp Contreclor
1 Joseph E. Ribsam. Jr, tiijUd

Signature 0^ Authorized Representative Signature ofAulhorized Representative

Joseph E. atbsas, jr. eorjt Alvarez oe Toledo .

Nanne of Authorized Representative Name 61 Authorized Representelive

Director President and -CEO

Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Represenleiive

10/15/2020 10/14/2020

Date Date ■"
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CEWTIFICATtOW REGARDING THE PgPgRAL FUHDING ACCOUNTABIirTY AND TRANSPARENCY

ACT IFFATAl COMPLIANCE

The Federal FundinQ Accountability end Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime ewardees of indivtdua)
Federal Qients equal te or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or efter October i. 2010, to report on
data related.to executive compensation and assodaied nrsl-tiar sub-grents of $25,000 or more. If the
iniUaf award Is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modificalions result In a total oward equa) to or over
$25,000. (he ewam is subiaci 10 the FFATA reporting roqulremenls. as of the ddio of the award.
In occordence with 2 CFR Part 170 (Repor1ir>g Subewerd end Executive Compensatiort In/ormatlon). the
Department ̂  Health end Human Services (OHHS) must report the following Information lor any
subeward Of contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements: .
1. Name of entity . ' :.v
2. Amount of oward

3. Funding age/Ky
4. NMCS code for contacts f CFOA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award tiBe descriptive of (he purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Pfinople place Of p^ormence
0. Unique Idenbfier of the entity (DUNS 0)
10. Total compensation end names of the lop five executives if: .>

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and ihoM
revenues ere greater than $2SM ennuelly and

10.2. Corhpenselron inhymation is rtot atready available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required dele by the end of the month, plus 30 days, In which
(he eward or award emendmenl b made.
The Contractor Identiried in Section 1.3 of (he General Provisions egrses to oompty with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accou/ttablGiy and Transparency Acl Puptic Lew 108>262 end Public Lew 110-252,
ond 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward end Executive Compensation Information}, end further agrees
to have the Conlrector's represenlalive. as identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certificelior^:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as oulCr^ above to the NH
Oepartmenl of Health and Human Servi^s and to compty with all eppliceble provisions of the Federal
Financial Accounioblilty and Transparency Acl.

Coni/ector Name; i?:

w/ii/zolo [ feijflL pu
Dili 3 Ttsiew

TiUe: President end CEO

C-o»
(MPt

Eeiidli J-CwU&ceiionRegwaingtheFeawtlfundno Cent/Kter MUeb
AccounUbC&y And Tientptrancy Act (FFATA) Compfisnu ' 10/14/2020
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FOftMA ' .
\

A& the Contract^ identifie<f In Section t.3 of the General Provisions, I certify thai (he responses to (he
below b'sled Questions ere true end accurate.

09SS0590S .
1. The DUNS number lor your entity Is:

3. In your business or orgentietion's preceding complolod fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (t) 60 percent or more of your annual gross revenue In U.S. federal corttracis, subcontracis,
loans, grants. sub«grents, ano/or cooperative agreements; and {2} 625.000.000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, sut^rants. artdror

•  cooperative ogrecmor^ts?

NO YES

If the answer to 62 above is NO. stop here ■

If the answer to 02 above is YES. please answet the fcOowing-.

3. Ooos the pubDc have access to information about the compensalior^ of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports Hied under section f 3{a) or t5(d> of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (iS U.S.C.7.8m(e}. 78^d)) or section 6104 of the inlemal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO -YES

If ths answer to 63 above is YES. stop here

If the answer to 63 above is NO, please answer the fotiowirig;

The names and compensaliOA of (he Hve rriost highly compensated officers in your buslrtess or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:.

Name;.

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Ari^nt:

cuo>*<s>i>eii>
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions •

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. 'Breach* means the loss of conlrol. compromise, unauthorized disciosyre,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized eccese. or any simitar term referrirtg (o
situations whoro parsons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
Informallon. whether physical or eteclronlc. With regard to Protected Health
Information, * Breach' shaD have the same meaning as the term 'Breach* In Action
164.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. 'Computer Security Irxndent* shdU have tbe same meaning 'Computer Security
Incident* In. section two (2) of NIST Pubfication 800-61. Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide. National institute of Starvlards and Technology. U.S. Department
of Commerce. •

3. 'ConfidWitia! Information' or "Confidential Data' means all confidential Information
disclosed by one party to the other such as at! rr>edi^l. health, financial, public
assistance tenefils and personal information Including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records. Protected Health Information and
Personatly Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the Stale of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Sen/ices <OHHS} or accessed in the course of performing contracted
service - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition Is governed by
slate or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not llmiled to
Protected Health information (PHI). Personal Information (PI). Personal Financial
InforrriaUon (PFI), Federal Tax Information ,(FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN).
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential lnformaifor>.

4. 'End User' means any person or entity (e.g.. contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, eubconiraclor. other downstream user, etc,) that receives ,
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accounlabitity Act of 1998 end the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. ''Incident* means an act (hat potentially violates an explicii or Implied security pcyicy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the. unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changas to system hardware,
firmware, or software characleristics without the owner's knowledge. Instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and rrvisrouling of physical or electronic

—w
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OHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, a!) of which may have the potenlia) to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use. disclosure, modificdtion or deslructioo.

7. 'Open Wireless Networh' means any netwotit or segment of a network that Is
not desigriaied by the Stale of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, end
approved, by means of the Stale, to transmit) wlli t>e considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI. PFI.'
^Hi or cortrideniial OHHS data.

8. 'Personal Information* (or 'Pf) means Informalion which can be used to distinguish
or (race an Individual's identity, such as Ihfir name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, btomeiric records, etc..
Stone, or when comt>ir«d with other persor^l or Identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name. etc.

.  9. 'Privacy Rule' shafl mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Idenlifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 154, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. 'Protcfctad Health Infonnaiion' (or 'PHI') has the same meanmg as provided in the
definition of 'Prolecfed Health Information' in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103; . .

11. 'Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164..Subpar1 0. and amer>dments
thereto.

12. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information' means Protected Health Information (hat is
not secured by a techrwiogy standard that renders Protected Health information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and 1$
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards I nstitute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disctose, maintain or transmit Confidemial Information
except as reasonably necessary es outlined under this Contract. Further. Contractor,
irKtuding but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use. disclose, mainiain o/transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Conndenlia) Information in response to a

vs. LniupdJte tOOSna EifiibliK ^ Coninctortnhisis
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request for disclosure on the basis that It Is required by taw, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without Tir^ notifying OKHS so that OHHS has an opportur\ity to
consent or object to the dist^sure.

3. II OHHS noUnes Ihe Coniractor that OHHS has agreed to be bourtd' by additional
restrictions over end above those uses or disciosuros or eecunty eafoguards of PHI
pwfsuont to the Privacy ar^d Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by' such
additional restrictions and rnusl not disclose PHI in viotation of such additional
reslnctions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agr^s that DHHS Dale or derivaiivc there from discbsed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Ccnlractof agrees DHHS Data oblairied under this Contrecl may not be used for
any other purposes that are not Irxiicated in this Contract.

8. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpo'se of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

1. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSIMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption, if End User is transmitting OHHS data contalninig
Confideniia! Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and ihat said
appHcation's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Cornputer Disks erxt Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb dnve. as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypied Email. End User may cr^ly employ email to transmit Confidenilai Data If
email is encrvoteO and being-sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit .Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web sUe must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via e Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Oropbox or Google Ctoud Storage, to transmli
Confidential Data.

6. -Ground Mail Service. Er>d User may only transmit Conndentisl Dala via cerir/red ground
niaii within.the continental U.S. and when sent to e named lr>dividual.

7. Lapiops and PDA. If End User Is employing portable devices to Irerismit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypied and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may riot transmit Confidanltal Data via an open

&
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private rietwork (VPN) when
remotely transmittinp via an open wireless r)6two(k.

d. Remote User Communication. 11 End User Is employir>e remote communication to
access or transmit Conndenliat Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the Er>d User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which Information will be
irensmiiied or occessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP). also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data. End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent Inappropnale disclosure of
Information. SFTP folders and sut>-lolders used for transmitting Confident'ial Oaia will
be coded lor 2d-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Conndentiai Data will be deleted every 24

.hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent Inappropriate disclosure of information.

III. RETENTION AND DISPDSIT10N OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Coniractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days lo destroy the de.ta end any
derivative in wtiatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Cor>tracl. To this end, the parties musl

A. Retention
A

i; The Contractor agrees It will noi etore, transfer or process data collected In
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
'  cloud compuling, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and Includes backup

data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees lo ensure proper security rrvonitorir>g capabilities ere In
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of nh systems
end/or Department confrdeniial informaliorS for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to pro^e security awareness and education for its End
Users in supped of protecting Department confidential information..

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and tdenl'ified in section IV. A.2 -

5. The Contreclor 'agrees Conlidonlial Data stored In a Cloud musl be In a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with ell applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy end security. All servers and devices must have
currenlly-supporled and hardened operating systems, the latest enll-virel, anti-
hacker, enti-spam, anll-spywa''0. and anti-malv^rC'Utililies. The environment, as e
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j whole, must have aggressive intruston-deiedion erwj firewaQ protecilon.

6. The Contractor agrees to and er^res iis corhptete cooperation with the Stale's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerabifity of (ha hostirtg
infrastnjcture. • •>.

6. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Conndenttal intormation on Its systems (or its
subcontractor systerns), the Contractor witi mainlam a documented process for

'  securely disposing of such date upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. .When no longer In use. eie^ronlc media containing State of.
New Hampshire date shall be rendered urvecovereble via a secure wipe program'
in accordance with Industry.-aaepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization. or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example, .
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publicalion 600-88, Rev 1. Guidelines
for Media Sanitization. National Insiliute of Standards end Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and ceriify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written ceriirication to the Depdhmenl
upon request. The written certification will incfude all details necessary to
demonstrate dale-has been property destroyed and vaiidaled. Where applicabia,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jofntty
evaluated by the State end Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, wiihln thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contredor agrees to destroy an hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Ur^ess otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor ̂ rees to completely destroy aD electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

fV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under (his Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows: -

' 1. The Contractor vwll maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential infonmalion collected, processed, managed, and/or stored In the delivery

- • of contracted services.'

2. The Contractor will maintain pol'ides and procedures to protect Department
conndential information throughout the information lifecycie. where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use. storage end secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store (he data (i.e.. tape. disk, paper, etc.).

&̂
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3. The Contrsctor wit) maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systen^ that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential Information
where appliuble.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security rrtonitoring cepebllKies ere in place to
delect potenilai security events that can Impact State of NH systems end/or
Department conflder^lial inforrhaiiOn for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness arvj education for its End
Users in suf^rt of protecting Department confidential Information.

6. If the Contracior will be sub-coniracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contracior will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that dermes speciric security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a rpinimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach rTolification requirements.

7. The Contractor wtll work with the Oepartmeni to sign and compty.wilh at! applicable
Stale oI New Hampshire.artd Department system access and authorization pcrficies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part, of
obtaining and mainlaining access to any Department system(s}. Agreements wiil be

.  completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access beir>g authorized,

r  . • . .

8. if the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160103. the Contractor" will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement

' (BAA) with the Department artd is responsible for mainlaining compliance with the
/agreemeni. • . ' , .

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to completo a System
Managemerk Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and

. Corkractor .to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, arid vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Corkrscior engagement. .The survey will be completed
annually, or an aiiernaiG time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Oepartmeni may request the survey be completed when the •
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contracior willnot store, knowingly or unknowingly, any Stale of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the bour>daries of the United States unless
prior express writteri cor>sent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member wilhin the Deparimeni.

11. Data Security Breach Liability, in line eveni of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to Investigate the causes of the breach,, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any"damage or loss-resulting from the breach.-
7he Stale shall recover from the Contracior all costs of response and recovery Jrom

I
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the breech, including but not limited to; credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, compty with at) applicable statutes-and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Conndenlial inlormalion, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and f^Hi at a. level end scope that Is not less
than the level end scope of requirements applicable to federal egencles, Ir^uding.
but not limited to. provisions of the Privjacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a). DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts-160 'and 164) that govern protections for Individually Identifiable health
Information and as applicable urxier State law. .

13. Conlractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical .safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Coriridenllai Data and to
prevent unauthorized use-or access lo It. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less Ihan the level and scope of security requirements
established by the Slate of New Hampshire. Department of InformailorS Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.90y/dolt/vendor/index.him
for the Depsrtrrtent of Information Technotogy policies, guidelines, standards, and
procuremant Information relating'to vendors. .

14. Conlractor agrees to mainieln a documenled breach r>otificallon and incident
respoftse process. The Conirector will liolify the Stale's Privacy Officer and the
Stale's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided In Section Vl. This Includes a confidenilal Infomnation breach, computer
security Inckfeni. or suspected breach which affects or Includes any Stale of New
Hampshire systems thai connect to the Slate of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract lo only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS p3|d to
perform their official duties in connection wilh purposes identified iri thisCbntract.

16. The Conlractor must ensure that all End Users.

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced In Section IV A. above.
Implemented to protect Confidential Informaiion thai Is furnished by OHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information el all limes.

o ensure that laptops and other electronic devjces/rr>edia containing PHt, PI. or
PFI are encrypted and passsvord-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential information only if cncrvptBd and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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e. (imil disclosure of the Confidential information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidenlial Infonnallorv received under this Contract and individualiy
ideniirtable data derived from OHHS Data, must be stored in en area that is
physlcaDy artd technoldgicatly aecura from access by uneuthorited persons
during duty hours as well as nop^duty hours (e.g.. door locks, card keys,
biomeinc idenliTters, etc.).

Q. only euthorixed End Osers may irensmil the Confidential Data, including any
derivative Tiles containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted al al) times when in iransit. at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

K in 'al) other instances CcnTidenllaT Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances tnvbived.

I. understand thai their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their cr^entlal information secure.
This eppHes to credentials used to access the site directly or irxfirecUy through
a third party applicalion.

Contractor Is responsible for oversighl and compliance of Ihcir End Users. OHHS
reserves (he right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor contplianoe with this
Conlracl. including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA;
end other eppilcable laws and Federal regulations until such time the ConTidential Data
is disposed of In eccordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING ,

The Contractor must notify the Stale's Privacy OfTicer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, et the email addresses provided in
SeclionVl.

The Conlractor must further handle and report'Incidenls end Breaches involving PHI In
accordance with ihe agency's documenied Incideni Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in .accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 • 308. In addition lo, and
notwithslanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obrgatlons and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how (he Contractor-will:

.1. Identify Incidents;

2. Delermine if persor^Uy identifiable information Is involved In Incidents:

3. Report suspected or confirmed incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify end convene e core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and delermine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

V5. iMlupdila ICVn/lS EU^K C<AlocJ0<tnlil3]}
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5. Oetemiine vthelher Breach riotiricstion is required, end. If so. identify appropriate
Breach r>o(iricallon methods, itrhing. source, and conterus from among different
options, and bear costs.assodated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures. |

incidents end/or Breaches that' impficale Pi rrxjsl be addressed arvl reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA SSd'CiSO.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. .OMHS Privacy Offtcer:

OHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

8. DHHS Security Officer

pHHSlnformalionSecurit^fficc@dhh5.nh.gov

vs. uttvpdMft 1orcer^8 ExhTMK
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2

This Amendment to the Community-Based Voluntary Services contract is by and between the State of
New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services {"State" or "Department") and The Family
Resource Center at Gorham ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on November 18. 2020 (Item #22), as amended on June 28. 2023 (Item #30). the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and
In consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, In consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7. Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2026

2. Form P-37. General Provisloris. Block 1.8. Price Limitation, to read:

$4,488,278

3. Modify Exhibit B. Scope of Services, by adding Section 1.5.\ to read:,

"1.5. Business Hours: Monday through Friday, 8:00 AM - 5:00 PM

4. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Section 2.1., to read:

2.1. The Contractor shall ensure Community-Based Voluntary Services are available in the cities
and towns covered by the Berlin and Littleton Child Protective Services' (CPS) District offices
of the Division for Children, Youth and Families seven (7) days per week during business
hours, as well as outside of business hours. The Department anticipates referring families
for services each State Fiscal Year (SFY) (July 1 - June 30) of the contract period, as follows:

2.1.1. Contract Effective Date through June 30, 2021 (SFY 2021): 40 families

2.1.2. SFY 2022: 65 families

2.1.3. SFY 2023: 65 families

2.1.4. SFY 2024: 65 families

2.1.5. SFY 2025: 100 families

2.1.6. SFY 2026: 105 families

5. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Section 2.6., to read:

2.6. The Contractor shall provide services to clients utilizing the Solution-Based Casework and
Motivational Interviewing models, and must ensure:

2.6.1. Staff maintain a caseload of not more than fifteen (15) families at any given time;
and

2.6.2. Staff meet with each family in person or via telehealth if requested, at least one (1)
time per week throughout the duration of service.

The Family Resource Center at Gorham • A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials
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6. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, by'adding Sections 2.18. through,2.19., to read:

2.18. ■ The Contractor may be required to participate in quarterly on-site reviews conducted by
the Department, or as otherwise requested by the Department.

2.19. The Contractor may be required to facilitate quarterly file reviews conducted by the
department, or as otherwise requested by the Department.

7. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit C, Amendment #2,
Payment Terms, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

The FamilyResource Center at Gorham A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials.
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments'not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective July 1, 2024, upon Governor and Council
approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

5/8/2024

Date

^~OocuSlgnt<l by:

Awic Ni>6\a^

Title: DCYF Interim Director

The Family Resource Center at Gorham

S/7/2024

Date

^(>ocuSign*d by:

8 btotIO

Title: Executive Director

The Family Resource Center at Gorham

RFP-2021-DCYF-03-COMMU-02-A02

V. 7.12.23

A-S-1.3

Page 3 of 4



DocuSign Envelope ID: C160D2CB.C2B8-4687-BFDA-6A40735222F5

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

DocuSlonvd by:

5/9/2024

Date ' {g-^irnvrcuarino
Title; Attorney .

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Govemor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

The Family Resource Center at Gorham A-S-1.3 '
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community-Based Voluntary Services

EXHIBIT C, Amendment #2

Payment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1.21.56% Federal Funds for Foster Cafe Title IV-E as awarded on 10/1/2022

and 10/1/2023, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services,
Administration for Children and Families, Assistance Listing Number
93.658, FAIN 2301NHFOST, and FAIN 2401NHFOST.

1^2.78.44% General funds.

2. For the, purposes of this Agreement:

2.1. The Department has identified the Contractor as a Subrecipienl, in
accordance with 2 CFR 200.330.

2.2. The Contractor's Indirect Cost Rate of 10% applies in accordance with 2
CFR §200.414.

3. Start Up Grant

. 3.1. For the purpose of this agreement, the start-up funds in an amount not to
exceed $430,000 will be provided to the. Contractor for the expenses
incurred to launch services described in this Agreement.

3.2. The Department shall make a one-lump sum payment to the Contractor
within thirty (30) days of the Contract Effective Date.

3.3.The Contractor shall submit a quarterly report to the Department within
fifteen (15) days of the end of the reporting period, detailing all start up
expenditures.

3.4. All unspent funds shall be returned to the Department no later than twelve
(12) months after the Contract Effective Date

4. Flex Funding

4.1. For the purpose of this agreement, the Department shall allocate flexible
funding to the Contractor agency to fullfill the work described Exhibit B,
Scope of Work.

4.2. Payment for flexible funding shall be on a cost reimbursement basis as
follows:

4.2.1. $25,000 for State Fiscal Year (SFY) 2025 of the contract.

.  4.2.2. $30,000 for State Fiscal Year (SFY) 2026 of the contract.

4.3. From Contract effective date through end of State Fiscal Year 2024,
payment is made as follows:

4.3.1. One-lump sum payment of $35,700 within thirty (30) days of the
Contract Effective Date, equivalent to an estimated two (2) years
worth of flexible funding. .—os

PS
Family Resource Cenler at Gorham Exhibit C Contractor Initials ^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community-Based Voluntary Services

EXHIBIT C, Amendment #2

4.3.2. One lump sum payment of $22,750 within thirty (30) days of the
beginning of SFY 2023.

4.3.3. One lump sum payment of $22,750 within (30) days of the
beginning of SFY 2024:

4.3.4. Upon the end of State Fiscal Year 2024, the Contractor shall return
any remaining flex funds to the Department within thirty (30) days.

4.4.The Contractor shall not utiize flexible funds prior to the initial "face-to-
face" (but can use it for the face-to-face).

4.5. The Contractor shall manage flexible fund allocations in a manner
consistent with Exhibit B, Scope of Services, and shall have the ability to
vary the amount of flex funds spent to support each family (e.g., some
families can get $500 and others can get $150 or any other amount needed
to support the family). If the identified flexible funding need is higher than
$1,000 per client, the Contractor will consult with the Department prior to
funding the need.

4.6.The Contractor shall provide the following information to the Department
via monthly invoice:

4.6.1. The families who benefited from flexible fund purchases;

4.6.2. How much was spent per family (both average, and individual
families); and

4.6.3. What the flexible funds were spent on.

5. Dailv Rate

5.1. For the purpose of this agreement, a daily rate of $55.00 will be awarded:

5.1.1. This will include a dual authorization as:

5.1.1.1. Community Based Case Management for $22.00/client
(family) per day.

5.1.1.2. Motivational Interviewing fo $33.00/client (family) per
day, which is incoprated into the IV-E claiming.

5.2. Payment shall be on a monthly basis and follow a process determined by
the Department.

5.3. Maximum alotment for daily rate expenditure by SFY is as follows:

5.3.1. Sub-total: $3,853,250

5.3.2. SFY 2021: $90,750

5.3.3. SFY 2022: $536,250
:  >'^5-3 4; SFY 2023: $948,750

5.3.5. SFY 2024: $742,500

Family Resource Center at Gorham Exhibit C Contractorinltials
FS
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community-Based Voluntary Services

EXHIBIT C, Amendment #2

5.3.6. SFY 2025: $760,000

5.3.7. SFY 2026: $775,000 '

5.4. Payment for daily rate shall be initated six (6) months from the Contract
Effective Date and shall follow a process determined by the Department.

6. Bonus Payment

6.1. For the purpose of this agreement, bonus payments shall be paid to the
^  Contractor upon submission of the following:

6.1.1. Services and data as specified in Exhibit B, Scope of Services;
Section 2, Statement of Work; and Section 5, Performance
Measures and Performance Metrics.

6.1.2. Standard payment request form(s).

6.1.3. Other supplemental bonus payment documents as specified by the
Department.

6.2. A bonus payment shall be paid for each family who recieves a face-to-face
meeting within three (3) days of DCYF referral.

6.2.1. Bonus payment shall be $99.00 per family. This value is equal to
1 % of the value of six (6) months of service.

6.2.2. Face-to-face and referral date shall be defined as indicated in

Exhibit B, Scope of Services; Section 1, Key Definitions.

■  6.3. A bonus payment shall be paid for each family with no new open DCYF
case within six (6) months of referral.

6.3.1. Bonus payment shall be $99.00 per family. This value is equal to
1% of the value of six (6) months of service.

6.3.2. No new open-DCYF cases and referral date shall be defined as
indicated in Exhibit B, Scope of Services; Section 1, Key
Definitions.

6.4.The Contractor and the Department shall send all client information in
relation to/or in support of payment, utiizing a secure email system.

6.5. Payment shall be on a monthly basis in an amount specified by the
Contractor on appropriate documentation.

6.6. The maximum alotment for this contract for each SFY is as follows:

6.6.1. Total allocation: $68,828

6.6.2. SFY 2021: $4,578

■  6.6.3. SFY 2022: $9,750

6.6.4. SFY 2023: $9,750
/'—OS

-  PS
Family Resource Center at Gorham Exhibit C Contractor Initials v
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DocuSign Envelope ID: C160D2CB-C2B8-4687.BFDA-6A40735222F5

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community-Based Voluntary Services

EXHIBIT C, Amendment #2

6.6.5. SFY 2024: $9,750

6.6.6. SFY 2025: $t5;000

6.6.7. SFY 2026: $20,000

6.7.The Contractor shall request bonus payments under the following
processes:

6.7.1. Percent (%) of families who receive a face-to-face within three (3)
days of referral.

6.7.1.1. The Contractor shall enter data into a standard

spreadsheet to calculcate the bonus amount being
requested.

6.7.1.2. The Contractor shall submit the spreadsheet to identified
Department staff for review and approval on a consistent
basis.

6.7.1.3. The Contractor shall request payment on a standard
form in an amount equal to that which was calculated on
the spreadsheet.

6.7.1.3.1. The form shall be agreed upon by the
Department and the Contractor.

6.7.2. Percent (%) of families who do. not have a case opened within six
(6) months of referral date:

6.7.2.1. The Department shall provide to the Contractor, on a
monthly basis, a list of clients who have had a case
opened with DCYF.

6.7.2.2. Using the information from this list, the Contractor shall
request payment on a standard form, agreed upon by the
Department and the Contractor.

6.8. The Department reserves the right to delay the monthly payout of bonuses
upon providing prior written notice to the Contractor that incudes the
Rationale for,the delay, which may include, but is not limited to:

6.8.1. Staff availability.

6.8.2. IT updates.

6.8.3. Finance system maintenance.

6.9. The Department reserves the right to conduct audits of the^Contractors
bonus payment reporting and allocations.

.  7. The Contractor shall submit an invoice with supporting documentation to the
Department no later than the fifteenth {15th) working day of the month following

— DS

PS
Family Resource Center at Gorham Exhibit C Contractor Initials V.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community-Based Voluntary Services

EXHIBIT C, Amendment #2

the month in which the services were provided. The Contractor shall ensure
each invoice:

7.1. Includes the Contractor's Vendor Number issued upon registering with
New Hampshire Department of Administrative Services.

7.2. Is submitted- in a form that is provided by or otherwise acceptable to the
Department.

7.3. Identifies and requests payment for allowable costs incurred in the previous
month.

7.4. Includes supporting documentation of allowable costs with each invoice
that may include, but are not limited to, time sheets, payroll records,
receipts for purchases, and proof of expenditures, as applicable.

7.5.1s completed, dated and returned to the Department with the supporting
documentation for allowable expenses to initiate payment.

7.6.1s assigned an electronic signature, includes supporting documentation,
and is emailed to DCYFInvoices@dhhs.nh.gov or mailed to:

Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

8. . The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit B, Scope of Services, in
compliance with funding requirements.

9. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in
whole or in part in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions
of Exhibit B, Scope of Services.

10. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that
funding under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or.in part, in the event
of non-compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable
to the services provided, or if the said services or products have not been
satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
agreement.

11. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified.

12. Audits

.  fs
Family Resource Center at Gortiam Exhibit C Contractor initials

5/7/2024
RFP-2021-DCYF-03-COMMU-02-A02 Page 5 of 6 Date _____
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community-Based Voluntary Services

EXHIBIT C, Amendment #2

12.1. The Contractor is required to submit an annual audit to the Department
if any of the-following conditions exist:

12.1.1; Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

12.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

12.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit.

12.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit
performed by an Independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the
Department within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal
year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part
200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

12.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

12.4. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Contract, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.

fS
Family Resource Center at Gortiam „ Exhibit C Contractorinitlals
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that THE FAMILY RESOURCE

CENTER AT GORHAM is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on April

03,1997.1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's ofiBce have been received and is in good

standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 270161

Certificate* Number; 0006608526

u.

o

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and catise to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire, -

this 12th day of March AD. 2024.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1. Christian Coiriveau, hereby certify that:

1

1. 1 am a duly elected Officer of The Family Resource Center at Gortiam

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors, duly called and held on
March 20,2024 at which-a quorum of the Board of Directors were present and voting.

VOTED: That Patricia^ Stolte Is duly authorized on behalf of The Family Resource Center at Gortiam to enter into
contracts or agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of Its agencies or departments and further is
authorized to execute eny and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, which may in her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for thirty
(30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of New
Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person listed above currently occupies the position
Indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the
authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation In contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such
limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated

au

fignature ' r
Name: Christian Cor

Title: President

Rev. 03/24/20
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CORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
OATEtmnxymv)

THIS CEHi iRCATH IS ISSUED AS A MAI 1 bH OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIRCATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFRRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POUCCS
BELOW. THIS CERTIRCATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTTTUTE A COHTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsementfs).

PRODUCER

E & S Insurance Serwes LLC

21 Meadowtjrook Lane

POBax7425

GWord NH 03247-7425

Fairley Kenneally |
(603)293-2791 (603)293-7188 1

tar1eyQesinsurance.net |
mSURERtS) AFFORDING CO^CRAGE NAICt

INSURERA Great American Insurance Group GAIG

INSURED

The Fanvly Resouce Center at Gofham

123M^Streel

Gorham NH 03581

DISURERB Travetefs Property Ca«jalty Co of America 25674

Insurerc

MSURERO

OtSURERE

: PISURERF

THB IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLiaES OF INSURANCE USTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POUCY PERIOO
WblCATH). NOTWITHSTANDCNG ANY REQUtRaCNT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WTTH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY FtRTAlN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLIQES DESCRIBED HERBN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDmONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEa REDUCED BY FVkID CLAIMS

W TYPCCFMSURANCE r.LMiv.vi POUCYNUMBER UMTTS

X COMMERCIAL GEICRAL UABIUTY

CLAIMSAMDE OCCUR

GENLAGGREGATE LIMTAPP^

TOUcr Q ̂ n
OTIER;

AUTOMOOLE LIABOm

ANT AUTO

OMCD
AUTOS ONLY

AUTOS (M.Y

MBRELLAUAB

EXCESS UAB

OEO

SCHEOU^
AUTOS
NONCWNED
AUTOS ONLY

OCCUR

CLAiMSMAOE

MklLNIKJN S

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AM) BMPLOYERS* UABUJTY

AMYPROFRgTORIRUnigWEXECUTTVE
OFFICERMEMBER ExauOEO?
(MindBlcnr In NH)

Y/N

H
ByttdBSoteifidir
OESCRIPTIpNCF OFERATK)NS Mow

NTA

MAC 3793560 18

UMB1137784 10

6JUB4N33995324

05/1(V2Q24

05/10/2024

01/01/2024

05/10/2025

05n(V2025

01/01/2025

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS T LOCATIONS / VEMCLES (ACORO lOI.AddRlonal Ramahu Schadult, may iMKtBCtiKllT mora

EACH OCCURRENCE
TSUMGETDISRTED
PREMSES (Ea ccofrancaT

MEDEXP{Anyonepar«on)

PERSONAL S AOV MJURY

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PROpUCTS • CCMPIOPAGO

AbMol Daycare.lncAnoPA

COMBtCDSMGEEtnrT
(Eaacdaerll
eCOLY MJURY (Pv pvaon)

eOOAY »UURY(PW acddBTD

■TOPEmVWKKGE
fParacdJanO

EACH OCCURRSCE

AGGREGATE

X TSR
STATUTE

"OTTT

EL EACHACCIOCNT

ELOISEASE - EA EMPLOTEE

E.L DISEASE-PaJCTLAOT

1,000.000
100,000

5.000.
1.000.000

3,000,000
3.000.000

S 1,000.000

1.000.000

1,000,000

500.000

500.000

500,000

CERTinCATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of NH DepL of Health & Human SefMces

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANC£LL£D BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WTTH THE POUCY PROVISIONS.

129 Pleasant Street
AUTHORIZED REPRESEKTAirVE

Concord
1

NH 03301-3857

ACORD 26 (2016/03)
e 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All.rlghts reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marlcs of ACORD
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the tamily
resource center

123 Main Street Oorham, NH 03581 (603) 466-5190 www.frcl23.org

Mission

To build healthier Families stronger communities through positive relationships, programs and

collaborations in the North Country.
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Financial Statements

FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER AT GORHAM

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022
AND

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT AND REPORTS ON
COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL
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FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER AT GdRHAM
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FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors of

Family Resource Center at Gorharti

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Family Resource Center at
Gorham (a Nev/ Hampshire nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of financial
position as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, and the related statements of activities, functional
expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial
statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in ail material respects, the financial
position of Family Resource Center at Gorham as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, and the
changes In its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,

Baals for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained In
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our
responsibilities Under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent
of Family Resource Center at Gorham and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Responsibilities of Mariaqement for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation; and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
and for the design, implemeritatlon, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered In the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Family
Resource Center at Gdrham's ability to continue as a going concem wrthin one year after the
date that the financial statements are available to be issued.
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Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control. Misstatements are ̂considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user
based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and
Government Auditing Standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Family Resource Center at Gorham's
internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Family Resource Center at Gorham's
ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain
internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.
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Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as
a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, Is presented for purposes of additional
analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied In the audit of the financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated, In all material respects. In relation to the
financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required bv Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards, we have also Issued our report dated
October 13, 2023, on our, consideration of Family Resource Center at Gorham's Intemal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of Its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of intemal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of Family Resource Center at Gorham's Internal control over financial reporting
or on compliance. That report is an Integral part of an audit performed In accordance with
Govemment Auditing Standards In considering Family Resource Center at Gorham's intemal
control over financial reporting and compliance.

f

North Conway, New Hampshire
October 13, 2023
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FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER AT QORHAM

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS OF JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Certificates of deposit
Grants receivable

Prepaid expenses

2023

1,100,311

502,855

459,651

31,869

Total net assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2.096,180

$  2,485.587

See Notes to Financial Statements

4

2m

1,001,201

83,677

607,171

15,603

Total current assets 2.094.686 1,707,652

PROPERTY

Leasehold improvements

Fumlture and equipment
Buildings

100,805

51,575
70,015

88,452

51,575
70,015

Total

Less: accumulated depreciation
222,395
(122,681)

210,042
(113,185)

Property, net 99,714 96,857

OTHER ASSETS

Investments

Agency deposits - cash
Operating lease rlght-of-use asset.

235.147

11,946
44,094

225,995
30,574
48,973

Total other assets 291,187 305,542

TOTAL ASSETS $ 2.485,587 $  2,110,051

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT UABILtTIES

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Due to State of New Hampshire
Agency deposits
Refundable advances

Current portion of right-of-use operating lease Itabllrty

$ 33,884

144.806

11,946

154.677
13,027

$  20,146

102,296

32,257

30,574

33,332
11,572

Total current liabilities 358,340 230,177

OTHER LIABIUtlES
Right-ofHJse operating lease liability, less current portion shown above 31.067 37,401

Total liabilities 389.407 267,578

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions ^ ^
Designated for long-term building maintenance
Undesignated

46,325'
1.780,245

55,083

1,529.925

Tola) net assets without donor restrictions 1,826,570 1,585,008

With donor restrictions 269,610 257.465

1,842,473

$  2.110.051
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FAMILY RESOURCE CENTCR AT QORHAM

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2023

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total

REVENUE AND SUPPORT

Grants $  1.720,241 $ $  1,720,241

Medlcaid 1,708,785 - 1,708,785

In-kind contributions 128,817 - 126,817

Contributions 50,979 - 50,979

Agency rents 45,641 - 45,841

Investment return - 12,145 12,145

Interest income 3,664 - 3,664

Other Income 14,017 - 14,017

Net assets released from restrictions - - -

Total revenue and support 3.670.344 12,145 3.682.489

EXPENSES

Program services 2,973,339 - 2,973,339

Management and general 455.443 - 455,443

Total expenses 3.428,762 - 3,428.782

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 241,662 12,145 253,707

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,585,008 257.465 1.842.473

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $  1,826.570 $  269.610 $  2.096.1M

See Notes to Financial Statements

5
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FAMILY RESOURCE CEMTER AT QORHAM

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2022

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total

REVENUE AND SUPPORT

Grants $  2,503,576 $ $  2,503,575

Medlcald 1,530,768 - 1,530,768

ln>Klnd contributions 111,319 - 111,319

Contributions 35,794 15,000 60,794

Agency rents 43,698 - 43,698

Investment return - (22,628) (22,628)

Interest income 798 - .798

Other Income 804 - 804

Net assets released from restrictions 13.520 (13,520) •

Total revenue end support 4,240.276 (21,148) 4,219,128

EXPENSES

Program services . 3,338,172 -
3,338,172

Management and general 471,484 471,484

Total expenses 3,809,656 - 3.809,656

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 430,620 (21,148) 409,472

NET ASSETS. BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,154,388 278,613 1.433,001

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $  1,585,008 $  257,465 $  1,842.473

See Notes to Financial Statements
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DocuSign Envelope ID; C160D2CB-C2B8-4687-BFDA.6A40735222F5

FAMILY RESOURCE CEMTER AT GQRHAM

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2023

Managerhent
Program and

Services General Total

Personnel Costs

Salaries and wages $  1,822,061 $  257,988 $  2,080,049

Empio/ee benefits 234,890 28,346 263,236

Payroll taxes 144,149 19,470 163,619

Travel 223,745 1,965 225,710

Food and supplies 205,388 2,870 208,258

Program acttviUes 117,879 - 117,879

Contractors and consultants 65,312 19,652 84,964

Training 52,255 806 53,061

Legal and professional fees 4,868 36,126 40,994

Rent 33,633 - 33,633

Heat and utilities ^ 30,004 30,004

Telephone and internet 26,981 1,685 28,646

UabiUty insurance 16,631 3,981 20.612

Repairs and maintenance - 19,601 19,601

Technology 2,231 14,113 16.344

Small equipment 11,588 1,011 12.597

Advertising 10,244 1,585 11,829

Depreciation - 9,496 9,496

Property insurance - 2,626 2,626

Payroll processing service - 2,223 2,223

Printing 873 654 1,527

Postage and shipping 633 450 1,083

Conferences and meetings - 661 661

Bank charges " 130 130

Total S  2,973,339 $  455,443 $  3.428,782

See Noted to Financial Statements
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DocuStgn Envelope ID; C160D2CB-C268-4687-BFDA^A40735222F5

FAMIl Y RESOURCE CENTER AT GQRHAM

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2022

Personnel Costs

Salaries and wages

Employee benefits
Payroll taxes

Food and supplies
Program activities
Travel

Contractors and consultants

Training
Technology

Telephone and Internet
Legal and profe^ional fees
Rent

Heat and utilities

Liability insurance
Advertising
Repairs and maintenance
Small equipment
Depreciation

Payroll processing service
Printing
Property Irtsurance
Conferences and meetings
Other

Postage and shipping
Bank charges

Total

Management

Program and

Services General TPtal

$  1,989.734 $  248,433 $ 2.238.167

261,219 27,951 289.170

164,123 20,603 184,726

223,819 2,778 . 226,597

224,287 245 224,532

189,434 1,203 190,637

92,880 11,935 104,815

76,476 1,389 77,865

3,551 71.491 75,042

31,702 2,378 34,080

6,658 20,914 27,572

27,315 - 27,315
. 26.870 26,870

19,497 3,397 22,894

18,593 219 18,812
_ 12.839 12,639

6,80p 984 7,784
_ 6,450 6,450
. .  5,656 5,656

1.491 1,985 3,476

1,987 1,987

160 796 956

25 829 854

408 2 410

. 150 150

S  3.338.172 S  471,464 3.609,656

See Notes to Financial Statements
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DocuSign Envelope 0; C160D2CB-C2Ba-4687-6R}A4A40735222F5

FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER AT GORHAM

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
n^ cash provided by operating activities:

Unrealized (gain) loss on investments
Realized gains on investments
Depredation
Acquisition of right-of-use asset
Amortization of rfght-of-use asset

Increase in operating lease liability
Reduction of operating lease liability
(IncreaiM) decrease In assets:

Grants receivable

Prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) In liabilities:

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses

Due to State of New Hampshire
Agency deposits
Refundable advances

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from the sale of Investments

Purchase of Investments and certificates of deposits

Additions to property and equipment

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND EQUIVALENTS
AND RESTRICTED CASH

CASH AND EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED CASH,
BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED CASH,

END OF YEAR

CASH BALANCES

Cash and equivalents, operating
Agency deposits - cash

Total cash and equivalents and restricted cash

2023

253.707

2022

$  409,472

(6.796) 33,135

(424) (6.213)

9,496 6,450

(7.150) (58,578)
12,029 9,605
. 48,973

(4,879) -

147,520 (83,421)

(16,266) 63,427

13,738 5,027

42,510 7,397

(32,257) 32,257

(18,628) 30,234

121,345 (268,723)

513,945 , 229,042

40,702 36,151

(461,812) (40,792)

(12,353) (13,520)

(433,463)

60,462

1.031.775

1,100,311
11,946

(18,161)

21(),881

820,894

$  1,112,257 % 1.031.775

$  1,001,201
30,574

$  1.112,257 $ 1,031,775

See Notes to Financial Statements
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DocuSign Envelope ID: C160D2CB-C2B8-4687-8FDA^0735222F5

FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER AT GQRHAM

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022
\

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization

The Family Resource Center at Gorham (the Resource Center) is a voluntary, not-for-profit
corporation incorporated under the laws of the State of New Hampshire (RSA 292) and
organized exclusively for tax-exempt charitable and educational purposes. The principal activity
of the Resource Center is to deliver programming that works to build healthier families and
stronger communities.

The programs are preventative and help to remove obstacles by providing pathways to healthy
family function and early childhood development to at-risk and underserved populations In
northern New Hampshire.

Evidence-based home visiting delivers parent education and support that empowers parents to
build healthy family dynamics. They address issues such as substance misuse, lack of
education, safe housing and employment. The Resource Center provides community based
social and emotional support through workshops, support groups, and counseling to promote
family success.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of the Resource Center have been prepared in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP), which require the Resource Center to report
information regarding its financial position and activities according to the following net asset
classifications;

. Net assets without donor restrictions - Net assets that are not subject to donor-
imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the
primary objectives of the Resource Center. These net assets may be used at the
discretion of the Resource Center's management and board of directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions - Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by
donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature: those
restrictions will be met by actions of the Resource Center or by passage of time.
Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby the donor has stipulated
the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
princtples requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of.
the finandai statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

10



DocuSign Envelope ID: C160D2CB-C2BM687-6FDA^0735222F5

FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER AT GQRHAM

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2Q23 AND 2022

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include all monies in banks and liquid investments with maturity
dates of less than three months. The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents
approximates fair value because of the short maturities of those financial instruments.

Certificates of E>eDOstts

The certificates of deposits are carried at fair value. Interest Is accrued and recognized
in Income when earned.

Grants Receivable

Grants receivable from various public and other nonprofit organizations at June 30, 2023 and
2022 were considered fully collectable and therefore no provisions for bad debts have been
made in these financial statements.

Investments

Investments are accounted for according to Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 958-
320 Not For Profit Entities - Investments - Debt and Equity Securities. Under ASC 958-
320, investments in marketable securities with readily determinable fair values and all
investments in debt securities are valued at their fair values in the statement of financial
position. Unrealized gains and losses are included in the change in net assets. Fair values of
investments are based on quoted prices in active markets for identical/investments.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is recorded at cost if purchased and at fair value if donated. Depreciation
is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets as
follows:

Furniture and equipment 5-15 years
Leasehold improvements 20 years
Buildings 39 years

The Resource Center's policy Is to capitalize all assets over $2,500 with an expected life of one
year or longer. Assets sold or othenAfise disposed of are removed from the accounts, along with the
related depreciation allowance, and any gain or loss is recognized.

Refundable Advances

The Resource Center records grant/contract revenue as a refundable advance until it is
expended for the purpose of the grant/contract, at which time It Is recognized as revenue.

Revenue Recognition

In May of 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2014-09, Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (Topp 606). This ASU is a comprehensive revenue recognition model
that requires an organization to recognize revenue to depici the transfer of goods or services to a
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration it expects to receive in exchange for those
goods or services. Contracts and transactions with customers predominantly contain a single
performance obligation.

11



DocuSign Envelope ID; C160D2CB-C2BS^687-BFDA«A40735222F5

\

FAMILY RgSOURCg CFNTER AT GORHAM

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

The Resource Center records the following exchange transaction revenue in Its statements of
activjties for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022:

Program Senrice Fees - Revenue from providing family support senrices under the
State of New Hampshire's Medicaid program. Revenue from providing family
support services is recognized at the completion of providing such services.

Aoencv Rents - Revenue from the rental of office space is recognized over time.

Contributions

Contributions received are recorded as increases in net assets without donor restrictions or net
assets with donor restrictions depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor or time
restrictions. A purpose restriction permits the Resource Center to use contributed assets as
specified for a particular purpose. Net assets restricted in perpetuity are those that are required
to be permanently maintained, but income from such investments may be used for specified
purposes. All donor restricted support is reported as an increase in net assets with donor
restrictions, depending on the nature of the restriction. When a restriction expires (that is, when
a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), net assets are
reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of activities as
net assets released from restrictions.

Contributions of donated non-cash assets are recorded at their fair values in the period received.
Contributions of donated services that create or enhance norvfinancial assets or that require
specialized skills, which are provided by the individuals possessing those skills, and would typically
need to be purchased if not provided by donations, are recorded at their fair values in the period
received.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a
functional basis. Accordingly, costs have been allocated among the program senrices and
supporting activities benefited. Such allocations have been determined by management on an
equitabie basis.

The expenses that are allocated include the following:

Expense Method of Allocation

Salaries and benefits Time and effort
Occupancy Square footage
Depreciation Square footage
Ail other expenses Direct assignment

Income Taxes

The Resource Center is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code. In addition, the Resource Center qualifies for the charitable contribution
deduction under Section 170(b)(1)(a) and has been classified as an organization that is not a
private foundation.

12
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FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER AT GQRHAM

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

Management has evaluated the Resource Center's tax positions and concluded that the
Resource Center has maintained Its tax-exempt status and has taken no uncertain tax positions
that would require adjustment to the financial statements.

Advertising

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred.

Reciasslfications

Certain amounts in the prior year financial statements have, been reclassified for comparative
purposes to conform with the presentation in the current year finandai statements.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

ASC Topic No. 820-10, Fair Value Measurement, provides a definition of fair value which focuses
on an exit price rather than an entry price, establishes a framework in generally accepted
accounting prindples for measuring fair v^ue which emphasizes that fair value is a market based
measurement, not an entity specific measurement, and requires expanded disdosures about fair
value measurements. In accordance with FASB ASC 820-10, the Resource Center may use
valuation techniques consistent with market, income and cost approaches to measure fair value.
As a basis for considering market participant assumptions in fair value measurements, ASC Topic
820-10 establishes a fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair values.
The hierarchy gives the highest priority to Level 1 measurements and the lowest priority to Level 3
measurements. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under ASC Topic 820-10 are described
as follows:

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices available in adive
markets for identical investments as of the reporting date.

Level 2 • Inputs to the valuatton methodology are other than quoted market prices
in active markets, which are either directly or indirectly observable as of the
reporting date, and fair value can be determined through the use of models or other
valuation methodologies.

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable inputs in situations
vifhere there is little or no market activity for the asset or liability and the reporting
entity makes estimates and assumptions related to the pricing of the asset or
liability including assumptions regarding risk.

At June 30, 2023 and 2022, the Resource Center's investments were all classified as Level 1 and
were based on fair value.

The asset or liability's fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the
lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques
used need to maximize the use of observable inpv^ and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair
value. There have been no changes In the methodologies used at June 30,2023 and 2022.

Equities: Valued at the closing market price on the stock exchange where they are
traded (primarily the New York Stock Exchange).

13



DocuSign Envelope ID; C160D2CB-C2BM687^FDA.6A40735222P5

FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER AT GQRHAM

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

Mutual Funds: Valued at the net asset value (NAV) of shares held by the Resource
Center at year-end.

The preceding method may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net
realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, although the Resource Center
believes its valuation method is appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use
of different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial
Instruments could result In a different fair value measurement at the reporting date.

New Accountinq Pronouncement

As of July 1, 2022, the Resource Center adopted the provisions of the Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842),
as amended. The standard requires lessees to recognize assets and liabilities for leases with
lease terms of more than twelve months. The recognition, measurement, and presentation of
expenses and cash flows arising from a lease by a lessee primarily will depend on its
classification as a financing or operating lease. Results for the reporting years June 30. 2023
and 2022 are presented under FASB ASC Topic 842. The ASU has been applied
retrospectively to all periods presented. As a result, a right-of-use asset of $44,094 and
$48,973 was recognized at June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. A right-of-use operating
lease liability of 44,094 and $48,973 was also recognized at June 30, 2023 and 2022,
respectively.

2. UQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY
The following represents the Resource Center's financial assets as of June 3p, 2023 and 2022:

2023 2022

Cash and cash equivalents . $ 1,100.311 $ 1,001,201
Certificates of deposit 502,855 83,677
Grants receivable 459,651 607,171

Investments 235,147 225,995
Agency deposits - cash 11.946 30.574

Total financial assets 2.309.910 1.948.618

Less amounts not available to be used

within one year.
Net assets with donor restrictions 269,610 257,465
Amount board designated for

long-term maintenance 46,325 55,083.
Agency deposits - cash 11.946 30.574

Amounts not available within one year 327.881 343.122

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months $ 1 982 029 $ 1.605 496

14
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

The Resource Center's goal is generally to maintain financial assets to meet 90 days of operating
expenses (approximately $860,000) As part of Its liquidity plan, excess cash is invested in short-
term inves^ents, including money market accounts and certificates of deposits.

3. INVESTMENTS

Investments presented in the financial statements are stated at fair value. Realized gains and
losses are determined on the specific Identification method. Gains and losses (realized and
unrealized) are reported In the statement of activities as Increases or decreases to net assets
without donor restrictions, except for those investments for which their use is restricted.
Information on investments at June 30, 2023 and 2022 is presented as follows;

2023 2022
- Market Market

Cost Value Cost Value

Equities $ 106.039 $ 120,345 $ 125,284 $ 118,904
Mutual Funds 121.115 114.802 99.515 107.091

Totals S 227.154 £ 235.147 g

Comoonents of Investment Return:
2023 2222

Interest and dividends $ 8,558 $ 8,817
Unrealized gain (loss) 6.796 (33,135)
Realized gain 424 6,213
Investment fees f3.633) (4,523)

Total investment return $ 12.145 £ /22.6281

4. AGENCY DEPOSITS

During the year ended June 30, 2023, the Resource Center began senring as a fiscal agent for
Small Acts North, a Northern New Hampshire not-for-profit volunteer group that supports the
community by providing small acts of kindness. The amount held on behalf of Small Acts North
as of June 30. 2023 and 2022 was $11,946 and $30,574, respectively.

5. DEMAND NOTE PAYABLE
In April 2013, the Resource Center entered into a revolving line of credit agreement with a bank.
The revolving tine of credit agreement provided for maximum borrowings up to $75,000 and was
collateralized by a certificate of deposit held at the same bank. At June 36, 2022, the interest
rate on the revolving line of credit was stated at the bank's prime rate of 4.75%. There was no
balance outstanding as of June 30, 2022. This line of credit agreement was closed in May of
2023.

I
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DocuSign Envelope ID: C160D2CB-C2B8-4687-BFDA-8A40735222F5

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEIMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

6. CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK - CASH

The Resource Center maintains cash balances that, at limes, may exceed federally insured
limits. The cash balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up
to $250,000 per bank at June 30, 2023 and 2022. The Resource Center has not experienced
any losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any significant risk with these
accounts. Cash balances in excess of FDIC insured iimits amounted to $1,136,663 and
$874,727 at June 30, 2023 and June 30, 2022, respectively.

7. CONCENTRATION OF RISK

For the years ended June 30. 2023 and 2022, approximately 46% and 36% of the total revenue
was derived from Medicaid, respectively.

In order for the Resource Center to receive Medicaid funding, they must be formally approved
by the State of New Hampshire,, Department of Health and Human Services, Division of
Community Based Care Services, Bureau of Behavioral Health, and Bureau of Developmental
Services as the provider of services for individuals with mental health illnesses and
devetopmentally disabled individuals, for that region.

Medicaid receivables comprise approximately 11% and 17% of the total accounts receivable
balances at June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

8. NET ASSETS

, Net assets with donor restrictions were as follows for the years ended June 30,2023 and 2022:

2023 2022
Purpose restrictions:

Flooring/carpeting $ 13,480 $ 13.480
Community events 15.000 15,000

Restrictions In perpetuity:
Endowment 241.130 228.985

Total net assets with donor restrictions $ 269 610 $ 257.465

Net assets without donor restrictions for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

2023 2022

Undesignated $ 1.780,245 $ 1,529.925
Board designated 46.325 55.083

Total net assets without donor restrictions
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

9. NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS - BOARD DESIGNATED
By vote of the Board of Directors, funds have been designated for long-term building
maintenance. Net assets without donor restrictions designated by the board was $46,325 and
$55,083 at June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

10. ENDOWMENT FUND

In 2007, the Resource Center established a permanent endowment fund for the organization
with the intent of accumulating donations and interest earnings of one million dollars. Per the
laws of the State of New Hampshire (RSA 292-B:4), 7% of the fair rharket value of the
endowment fund, calculated on the basis of fair market value determined at least quarterly and
averaged over a period of not less than three years may be appropriated for operating account
expenditures. No distributions were taken during the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022.

The Not-for-Profit Entities Topic of the FASB ASC (ASC 958-205 and subsections) intends to
Improve the quality of consistency of financial reporting of endowments held by not-for-profit
organizations. This, Topic provides guidance on classifying the net assets associated with
donor-restricted endowment funds held by organizations that are subject to an enacted version
of the Uniform Prudent Management Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA). New Hampshire has
adopted UPMIFA. The Topic also requires additional financial statement disclosures on
endowments and related net assets.

The Resource Center has followed an Investment and spending policy to ensure a total return
(income plus capital change) necessary to preserve the principal of the fund and at the same
time, provide a dependable source of support to help build healthier families and stronger

.  communities.

In recognition of the prudence required of fiduciaries, the Resource Center only invests the fund
in cash and mutual funds. The Resource Center has taken a risk adverse approach to
managing the endowment fund in order to mitigate financial market risk such as interest rate,
credit and overall market volatility, which could substantially impact the fair value of the
endowment fund iat any given time.

Fund activity for June 30, 2023 and 2022 was as follows;

Activity
Balances for the Balances

as of Year Ended as of

June 30. 2022 June 30. 2023 June 30. 2023

Permanent gifts $  175,809 $ $  175,809
Investment earnings 74,840 8,558 83.398
Realized gain 68,926 424 69,350
Transfer to unrestricted (41,590) - (41,590)
Investment expense (49,995) (3,633) (53.628)
Unrealized gain 995 6.796 7.791

12 145
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FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER AT GORHAM

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

Balances

as of

June 30. 2021

Permanent gifts
Investment earnings
Realized gain
Transfer to unrestricted

Investment expense
Unrealized gain (loss)

$ 175,809
66,023
62,713
(41.590)
(45,472)
34.130

Activity
for the

Year Ended

June 30. 2022

$
8,617
6,213

(4,523)
f33.135)

Balances

as of

June 30. 2022

$ 175,809
74,840

68,926
(41,590)
(49,995)

995

.11. OPERATING LEASES
The Resource Center leases its current facility from the Town of Gorham. In lieu of rent, the
Resource Center is responsible for the cost of repairs and maintenance, insurance, utilities and
rubbish removal. The lease expired on June 30, 2020. The lease continues under the same
terms on a monlh-to-month basis.

The Resource Center in turn sublets space in the facility to other nonprofit and community
agencies at an average rate of approximately $10 - $16 per square foot. All participating
organizations must provide services to a client base that is at least 66% low and moderate
income.

During the year ended June 2021, the Resource Center entered into a lease agreement for
office space in Littleton. New Hampshire with John & Paul Tuite Partnership. The terms of the
lease call for monthly payments of $1,000 through October 31, 2026. Rent expense under this
agreement aggregated $12,000 for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022.

During March of 2023, the Resource Center entered into a lease agreement for two copiers in
Gorham. New Hampshire. The terms of the lease agreement calls for monthly payments of
$130 through March 9. 2028. Rent expense under this agreement aggregated $520.for the year
ended June 30, 2023.

The right-of-use asset and related operating lease liability for the above leases amounted to
$44,094 and $48,973 for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. The weighted
average lease term was 3.32 and 4.16 years for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022.
respectively. The weighted average discount rate was 1.38% and 0.98% for the years ended
June 30,2023 and 2022, respectively.

Total lease expense under these agreements totaled $12,520 and $10,000 for the years ended
June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

Minimum future lease payments required under the operating lease agreement In effect at June
30,2023 were as follows:

Year Ending
June 30 Amount

2024 $ 13.560
2025 13,560
2026 13,560

2027 5.560
2028 1.040

Total ,S iL2S2

12. IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS

The Resource Center received the following In-kind contributions-^during the years ended
June 30. 2023 and 2022:

2023 2022

Donated clothing, toys, and household supplies S 126.817 % 111.319

The Resource Center's policy related to in-kind contributions is to utilize the assets given to carry
out the mission of the Resource Center. If an asset is provided that does not allow the Resource
Center to utilize it in its normal course of business, the asset will be sold at its fair value as
determined by appraisal or specialist depending on the type of asset. .

Donated supplies for the years ended June 30; 2023 and 2022 were considered contributions
without donor restrictions and were recorded as food and supplies expense on the accompanying
statements of functional expenses.

13. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of financial position
date, but before financial statements are available to be Issued. Recognized subsequent events
are events or transactions that provide additional evidence about conditions that existed at the
statement of financial position date. Including the estimates inherent In the process of preparing
financial statements. Non recognized subsequent events are events that provide evidence
about conditions that did not exist at the statement of financial position date but arose after that
date. Management has evaluated subsequent events through October 13, 2023, the date the
June 30, 2023 financial statements were available for Issuance.
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FAMILY RFSQURCt; CFNTFB AT ftORHAM

SCHEDULE OF EXPENOrTURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2023

FEDERAL GRANTOR/

PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/

PROGRAM TITLE

FEDERAL

ALN

PASS

THROUGH

GRANTOR

number

FEDERAL

EXPENDITURES

U.8. DEPT. OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

PMted through Stato of New Hampehlre
Department of HeatSi and Human Servfcee, Office of Htiman Seivtcee,
Dlvitlon of Children, Youth and Famlllea

Stephanie Tubbs Jorwa ChDd Welfare Services Program
Promoting Safe and Stable FamOlea
Social Services Block Grant
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families
Maternal & Child Health Services Block Grant for States

93.646

93.556

93.667

93.556

93.994

2001NHCWSS $

2001FPSS
2001NHSOSR

19NHTANF

90CA1856

8,494

41,788
144,027

346,033

11,160

Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program
Maternal, Infant ar>d Early Childhood Home Visiting Program
Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program
ARPA - Maternal, Infant and EartyjShlldhood Home Visiting Program

93.670

93.870

93.870

93.670

05-95-90-902010-5896

05-95-90-902010-5696

05-95-90-902010-5696

05-95-90-902010-2451

25,698
41,164

260,060
74,173

Acdvities to Support (SILT) Health Department Response
to Public Health or Healthcare Crises 93.391 O5-95-0O«)2O1O-577i

400.995

33,678

Acdvities to Support fSTLT) Health Department Response
to Public Health or Healthcare Crises ^.391 05-95-90-902010-5190 17,630

Activities to Support (STLT) Health Department Response
to Public Health or Healthcare Crises 93.391 05-95-90-902010-5771 136,914

166.222

Foster Care - TlUe IV - E

V

93.656 05-8SO42-421010-36S80000 7,278

Total U.S. Department of Health end Human Services

Total expenditures of federal awards

$  1.146.997

$  1.146.997
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FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER AT GQRHAM

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2023

note A BASIS OF PRESENTATION
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of f^eral awards (the Schedule) Includes the
federal grant activity of Family Resource Center at Gorham under programs of the federal
govemment for the year ended June 30, 2023. The information In this Schedule is presented In
accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance]. Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of
Family Resource Center at Gortiam, it is not Intended to and does not present the financial
position, changes In net assets, or cash flows of Family Resource Center.

NOTES SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained In Uniform Guidance, where
in certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited to reimbursement. Negative
amounts shown on the Schedule represent adjustments or credits made In the noneal course of
business to amounts reported as expenditures In prior years.

NOTE C INDIRECT COST RATE
Family Resource Center at Gortiam has elected to use the 10-percent de minimis Indirect cost
rate allowed under Uniform Guidance.

H.
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Leone, -
McDonnell
& Roberts

PROFCSSIOXU. ASSOOATKIM

CliKllFIED PUBUC ACCOUNTANn-S

DO\'ER • WOLFliBORO
■NORTH CONWAY

(  INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDfTtNG STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of
Family Resource Center at Gorham

We. have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
Issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Family Resource
Center at Gorham (a New Hampshire nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of
financial position, as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, and the related statements of activities, and cash flows
for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated October 13, 2023.

Report on Internal Control over Financial ReDortino
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Family Resource
Center at Gorham's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Family
Resource Center at Gorham's internat control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Family Resource Center at Gorham's internal control.

A deficiency In internal control exists when th'e design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements, on a timely basis. A rnaterlaf v/eakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in tntemal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatemehl of the entity's financial staiements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that Is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify ail. deficiencies in intemal control that might be rnaterial
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, "material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Family Resource Center at Gorham's
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Govemment Auditing Standards.

Purpose of This Report . ' . ^
The purpose of this report Is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
organizalion's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Govemmenf Auditing Standards in considering the organization's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

North Conway, New Hampshire
October 13, 2023
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'DOVER • VOIJEBOKO
NORTH COKWAY

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS'REPORT

ON COMPUANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of
Family Resource Center at Gortiam

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Oofnlon on Bach Malor Federal Program ^
We have audited Family. Resource Center at Gortiam's compliance with the types of compliance
requirements identified as subject to audit in the 0MB Compliance Supplement tinai could have a direct
and material effect on each of Family Resource Center at Gorham's major federal programs for the
year ended June 30. 2023. Family Resource Center at Gorham's major federal programs are identified
in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned
costs.

In our opinion, Family Resource Center at Gorham complied, In all material respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its
major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2023.

Basis for Opinion on Each Malor Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
[Sianderds, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title
2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles,
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those
standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit
of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be Independent of Family Resource Center at Gorham and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, iri accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for-.our opinion on
compliance for each major federal prograni. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of Family
Resource Center at Gorham's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above,

Resoohslbllltles of Afahaaement for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implernentation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of
laws, statutes, r^egulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to Family
Resource Center at Gorham's federal programs.

r  • • - '
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Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an
opinion on Family Resource Center at Gorham's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance but is. not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance-with generally accepted auditing standards,-Govemmenf
Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when It exists.
The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting
from error, as fraud may Involve collusion, forgery, Intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, Individually or in the aggregate, it vvould
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about Family Resource
Center at Gorham's compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Government Auditing
Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding Family Resource Center at Gorham's
compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

• Obtain an understanding of Family Resource Center at Gorham's internal control over
compliance relevant to the audit In order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the
Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
Family Resource Center at Gorham's internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in
internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees. In the normal course of perfonning their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material \Afeakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, siuch
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement
of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency In intemal control over compliance Is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less
severe than a material weakness In Internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all
deficiencies In Internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not
Identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses,
as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in Internal control over
compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinbn is expressed.

The purpose of this report on Internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

tc.e

North Conway, New Hampshire
October 13, 2023
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2023

A. SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the financial statements
of Family Resource Center at Gorham were prepared in accordance with GAAP.

2. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in
the Independent Auditors' Report on Intemar Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Finandal Statements Perhrmed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. No mateiial weaknesses are reported.'

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Family Resource
Center at Gorham. which would be required to be reported in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs are
reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and
on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by Unifomn Guidance. . No material
weaknesses are reported.

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Family
Resource Center at Gorham expresses an unmodified opinion on all major federal
programs.

6. There were no audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR
200.516(a).

7. The programs tested as major programs were: U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services, Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF). ALN - 93.558.

8. The threshold for distinguishing between Type A and B programs was $750,000.

9. Family Resource Center at Gorham Family Resource Center at Gorham was determined to
be a low-risk auditee.

B. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

C. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS-MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAM AUDIT
I

None
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All Joseoh

Education

University of Massachusetts Lowell, 2013-2017 Lowell, MA

Bachelors of Art in Psychology

Work History

Carthage Management Group, January 2018 - December 2018 Boston, MA
Account Manager

• Managed existing accounts as well as opened new accounts witli clients in addition to
maintaining long tenn relationships between client and company. /

o Developed and implemented business plans, along with strategies to meet sales goals
• Analyzed data to observe trends and adjust technique
• Trained entry level sales reps to help transition into a managerial role
• Directly involved with; recruiting and interviews

Ivy Street School, December 2018 - August 2020 Boston, MA
Residential Supervisor

• Eusiued the wellbeing of residential students while also providing treatment essential to
their growth and development

• Built sti'ong relationships with parents, guardians and caretakes with strong
commuiiication

• Collaborated witli the Residential Director and Assistant Director to interview, hire, train

and supervise direct care staff.
• Hosted team meetings for staff and provided bi-weekly supervision.
•  involved in the creation, approval and implementation of EEC(Early Education and Care)

and IEP(individualized Education Program) goals.
• Plaiuied and scheduled residential groups that promoted growth in life skills.
• Responsibly used program budget for department needs.

(

Oualities/skills

• Organized • FlexibiUty
• Attention to detail • Word, Teams, Excel
• Great Communication • Data Analysis
• Openness to Feedback • Adaptability



Brittany Walker

Work Experience

Family Support Speciallst-CBViS
Family Support Center Gorhahfi - Gorham, NH

Jariuary 2021 to Present

• Work with families who are high risk and need extra support, whether it be resources, parenting skills,
working on habits like keeping their house clean.
• Come up with a family goals and individual .goals with each family, then help family make and
implement an action plan to help these families work towards reaching their goals within 6 months of
the referral.

• Good verbal and written communication skills '

• keep notes after each visit and contact logs

Education Outreach Advocate
Support Center at Burch House-^ Tri County Cap - Littleton. NH

February 2020 to September 2020

I answer crisis calls, help victims of dome^ic and sexual abuse. Increase the awareness of Domestic and
Sexual Violence. Work directly with clients and keep .confidentiality. Advocate for policy and prtKedure
reforrh in Various systems.

Housing Advocate;

Help clients hnd affordable housing

Remain.in contact with clients after gaining housing and help them fnaintairi housing

Substitute Teacher

white mountains regional school district - Whitefield. NH

September 2016 to February 2020

I substitute for grades K through 8. 1 also sub as the janitor. I work hard .and am a tearfi player;

Flagger/Traffic Control/Trainer
ADA Traffic Coritfol .r Colchester.. VT

2019 to May 2019

• Trained new employees

• Kept Traffic flowing in a safe arid effective rriarineT

• Being observant of the surroundings at all time to insure of the safe movement of oncoming traffic.
• Two way radio cpntart with co-workers to facilitate traffic.movement.

• Utilized communication with other employees to ensure they were in proper position.



Order Processor/Customer Service

Littleton Coin Company - Littleton. NH '
August 2013 to March 2015

• process orders

• answer phones

• help customers with questions and place their orders.

Housekeeper
Omnl Mount Washington Resort - Bretton Woods, NH

June 2011 to August 2013

Clean rooms, help guests with questions or requests. Maintain professional at all times, keep work area

tidy

Front Desk Agent
Cabot Inn & Suites - Lancaster, NH

May 2009 to June 2011

Check guests in and out

make reservations

handle cash

conduct interviews

handle all employee paperwork

scheduling

time cards

Education

High schooi or equivalent
Groveton High School • Groveton. NH

August 2004 to June 2008

Skills

• Management {2 years)'

• Event Coordination (2 years)

• Housekeeping (2 years)

• Phones (2 years)

• Customer Service (6 years)

• Custodial Experience

• Military Experience

•  Interviewing

• Public Relations



Military Service

Branch; Army

Service Country: United States

Rank: Specialist

May 2007 to May 2009

Certifications and Licenses

driver's license

Additional Information

I have taken multiple courses through NAMI NH for Mental Health, a couple being Support Group

Facilitator and Parents Meeting the Challenge. I have taken the Advocacy Training through the Parent

Information Center twice and can help parent's navigate through the lEP process/special education

system.



Tia M. Brownell

EDUCATION

Southern New Hampshire University (Campus/Online) September 2015 - May 2019
•  Bachelor Degree: Criminal Justice: Concentration in Homeland Security and Counter-

Terrorism

•  Society of Leadership and Success
• Deans List 2016 - 2019

•  Presidents List 2017- 2019

•  3.52 CPA

Lewiston High School, September 2011-June 2015
• Honor Society

■ • National Technical Honor Society

• Kitty Hawk Air Society
•  JROTC Air Force Leadership

Work Experience

Mother-NH/ VT

August 2019 - Current
Gave birth at 26 weeks and spent 4 months in the NICU and another 2 weeks in the PICU. I
continued to isolate while my daughter was home before, during, and after Covid-19 due to my
child being sent home on oxygen and through her various diagnoses that include BPD/Chronic.
Lung Disease, PDA, prematurity, failure to thrive, global developmental delay and speech delay
along with possible autism. Now that she has the all clear to start preschool that is the route we
are taking thus allowing me back into the workforce. During this time, I had to juggle the
appointments and track medical information from three hospitals and home health.

Mountain Washington Resort - Bretton Woods, NH

March 2019 - August 2019
Overnight Front Desk Attendant. Responsibilities: Answering and forwarding phone calls.
Answering questions. Dispatching Lost Prevention/ Security personnel to guest and staff related
issues. Running multiple programs to prepare for the following day. Filing reports in mailboxes
for various departments and putting those reports together

Mountain View Grand - Whitfield, NH 03598



November 2018 - March 2019

Responsibilities: Public Space Attendant, Room Attendant, Turndown Attendant, House person.
During the past month my main role has been laundry and cleaning public space areas. Prior to
public space I was a room Attendant where I clean stay overs, due out and arrivals. I Have been
trained and worked a couple of turn down shifts. I have assisted in delivering request such as
mini fridges, cribs, fans, and heaters. I have assisted in stocking closets. I assisted my supervisor
in room inspections.

\

Southern New Hampshire Universitv Concierge - 2500 N River Rd Hooksett," NH 03106
December 2015 — September 2017
Responsibilities: Answer any questions, direct students and victors, place the Pub's cash in the
safe, fill out parking passes, rent out games, handle special deliveries, clean the student center.
Answering and forwarding phone calls and communicating with campus security on incidents
within building.
Student run: Department has been reworked.

Bourgues Supermarket - 644 Sabattus St, Lewiston, ME 04240 - (207) 782-1385
August 2014 — September 2016
Responsibilities: Cashier, trained new cashiers, Deli, and stocking shelves. Meat department.

LEADERSHIP/COMMUNITY SERVICE
Head Start

• Volunteered as a teacher assistant

Air Force Junior Reserve Officer Training Corps, September 2011- June 2015
•  Parades

• Apple Orchard

•  Family Day
• Dinners

• Color Guards

•  Security
•

Blue Crew: 2013-2014

• Tour Guide

•  Freshman Mentor

LRTC LAW ENFORCEMENT:

• Dinners

•  Voting
•  Parking/Seatbelt checks
• Guns and knives show

•  Police ride-a-longs



Victoria Kennett

Education

Major: Criminal Justice

Community College of Vermont 2015

Lyndon State College 2013-2014

Experience

The Family Resource Center

Family Support Specialist June 2021-Present

•  Assist client with DCYF involvement, but intervene before serious measures are taken

•  Meeting with clients on an as needed basis

•  Conducts visits using skills and practices within but not limited to Community Based Voluntary

Services scope of services

•  Maintain a clean organized client record log with all required program paperwork

•  Help create reachable goals for the families to better their lives

•  Provide resources and classes needed

•  Knowledgeable on helping with suicide prevention, substance abuse, mental health and past

trauma

•  Maintain an accurate and updated calendar

•  Complete visit notes and contact logs in a timely manner specified by Supervisor

•  Complete a closing form for each client ending services with The Family Resource Center

V

s, '

Family Dollar

Assistant Store Manager July 2019- June 2021



• Greets and assists customers in a positive, approachable manner. Answers questions and

resolves customer inquiries and concerns.

• Maintains a presence In the store by providing excellent customer service.

• Ensures a clean, well-stocked store for customers.

I

• At the direction of the Store Manager, supervises, trains, and develops Store Team Members on

• Family Dollar operating practices and procedures.

• Assists in unloading all merchandise from the delivery truck, organizes merchandise, and

transfers merchandise from stockroom to store.

• Assists Store Manager in ordering merchandise and record keeping to include payroll

scheduling and cash register deposits and receipts.

• Supports Store Manager in loss prevention efforts.

• Assumes certain management responsibilities In absence of Store Manager

Ethan Allen October 2017-July 2019

Marker/ Sorter

• Being able to use and read a measuring tape

• Perform multiple jobs

• Having a keen eye for details

• Working and running heavy machinery

Upper Connecticut Valley Hospital June 2015-August 2017

Unit Secretary, Hospital Information Clerk, and Registration

• Time management

'• Working under stressful times

• Having to multitask

• Having to prioritize

• Phone and computer skills r

• Customer Service

• Keep and making schedules



Scheduling Appointments

Working with other facilities

Family Dollar

Temporary position

• Moving heavy objects

• Renovating

• Handling stressful situations

April April 15'^ 2015

Currier's Market

Cashier

• Management skills

• Manager duties

(see below employment for skills, same position)

August 2014- April 2015

C&C Super Market

Cashier

• Dealing with diverse population

• Manners

• Patience

• Computer skills

• Tech skills

• Handle money

May 2013-January 2015

Lamoille County Mental Health

Caretaker (CP! certified)

• Watched a non-verbal 13 year old boy with autism

• Picked out daily clothing

• Made daily meals

January- March 2015



• Learned his body language and his signs of distress

• Know how to handle dangerous/unwanted situations

Babysitting July 2011-March 2012

• Patience

• Child care

Activities

LCS Rugby dub (2013-2017); Volleyball Club (2009-2013); Varsity Softball (2010-2013);

Volunteer, Penguin Plunge (2012-2013); Was going to do the Explorers Program with the Newport

City Police but there wasn't enough interest.

Skills

• Synthesize facts, concepts, and principles

• Set priorities

• Make and keep a schedule

• Identify and communicate value judgments effectively

• Describe objects or events with a minimum of factual errors

• Take risks

• Knowledge with computers and software

-Word

-PowerPoint

-Excel



Mallory Lapointe

Work Experience

Team Lead Lab Assistant

AVH - Berlin. NH

February 2019 to Present

Draw blood

Label specimens
Batch specimens

answer phones

Order Inventory

File orders

Enter orders

^an and paperworlc
Help with scheduling

DNA Intelview for new hireS'

Orientation for the hires

Training for new hires

Security Officer
New England Security • Berlin. NH

October 2019 to October 2021

• Monitored CCTV security cameras

.• trispected buildings, equipment; and access points permitting entry

• Monitored all points of en^
• Performed alKsecurlty functions, including Sitting with lEA patients
• Talking patients down during panic attacks, mbmentis'of depression, anxiety, also.worklhg with more'

severe mental illnesses:

LabAssistant

Memorial Hospital

October 2018 to July 2020

Drawblpod

Lpbel specimens

Batch specimens

answer phones

Order inventory

File orders

Enter'orders

Scan and paperwork ^



Caregiver/Personal Assistant
Granite State Independent Living

June 2015 to October 2018

I do personal care,cook, clean, run errands.and be a companion for the elderly and or physically or
mentally disabled.

After School Teacher

"^Family Resource Center - Gorham, NH
August 2017 to June 2018

I am after school program teacher for kindergarten. I along with other group leaders do homework with
k threw 2nd graders, we also do learning activities with the students. My job Is to provide a safe, fun,
and educational place for the kids after school.

I  •

Licensed Nursing Assistant (LNA)
Private duty - Berlin, NH

June 2010 to June 2017

• Provided patients/residents with care and companionship
• Served meals

• Performed post-mortem care, if needed

• Assisted with wound care

• Cleaned and sanitized rooms

• Changed bed linens

Education

CoMege student in Psychoiogy
Southern New Hampshire University - Manchester, NH

June 2022 to Present

High school diploma 2009
Finished phlebotomy course spring of 2017

Skills

• Senior Care

• Personal Assistant Experience

• Teaching

• Childcare

• Caregiving

• Home Care

• Nursing

• Phlebotomy

• Hospital Experience

• Patient Care

• Order Entry



• Venipuncture

• Laboratory Experience

• Medical office experience

• Security *

• Laundry

• Vital Signs

• HIPAA

• Medical Records

• Clerical Experience

Certifications and Licenses

BLS Certification

Present

CPR Certification

Present



Kay I a Roy

Work Experience

Universal Banker

NECU - Berlin, NH

February 2023 tojune 2023

Adniinistratlye Coordinator
Marshalls - Gorham, NH

March 2022 to February 2023

I am the administrative coordinator for Marshall's in Gorham NH. I do deposits, balance registers, and
do all the stuff that goes with the cash office.

Customer Service Representative

Littleton Coin Company - Littleton, NH

March 2021 to September 2021

I ariswered phones as a customer service representative and I had to take care of any custorrier concerns;
orders or anything else they rnay have needed help with.

Online Grocery Pickup
Walm'art - Berlin, NH

April 2020 to October 2020

People order from the store and we go around and get it for them, then bring It out to their car

Housekeeping
The royalty - Gorham.,NH

January 2016 to.March 2018

I took care of guest needs and their rooms plus whatever task was assigned with the job

Online Grocery Pickup

Education

High school diploma In General Studies
Berlin Senior High Schooj -Berlin, NH

September 2p0p to June 2p03



High school diploma

Skills

Food Safety

Pricing

Produce Experience

Computer Operation

Microsoft Office -

Food Handling

Merchandising

Food Preparation

Food Service

POS

Kitchen Experience

Cash Handling

Cleaning Experience

Retail Sales

Hotel experience

Guest services . ,

Communication skills

Customer service .

Organizational skills

Banking

Time Management

Upselling

Serving Experience

English

Host/Hostess

Pharmacy technician experience

Customer service

Front desk

Sales

Cash handling

Guest services

Retail sales

Cash register

Telemarketing

Supervising experience

POS



• Food handling

• Serving

• Hotel experience

• Merchandising

/

Certifications and Licenses

Driver's License

Assessments

Call center customer service ~ Proficient

January 2022

Demonstrating customer service skills in a call center setting

Full results: Proficient

Customer focus & orientation — Proficient

January 2022

Responding to customer situations with sensitivity

Full results: Proficient

Indeed Assessments provides skills tests that are not indicative of a license or certification, or continued

development in any professional field.



NH Department of Health and Human Services

KEY PERSONNEL,

List those primarily responsible for meeting the terms and conditions of the agreement.

Job descriptions npt required for vacant positions.

Contractor Name: The Family Resource Center at Gorham

'  "'C" ■'

NAME
•1

JOB TITLE

ANNUAL

AMOUNT PAID
FROM THIS
CONTRACT

j

ANNUAL SALARY

All Joseph Program Manager $50,480.68 $50,480.68

Brittany Walker Supervisor $42,137.00 $42,137.00

Tia Brownell Family Support Specialist $34,871.00 $34,871.00

Victoria Kennett Family Support Specialist. $36,400.00 $36,400.00

Mallory Lapointe . Intake Coordinator $16,607.56 $33,215.15
Kayla Roy Family Support Specialist $33,670.00 $33,670.00
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICK

DIVISION FOR CHILDREN, YOUTH & FAMILIES

129 PLEIASANT CTRCTT. CONCORD. NH <li30l-38S7
«(0-ri-44SI 1^9^320345 Ext 4451

Fjx: 603-27M729 TDD Acctis: 1<800>73S0964 vww^tu.nlugov

May 22. 2023

His Excaitency, Governor Christppher T. Sunurw
and the Honorable Council

Slate Houae

Concord, New HampeMre 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Children, Youth and
Families, to amend exlstir^ contraols with the Contractors listed below modify the payment terms
and to add funding to support additional case management and service coordination for high-risk
families to strengthen family protective factors, keep children safe, by Increasing the total prtee
limitation by $618,750 from $22,140,059 to $22,758,809 With no change to the contract
completion dates of June 30,2024, effective upon ̂ vernor and Council approval. 23% Federal
Funds. 77% General Funds.

below.

The individual contracts were approved by Governor and Council as specified in the table

Contractor

Name

Vendor
Code

Area Served Current
Arnount

Irtcrease
(Decressa)

Revised

Amount

G&C

Approval

Waypoint,
. Manchester,

NH

17768-
8002

Ctefemont
Concord,

Conway, Keene.
Laponla.

Manchester.
Rochestsr,
Seacoast,
Southern.

$19,895,531 $0 $19,695,531

O:11/18«0.
|t(9mtf22

A1; 12m/21
itemPSA

The Family
Resource

'  Center at
Gorham

(PRC).
Gofham. NH

102412-
B001

/

Berlin and
Littleton

$2,244,928 $618:750 $2,883,278
0; 1,1/18/20.
Item 022

Total: $22,140,059 $816,760 $22,768,809

Funds are avattable in ̂  following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2023, and are
anticipated to, be available in ^te Fiscal Year .2024, upon the availability and ^trniied
appropriation of furids tn the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line Kerns
within the price Itmttation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget OfTtce,
if needed and Justified.

See attached fiscal details.
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EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request Is for the Department to revise the payment terms to authorize
the utihzation of IV-E federal claims for Commurtity Based Case Management and Motivationa)
Interviewing. The Department is adding additior^al funding to The Family Resource Center at
Gorham contract to allow for the Contractor to provide additional support, case management, and
servioe coordination for high-risk families to strengthen family protectlva factors, keep children
safe, and prevent the need for subsequent Involvement vrith the Departmerit's Division for
ChlWrBn. Youth and Famliiw.

Contract managemerrt data has shown that the number of families eligible for this service
in the Berlin and Littleton Is Ngher than initially projected. Additionally, Family Resource Center
at Oorham has successfully engaged ar^ enrolled a tvgher percentage of families than trnUally
projected.

ApprtndmatBly 4,000 families vrill be served from January 1, 2021 to June 30,.2024.

The Contractors provide services to families who/Whom; were,recently assessed by the
Dtviaior* of Chitdren, Youth and Families for an allegation of abuse or ncg!^, or as part of their
CPS assessment were scored as being at h^hArery high-risk of future Division of Children. Youth
and Families Involvement using an actuarial risk assessment tool. .

Additionally, the Contractors provide services to clients utitiztng the Solution-Based
Casework and Motivational Interviewing models with a focus on the following priorities:.

• Working in paHnerships with families.

«  Focusing on family progress.

•  Focusing on programmatic solutions to difficult family experiences.

• Celebrating family progress.

Shoujd the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, the Farnlly
Resource Center at Gort«m will not have the funding available to austaln services to high-risk
families to strengthen family protective factors, keep children safe, and prevent the need for
subsequent involvament with the Department. Additionally, the Department will be unable to
revise the paymeni terms to reflect the proper funding allocatlonB. which the Department Is
required to do under 2 CFR 200.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number U 93.658, FAIN # 2301NHFOST.

Areas Served: Statewide.

In the event that the Federal Funds tjecome no tonger available, additional General Funds
wtfl not be t^uested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Weaver

Interim Commissioner

The Diriment of HeaUh ondHumon ServUte'MUuon it to join commumtinond famUiee
in prowding cpporttuiUiet for titmtu to aehieue heotth onJ independenc*.
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DEPARTMEm OP HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

RSCAL DETAILS SHEET

OS-9&442<42101ft-2M80000, HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. OEPT Of HEALTH AND HUMAN 8V8. HH8:
HUMAN SERVICES OIV, CHIU) PROTECTION, CHILD • FAMILY SERVICES

SO % F«d«ral Funds, 70% Otntrtl Fund*

Stfiio Fiscal

Yo«r
Ctoss/Account Class TOto JoONuniOor Current Amount.

.  Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Proqrom Sorvices 42105893 SSd 1078.00 $0.00 $561 028.00

— 644/^195 SGFSER SGF Ssrvkos 42105893 $548,000.00 $0.00 $546,000.00

2023 044/504195 SGFSER SGF Sorvicos 42105893 $568,750.00 $412,500.00 $961,250.00

2024 644/504195 SGFSER SGF Services 42105693 $568,750.00 $208,250. 5 $>7^.060.66
Suti Total $2 244.526.00 $618,750.10 $2,883,278.00

Governor and Coundl Letter Altsdimcnt

Finartcial DetaB

Page 1 of 1
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1

This Amendment to the Community-Based Voluntary Services contract is by and between the
Stale of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("Stale" or "Department")
and The Family Re^urce Center at Gotham ('the Contractor).

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (^e "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive
Council on November 18, 2020, (Item #22), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services
based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract and In consideration of certain
Slims specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions. Paragraph 17, the Contract rnay be
amended upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive
Council; and

WHEREAS, the parlies agree to, increase the price limitation, to support continued delivery of
these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, In consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
coritained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows;

1. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$2,863,278

, 2. Form P-'37, General Provisions. Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for'State Agency, to read:

Robert W. Moore, Director.

3. Modify Exhibic C, Payment Terms, Section 1, to read:

1. This Agreenient is funded by:

1.1.30% Federal Funds for Foster Care Title IV-E as awarded by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services on 10/1/2022, CFDA#: 93.658,
FAIN#:2301NHFOST.

1.2. 70% General Funds.

4. Modify'Exhibit C, Paynient Terms, Section 5 Daily Rale, Subsection 5.1 to read:

5.1. For the purpose of this agreement, a daily rate will be awarded:

5.1.1. For CBVS cases opened through and after January 1, 2023, this will
Include a dual authorization as;

5.1.1.1. Community Based Case Management for $22.00/client
(family) per day.

5.1.1.2. Motivational Interviewing fo $33.o6/cllenl (family) per day,
which is incopfated into the IV-E claiming.

5. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 5 Dally Rate. Subsection 5.3 to read:

5.3 Maximum allotment for daily rate expenditure by Fiscal Year Is as follows:

Sub-Total: $2,318,250
*  ,

FS '
The Family Rfrsource Cent&rflt Gorho/n A-S-1.3 Contradof (ftltltfa

RFP-2021.-OCYF-03-COMMUO2-A01 PagoloT^ '



DocuSign Envelope ID: 34EFC24B^Md-4348-e32E-76n6OF6F08A

Yearl: $90,750

Year 2: $536,250

Year 3: $948,750

Year 4: $742,500' ■-

6. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms. Section 7.. to read:
7. The Contractor shall submit an Invoice with supporting documentation to the

Department no later than the fifteenth (15th) working day of the month following the
month in which the services were provided. The Contractor shall ensure each invoice:

7.1 Includes the Contractor's Vendor Number issued upon registering with New
Hampshire Department of Administrative Services.

7.2 Is submitted in a form that is provided by or otherwise acceptable to the
Department.

7.3 ^Identifies and requests payment for allowable costs incurred in the previous
month.

7.4 Includes supporting documentation of allowable costs with each invoice that
may include, but are not limited to, time sheets, payroll records, receipts for
purchases, and proof of expenditures, as applicable.

7.5 Is completed, dated and returned to the Department with the supporting
documentation for allowable expenses to initiate payment.

7.6 Is assigned an electronic signature, includes supporting documentation, and is
emailed to DCYFInvoices@dhhs.nh.gov or mailed to:

Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

The Family Resource Center ai Gorham
■RFP.2021-OCYF^3-COMMU-02-A01

A.S-1.3

Page 2 of 4

Contractor Initials.

Date
S

—0$

PS
/30/2023
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All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain in full force and effect.
This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval.

1

1  . • • ,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties tove set their hands as of the date written below.

'  i " ' '
I  state of New Hampshire
j  Department of Health and Human Services , i.

5/31/2023

Date

—0«cw9i9nt«b|r:

Joseph E. Ribsam, Jr.

e. Ribsam, 3r.

Title; oi rector

The Family Resource Center at Gortiam

5/30/2023

Date

—Ooc«tloo«^

Name: stoite
Title: Executive oi rector

The Family Resource Center at Gorham

RFP.2021 -OCYF.03-COMMU:02-A01

.  A-S.1.2 .

Page 3 oi 4



DoqiSign Envelope ID: 34£FC24B-4S89-4349^32£-7B1160F6POSA

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution. .

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

-DmSlgnadby:

6/2/2023

—D»c«Sl9n«4 by:

"Guarino

fiti®- Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

r  .

Date Name:

Title:

The Family Resource Center at Gorham A-S-l .2

RFP-2021-C>CYF-03-COMMU:02-A01 Page 4 ol 4
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JcK^bC. Rtbaa, Ir.
Director

?9- J
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

department of health and human services

DiyJ5/0SF0RCHiLDREf^» YOUTM A FAMfUBS

119 PLEASAKT STREET. CONCORD. NH 03101^57
6D3.17I44SI I-60D451O34S Etc .4451

Poi:M301M72» TDD Acccci: l-<00-733-1964 .w«w.dhh*.flh.|ov

October 20, 2020

Hie CKcellef>cy. Governor ChrUtopher T. SurMjnu

and the Honorable Coondl
State House
Concord. New HampsTvre 03301

REQUESTED ACTtON

Action 1; Authorize the Department of Health end Human Services, Division for Children.
Youth and FamiBes, to enter into contracts with tl^ vendors listed below in an amount not to
exceed $22,140,059 to provide case management and service coordination for high-risk families
to strengthen family proiective factors, keep chitdren safe, and preveni the need ffgr subsequent
involvement with the Division for Children. Youth, and Families (OCYF). virith the option to renew
for up to two (2) additional years, effective upon Governor and Council approval throujgh -June 30,
2024. 100% General Funds.

Action 2: Further authon'ie an advance payment in the amount of $3,154,971 to the
vendors listed tictow. in accordartce wilh the terms of the contracts, effective upon Governor and
Executive Council approval. 100% Qeneral Funds.

Vendor Name Vendor Code Aroa Served Contract Amount

•  * ■ Waypoint

Manchester, NH
17766-8002

Claremont, Concord,
Conway, Keene.

Laconle, Manchester.
Rochester, Seacoast,

Southern

$i9;es5,63i

The Family Resource '
Center at Gorham

Gofham. NH

162412 B001 .Benin and Littleton $2,244,628

V. •• Total: $22,140,059

Funds are available in the following account for State' Fiscal Year 2021, and are
anUcipated to be available In State Fiscal Yearn 2022. 2023 and 2024, upon the availability and
continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority tp adjust budget
line items vwihin the price limliailon and encumbrances between slate fiscal years through the
Budget Offtce, if needed end justified.

7S| OtporlntintcfHtotth Md Human I'l t»iain cemmtu\liiuettd fitmiliu
in pnvidint«ppoftun^(i*t hf diutnj te cchkiM AmIiA
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08-9W2-«1010-»580000. HEALTH AND SOCtAt SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND
human SVS, MHS; HUMAN SERVTCES OIV, CHILD PROTECTION, CHILD - FAMILY
SERVICES

State

Ffacal Year

Qtaeef
Account

Clese THIo Job Niimber Total Amount

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42105093 84,409.446

2022 044/304195 Controcts for Prog Svc 42103093 *5.671.271

■2023 644/5041S5 Cont/acte for Prog Svc 42105693 $6,029,671

2024 ^ 644/504195 Contracis for Prog Svc 42105093 $6,029,671

♦ Tola! $22,140,059

EXPLANATION

Iht purpose of thla ro^wl»for the Contfectore to provide eupport. case manapemertt.
end service coordinoUon for htsh-rtsk femUiei to strer)gtheft fOTliy protective fectorj. keep
cttiklren eefe, end prevent the need for eubieRuerit invotvemer^ with the pbpartmenfB DMeiort
(or Children. Youth end FamSiea (DCYF).

One of OCYF'b goals is to prever\l families wtw come to the attention of the Diviaton from •
requiring future DCYF Irrtorvontiorr. Today, many of the famCles receive a Child Protege
Services (CPS) esaessment (l ® . Invaatigation) tor child ahuscfr^egieci return to DCYF for further
intervention. A recent erutysis' fou/*d that 32% of aO families asMSsed by DCYF ^ calendar
2017 returned to OCYF for a aubsepuent ossessmeni tWlWn 12 months (end dO% returned %hAhin
18 monlha). This rate la higher for famfiies ossesaed to be et high- or very Wgivrtskfor subsequent
Involvemen) using an eduartal rbk pssesamenl tool, rtstng to 45% and 54% for 12 and 18 months
respectively. This cycle of recurrence euggestsfamilies' undartytng needs.ond challenges finked
to chfld abuse/neglect ere not being sufficiantiy addressed.

However, until recently. DCYF has bean unaWe to provide supports and aervices to
prevent recurrence to many of the families that could benrfrt most. Tradilionally. DCYF has
asaassod many famBiea but provided ongoing services to e a'maH few. This Is because - poor to
the relnlroductlon of voluntary oervlcas by the loglslature In SFY2018 - DCYF was only allowed
to provide ongoing case mariagement end homs-bosed oervlces to families after on waesoment
if ihey received a legal fir^ding of child abuse or neglect. But." due to the relatively atringenl legal
requlremenie neoesaary io obtain a court-finding In Now Hampshire, many families who ero at-
risk of future maiueatmenl have their essessmenls closed without finding* and do not reeervo
ongoing eervlcea. As e resuti. famines often need to experience ^ther crisis, end need to
enter the DCYF eystem to recoivo services Ihel etr©r>gihen femflies. enable chiidren to remain
safely at home eryJ prevent future OCYF InvolverTiorrt. DCYF seeks to break this cyde of
racurrenoe by aignificantfy exporKfing the number cl faml«e» who receive ecrvices on e voluntary
basis, focusing on the highest-risk families.



OocuSign EnvelopolD: 34EFC24B^9894:M&«32E-7giieDF6F0M-

DQOuSlar>EMtlope 10:7a'(EQOOMSE&4E3£4£70.2eFg£109COeD

Hit EioeCUiicv. Qevtmer CMUlfiptw T. Suwnu *
end Iho Hononittd Coundi

Peo«9cf4

The Cont^oro will pfovlde a oommunitybased voluntary Mrvioes program (CB^VS) that
wQ eofve thsae 'high*rttk (emQies who need ^diiiortal support to prevent future DCYF
involvament. After meetlrtg any Immediate family needs and developing e earyioe plan, CB-VS
providers will help femiliee buUd and maintain bridges to other parenting, economic, or
behevioreVmeAte} heatih Bervices to eddrees undertytng needs, airengthen protective feciors. Br>d.
promote family weli^lng. Thb overall outcome goal of CB^VS !• to eefely prevent families from
requlrtng DCYF intervention In the future.

Approidmsteiy 4,000 families will be eor>«dfrom Jenuary 1, 2021 to Jvfno30. 2024.

The Contrectors win provide aervlces tofemiDes whoM>om were recently assessed by
PCVF for an allegation of abuse or negtect and is pan of their CPS eisessmern were scored es.
toeing at higtYvery higlHlsk ̂  future OCYF Involvement uslr^ an actuarial rtsK essessment tool.
Additionally, the ContrBCtore will provide eervit^ to clients utilizlno the Solution-Based Casavmrlt
ar^ Motivational Interviewing models with a focus on the following priorities;

•  Wording in parinershipwnh families
1  '

•  Focusing on family progress
\  '•

•  Focusing on programmatic solutions to dpcutt family experiences

•  Celebrating f^Dy progress

ContradorswWprovIdeCB-VSseAficeslniwophases:

PhaoB 1: Referral and Engagemoni, Family Stabftlzation, Service Planning

Reforral and Engagomonl; The Contractors'wlll.orien| the family to the CB-VS and build a
rapport so the fandty will be wilting lo recehre femDy stsbilization supports and participate
l/l aenrioe planning.

<  Family Stablilutlon: The Contracted will eddress immadlate needs of the forr^y,
emphasizing what needs may make it difflcun to estabTish family engagemanl. Immediate
needs include but ere not Cmlted to: unstable housing, leek of consistent transportation.
Inadequate or ladr of health insurance, discontinuation of alate benefits, health concerns,
.endhospltaiiiatlcns. . .

ServicePlahnlhg: The Contractors will develop en Irttlal oervice plan that reflects the goals
end perspectives of the family, and the ndeds Identified by (he assessment tool.

Phase 2: Service fManagemenl, Transition and Closure

Sorvlce Manegsmsnt: The Contractors win meet ihe fBmlly'fl needs and Dchievo the goals
WentiTicd in tho service piaii. V

Tronaltlo.n end Cfosuro; Contractors will assess whan ongoing case mansgoment supports
□re no longer needed, and develop a plan with Ihs family to transUion out of CB-VS end
Into existing commun^ based eupports.
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Tho OepBitmcnt wiD mortlbr contracted eervicw using the Wlowing performance
measures: ^ •

Service

Aciivily:
Key (icf(orm.-^ncc mcrfiCb':

A.Referral ft

engagement

» % of referred fflmDias who enrol) in 06-vs
• % of referred famines who receive fsce-io-fece meeting within 3 days of

referral

D.Pamlly
etabflizetlon • S of famlilas thai ere ettbliized within the fbst 30 doys

c.Servtce
planning • * of famlBos with 0 case plan withinihofirsi 30 days

Phase 2

DiServloe
maiwgement

« Median 0 of days from mhisl essessmant to enrotlmant In oddUlonal
supports and servicee

» %offamtlie8 who are accessing DCYF paid home-based services
i % of famaiQS who meet their service Plan poab

E. TrenslUon
ft dosure

•  of families who ere sucoes&hithr establish in ongoing euppc^
• . % of famiiicB who see Improvemen! In essMsment iool (to be epedfled by

OCYF)
•  Family satisfection with CB-VS (e.g., Net Promoter Score)

Outcomes

% of famfliOB referred to CB-VS *•

• who hove a eubilenl/ated eiiegstlon of maltreatment within 6 months of the referral
data

•  vmo have o subsequent essetsmem (investig&tion) 6 and 12 months after CB-VS
discharge

The Ocpaiimem eelected" the Contreetors thiougti a compeWivo bid proceso using o
Rdguest for Proposals (RFP) thai was posted on- the DepailmenVa webslle from 4/16/2019
through 6/14^020. The Departmsni received sixteen (16) responses thot were reviewed and
scored by a team of qualified Individuals. The Scoftnj Sheet is attached.

As referonoed In Exhibit A. Revisions to Standard Controd Provisions Section 1.1.. of the
attsched contfeclo, the parties hsvo the. option to extend the agreements for up to two (2)
additional yesre. contingent upon satlcfsctory delivery of services, avaiteble funding, egreement
of the parlies, end Governor end Council approval.

Should Ihe Governor and CouncU not authorize this request DCVT will be unable to meet
the needs of high rtsk fomaies who come to DCYF's attenlloA which would perpetuate a system
wtiich is unable to break proactlvtiy intervene to provertl child ebuse end ncgied.

Areas senred: Statewide

Respechully eubmitted.

Lori A. Shiblnette
Commlsslonar



DocuSign Envelopo ID: 34£FC24&49ea434a432E-791160FenSA

OocuSi^ Envtiope ID 72iE600&O5E&4Ea&>eE76-26rBC109C0E0

New Hampshire Departmeril of Health and Human Sewices

Office of Business Operations
Contracts & Procurement Unit

Scoring Sheet

CommunltyBased Voluntaiy Scrvtora

RFP N«mo

1.

Btddor Name

Big Brelher Btg SleUrs of New Hampshire

ttountain View. Covnsenng

Easter Seals Now Hampshire. Inc.

. Nourodavotopmsnta! tnstltuto of New Hmpshfro,
^ LLC

Community Action Partnership of Strafford ""
* Cevmty | ^

Family Resotirco Center at Gorhom

7.

e.

s.

Scacoast Youth Services

Greater TUton Fanrity iUea Fsmlly Resource
^0 Center •

^ ̂' Spautdlng Youth Center

RFP^021<OCYF<OS-COftIMU

Home Based Coflaboratlvo Family CounseHng

AseemHe Communtty Serirlces. Inc.

RFP Numhftf Reviewer Kamos

AfhtnaCota

Majumum

Potmts

Actual

Pehrta

N/A 100 39

N£A 1M

WA 100 84

ruA 100 8A

N/A •100 09

N/A " 100 ■ es

N/A 100 . ,71

N/A 100 74

WA , 100 . 75

hlA 100 - 78

N/A 100 .  77

2.
Ccrtwy Ijemmua

Dvyi Tenner

GersMa Plafsiu

S.
itssepn ROum

6.
Kl9

7.

8.

9.
Pitnd( PvlvTson

10.

11.

12.

13.
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VNA 8t MCS, Inc. WA 100 TO
14.

Northeast Tanilly Swvlcw of Now Hempshim, Inc. WA 100 ■  « 15. '•

•  Beaton Health Optlorts M/A 100 07 18.

Woypohrt WA 100 09
17.

TLC Fam[T]r Resource Center N/A 100 TO IB-
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FORM NUMB£R P07(venton 12/11/2019)

SubJ«c:_Commumiy-BBsed Voluntary Services (RFP-2021-DCYF-03-COMMU-02)

N&ticc: This agreement and atl oriis oiiachmcnis ihal) become public upon submission to Governor and
Eieeutive Council for approval. Any information thai is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in uTitlng prior to signing the contract.

ACRECMENT .

The State ofNew Hampshire and the Coniricior hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIOiNS

I. IDENTIFICATION.

l.l State Agency Name

New Hampshire Depanmeru of Health and Human Services

1.2 Stale Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH" 03301-3857

1.3 Conirocior Nome *

The Family Resouixc Center at Gorham

1.4 Contractor Address

123 Main Street,

CorhamNH 03581

1.3 Coturaclor Phone

Number

(603) 446-5190

1.6 Aecoum Number

05-095-042-421010-

29580000

1.7 Completion Date

June 30, 2024

^  ' t' * "*

1.8 Price Limitation

S2,244,528

1.9 Comraciing OfTiccr for State Agency

Nathan 0. White, Director

1.10 Stale AgcncyTciephone Number

(603)271-9631

I.ll Contractor Signature

>>—Pwyaijnidbr

PaM'Cia Sfal/l' W/20/2020

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Patricia Stolte. ^

Executive Director

1.13~Silftt".*ffiiifi'£J'Signature

1 Joseph E. Ribsam, Jr. ^0/21/2020

1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory
3oseph E. ftibsaro. 3r.

"Director

1.15 Approval by lhc>J.H. Department of Admini.siration. Division of?CTSOnntV(ifappliatble)

By: Director. On: •

1.16 Approval by the Ailomcy General (Form, Substance ond&<cculion)('(/"np/7//cfl6/e.)
yr—rOottilijpWfcr •

By:\/^/p;Sx- q^. 10/29/2020
1.17 Appros'sloy the Governor and Executive Council appliccble)

.G&C Item number: G&C Meeting Dale;

Page I or4
—OS

?s
Comraclorlniuaisl^^^^^^
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2. SERVICeS TO BE PERFORMED. The Suie of New

Hanipshire, Acting through the figency (dehtined in bk)ck I.I
("guile"), engages coniroctor identified In block 1.3
('•Controcior") to. perform, and the Cbntmctor shall pcrfonn, the.
worktor sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services"').

3. effective date/com PtETlOtN OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreemertt loathe
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the Stale of New Hampshire, if applicable,
ihii Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hercurtdcr, shall
become efTeciive on the date the Governor and Executive

Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreemcni
shall become efTective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block ).13 (''Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor contmerKcs (he Services prior to the
EfTective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Erfcctive Date shall be performed at the sole risk of (he
Concractor, and in the event thai this Agreemehi does not become
efTective, the Stale shall have no liability to the Contractor,
ineludirtg without limitation, any obligaiion to pay the
Contractor for any costs., incurred or Services performed.
Con tractor-must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block I."7.

4. conditional NATURE OF agreement.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agrnmenl to the
eonirary, all obligations of the Stale hcrcundcr, including,
without limtitaiion. the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropn'aiion.or
funds DlTecied by any state or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, dlminaies or otherwise modifies the

appronriation or availability of funding for this Agreemeni and
(he Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT 8. in whole or in
part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess ofsuch available appropriated funds. Inthe
event of a reduction or lamination of appropriated funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become availabte. if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
laminate the Services under this Agreement Immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall not be required-to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the

everTi funds in thai Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. contract price/price LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms ofpayment
arc identified and more panicuiarly described in EXHIBIT C
which is inco^oratcd herein by rererence.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the oon^lctc relmbursemeni to the Contracior for all -
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by (he Contractor in (he
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complcie

compensation to the Contracior for the Services. The ̂ aie shall
have no liability to (he Concractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The Slate reserves the right to ofTsel from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contracior und'a this Agreement'those «
liquidated amounts requlred or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80;7'C or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreemcni to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of ail payments authorized, or actually made
haeunda, exceed the Priee Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY contractor WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.
6.1 In eonneciton with the perfofmance of the Services, the
Contractor shell comply with all applicBble rtoluicjt, Iowa,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or munleipal
authorities which impose any'obligaiion or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment ̂ ponuhiiy laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any pan by monies ofthc United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rales, regulations *
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as (he
Slate or the United States Issue to lmp(emem these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable intellectual
property laws.,
d.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, crecd. age. sex. handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take alTirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.

6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United Slates
ucccss (0 any ofthe Coniroctor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose ofascertaining compliance srith all rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreemem. .

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all pasonnel
necessary to paform the Services. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shell be properly licensed and
Otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws. .
7.2 Unless olhawise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months of\cr the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor sholl not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, ftrm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined efTori to
perform the Scrvi«s to hire, any person who Is a State employee
or ofTlcial, who is materially involved tn the procurement,
administraiion or performance of this Agreemem' • This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreeme.nt.
7.3 The Conlracling Offica specified in'block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event of any
dispute conceming the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

PQge2or4
as
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Coniractor Initials :i-
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8. CVCNT OF DeFAUlT/REMeDieS.
8.1 Any one or more of the foUowing acts or omitsiortj of the
Contractor shall constitute an e\'em of default hcrcundcr ("Event
ofDefauli");
8.1.1 failure to perform the Servicea ulisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1J failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or ell, of the following sctiops;
8.2.1 give the Coniractora written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied sviihin, in (he absence of
a greater or lesser spcclftcation of time, thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,

terminate this Agreentent. erfective two (2) days after giving the
Contncior notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
OefauU and suspending all payments to be ntade. under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would oiherwitd accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of-such notice until such lime as the State
determines that the .Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State rrtay
owe 10 the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event ofDefauli; end/or
8.2.4 give (he Contractor a wriiicn notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached,- tcrminaie the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both. .
8.3. Ko failure by the Slate to enforce any provisions hereof after
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its ri^is with
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event ofDefauli shall
be deemed a tvaiver of the right of the Siaie to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Oefoull on the port oftheConiracior.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Noiwjtl^snding paragraph 8. the State may. at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any rcwon, in whole or
in pan, by thirty (30) days wriiien notice to the Contractor that
the State is exercising iis'opllon to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this A(p-ecmeni for
any reason other than the completion of the Scr\'lces, the
Contractor shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the
ConlrictingOmcer, not later than fifteen (15} days after the'date
of icrotination, a report ("Temtlnalion Rcport'l describing in
detail all Services performed, end the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those of any Final Report described in the atiochcd
EXHIBIT B. In addition, at the Stale's discretion, the Contractor
shall, within 13 days of notice of early terminai'icn, develop and

Page

submit, to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement. .

"10. DaTVACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITV/

preservation.
10.1 As usiid in this Agreement, the word ''data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during (he
performanct of, or acquired or developed by reason of. this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
represcntaiions, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
leiient. memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether
finished or unfinished.

.  10.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or'purchased with ftinds provided for that purpose
under this Agreemeni. shall be the prof^y of the State; and
shall be relumed to the State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.
. 10.3 Conndenilaliiy ofdaii tholl be governed by N.H. RSA
ch3pter9l-Aor oil^r existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
on Independent contractor, and is neither on agent nor on
employee of ihe State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the Stale or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by (he State to its employees.

•  12. ASSICNMENT/pELECATION/SUBCONTRACTS..
12.) The Contractor shall not assign, or oihersvise transfer any -
interest in this Agreemeni without Ihe prior written notice, which
Shall be provided to the State at Icasi fifteen (15) days prior to
(he assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purposes-
of this' porogmph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. ''Change of Control'* means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with i(.s efniiatcs, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (30%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially oil
of Ihe assets of the Contractor.

12.2 N(>ne of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
. Contractor without prior written notice and conseni-ofihe State.
The State is entitled to copies of all subconlracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be boimd by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or on assignment agreement to s^ich it is not o

party-

13.INDEMNIFICATION. Unlcssoiherwisce.xcmpicdbylaw.
the Contractor ̂ 11 indemnify end hold harmless ihe Slate, its
orficers and employees, from and against any and all-claims,
liabilities and costs for ony per^al i'r\jury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
the Stale, ll.t ofTiccrs or employees, which arise out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out oO the acts or omir

3 of 4
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Contracior. or subcontractors, Including but not limtied to the
negligence, reckless or iniemionst conduct. The Siue ̂ all not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to coasiliute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity ofthe State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
Stale. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the'
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.
14.1 the Contractor ^11, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain In force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance:
14.1.) commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or properly damage, in amounts of not
less than SI,000.000 per occurrence and S2,000.000 aggregate
or excess; and
14.1.2 special cause ofi^ss coverage form covering.all property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, In an amount not less than
S0% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy fornu and endorsements approved for use in the State r
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed In the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a eenificaie($) of
insurance for alt insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting OITicer ideniined
in block 1.9, or his or ha successor, certincaic(s) of Insurance
rof*ail renewal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policy. The certlficalc(f) of insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be attached and are incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATIOX
15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements ofN.H. RSA ehapia 2BI-A fWorktrs'
Compenjio/ioit").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281>A, Contractor shall maintoin, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers' Compensation in connection vvith
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identified In block t.9, or his or her successor, proof of Workers'
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. R$A ̂ sptcr
28i-A and any applicable renekval(s) thacof, which shall be .
attached and are incorporated herein by-reference. The State
slioll not be. responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compen.salion premiums or for other claim or benefit for
Contracior. or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable Stale of New Hampshire
Workers' Compcn«ilon laua, in connection with the
performance ofthe Services under this Agrament.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the oiha party.
shall be deemed to hove been duly delivered or given at the time
of .mailing by cenified mail, posioge prepaid, in a United Sutes
Post Ornce addressed to the parlies at the addresses given in
Mocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreemcrtt may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by (he
parties haao and only aRa approval of such arttcndment.
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the Siatc of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
unda the circumstances pursuant (6 State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agrecincm shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordartcc with the .
laws of the Slate of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
Inures to the benefit of the panics and their respectivt successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the panics to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Supaior Court which shall have
exclusive Jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS., In the event of a connici
between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms ofthe
(*•37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend'to
benefit any third ponies and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer ony such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for refcrenee purpoiea only, and-lhc words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, an^llfy or aid in the
Imerpretation. con.eiruc(ion or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS, Additional of modifying
provisions set forth In the silached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
haein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. Inthe event any of the provisionsof(his
Agreement are held by a co.un of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain In full force ond effect.

24.' ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed In a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreemcm and
undastanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
egreemenis and understandings with respect to (he subject matter,
hacof.

Page d of 4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community-Based Voluntary Services

EXHIBIT A

REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT PROVISIONS

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

-  1.1. Paragraph 3. Effective Date/Completion of Services, rs amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows;

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement tor up to two (2) additional years
from ihe Complellon ̂ Daie. contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of .the
GoYemof and Executive Council.

1.2. Paragraph* 12, Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts. is ,amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows:

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual DDnditions as the
Contractor and the Contraclpr is responsible to ensure subcoritractor
compliance wiih those, conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements with all subcontraclors, specifying the work to be performed
and how corrective action, shall be managed If the subcontractor's
performance Is inadequate. The Conlraclor shall manage the
subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis and take corrective
action as -necessary. The Contractor shall annually provide the State with
a list of all subcontractors provided for under this Agreement and notify
the State of any inadequate subcontractor performance.

l*-w.

IllBlS VRFP-202J-OCVf-OJ-COMMU^J EtfiWi A • RevisJwa to Stnnflart ConVadt Provisions Cortlroctor initisls
;  10/1672020
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community-Based Voluntary Services

EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1. Key Definitions

1.1. Date of Referral: Shall be defined as the date in which the referral is made'. The referral
date should correspond with the 'Begin date of services', indicated on the Division of
Children Youth and Families <DCYF) Service Authorization Forrn.

1.2. Days: Shall be defined as a complete 'overnighr. calendar days, and Shan include
Saturday, Sundays and Holidays.

1.3. Face-to-Face: Shall be defined as the first face-to-face interaction following the Dale of
Referral in which a provider begins.wo^ing with the families to deliver Commui^ty-Based
Voluntary Services (CB-VSj. Face-to-Face shall further be defined as in-person

.  interacllons: however. CX^YF reserves the right to adjust the definition, v^ih a thirty (30)
day written or vertiat notice to the Contractor agency.

1.4. Open Caso: Open case shall be defined as any case opened to DCYF. Including
assessment, voluntary cdie. court case wiih^focus on the family served by CB-VS.

2. Statement of Work

2.^ . The Contractor shali ensure Community Based-Voluntary Services are available In towns
of Berlin and Littleton and CPS District offices of Divlsioh for Children Youth and Families.
OCYF anticipated to refer from these sources the following number of families in year -
State Fiscal Year.

2.1.1. From start of contract to end of SFY21; 40 families

2.1.2. SFY22:65 families

2.1.3. SFY23: 65families. "

2.1.4. SFY24: 65 families

2.2. The Contractor shall provide case management and service coordination for high-risk
families to strengthen family protective factors, Keep children safe, and prevent the
need for subseqlient Involvement with DCYF.

2.3. The Conlrdctor shall provide services described In this agreement to families
who/whom:

2.3.1. Were recently assessed by DCYF for. an allegatibn of abuse or neglect,

, 2.3.2. As part of their CPS assessment, were scored as l>eing at high/ve^ high-risk of
future DCYF involvement using an acluarlal risk assessment tool,

2.3.3. Did not receive a court finding of abuse/neglect as a result of their DCYF
assessment, and ^

RFP-2021-DCYF D3-COMMU- '
02, " Contractor Iriiials;
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r  2.3.4. Could benefit from addHionat supports and be safely served in the convnunity.

2.4. The Department reserves the right to refer other families to ensure adequate caseloads.

2.5; Ml referrals shall be accepted by the Contractor regardless of any pther circumstances.

2.6. The Contractor shall provide services to clients utilizing the Solution-Based Ca$ewoi1(
arid Motivational interviewing models.

.2.7. The Contractor shall provide services in a manner that Includes, but is not limited to, the
follovying priorities:

2.7.1. Prioritizing working In parinelship with families

2.7.2. Focusing on family progress- .

2.7.3. Focusing on programmatic soluiions to difficult family experiences

2.7.4. Celebrating family progress.

2.8. The Contractor shall ensure all families receive referral and engagement, famiiy
■ stabilization and service planning activities within thirty (30) days of referral.

2.9. The Contractor shall embed within the local District Office on a semi-regular basis to
provide in-person consultation to OCYF field service staff as needed.

2.10. The Contractor shall develop and maintain records on each family, log contact and
interactions for each family, and maintain documentation of service plans. They will-
atsQ maintain up-tOKlate fanvly informaUon. Including contact Information and service
hislory. ' '

Phase 1: Referral and Engagement, Family Stabilization. Service Planning

2.11. Referral and Engagement: The Contractor shall orient family to the C6-VS
(Community-Based Voluntary Service) and build a rappori so the family vsill be willing
to receive family stabilization supports and participate in service planning.

2.11.1. The Contractor shall participate in a warm handoff with the Department
assessment worker to introduce the family and ensure a seamless transition from
the Department assessment to CB*VS. t

r,, V ■

2.11.2. The.Contractor shall uliGze an assessment tool specified by the Department.

2.11.3. The Contractor shall collect basic family Information, including but not limited to:
2.11.3.1.' Address and Phone number

RFP.2021-DCYF03-COMMU-
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2.11.3.2. Demographic infofmalion including but not limited to; Race. Ageof cBents,
Number of children In the home. Gender of primary care glver(s)

2.11.4. Trie Contraclor shall process and make Initial contact with families within three
(3) days of receiving DCYF referral.

2.11.4.1. Referraldays shall be defined as indicated in Section 1.1 and Section 1.2..
and shall coriclude on the close of business on the third (S'^) day. For example.

• families referred on Friday. 10/2/20 at 3:00 p.m. would have untij close of
business on Monday 10/05^0 to establish initial contact.

2.11.4.1. The Contraclor shall maintain the ability to* dictate staffing patterns that
most appropriately align with (his scopa of work.

2.11.5. The Contractor shall ensure that families who have disengaged from the program
remain connected with the services through persistent follow up including but not
limited to; Flexible scheduling and rescheduling, Telephone Correspondence,
Digital and personal interactions . '

2.11.6. The Contractor shall develop referral form In couabcration with the Department.

2.12. Family Stabilization: The Contractor shall address immediate needs of (he family,
emphasizing wKat needs may make it difficult to . establish family engagement.
Immediate needs Include but are not limited to; Unstable housing, Lack of consistent
Iransportatiort, Inadequate or lack of health insurance. Drscontinuation of state
benefits. Health concerns,.such as lice outbreaks and bedbugs, hospitalizattons,

! 2.12.1. The Contractor shall develop with the family a near-term plan and address any
immediate needs.

2..i 2.2. The Contractor shall facititate purchases for the family to address immediate
needs, including but not limilad to: Lice Treatment, Household Items, Cleanup
expenses. Gas cards. Items for childreri. ...

'» I

2.13.. Service Planning: The Contractor shall develop en initial service plan that reflects the
^  goals and perspectives of the family, the provider worker assigned to support the

family arxf the needs identified by the assessment tool.

2.13.1. The Contractor shall utilize an assessment lool. determined by the Department to
understand the needs of the family and identify opportunities (o reduce the rate of
subsequent OCYF involvement.

2.13.2. The Conlractor shall complete all assessments wllhiri thirty (30) days, or within
Phase 1. 89 appropriate for family needs.

RFP.202VPCVF03-COM.MU-
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EXHIBIT B

2.13.3. The Contraclof shaU support the famlltes In Idenlifyirvg goals for their lime In and
elter the service is complate and identify arvl prioritize needs and challenges.

2.13.4. The Contractor shall develop an initial service plan In collaboration vrilh the
s  family.

2.13.5. The Contractor shall collat>orate vrith the Department to develop the service plan.'

2.l3.6..Th8 Contractor shall utilize Department provided criieria, completed
assessments, professional judgement, and families input to identify If OCYF-paid.
home t)ased services are required..

2.13.7. The Contractor sf>dll verify and ufxiate any family information relevant to
• preparation of Phase 2. as Indicated In Section 2.11.3., including but not limited
to: Ensuring basic demographic information Is up to dale, adjusting meeting

. -frequency, duration and (imesas needed.

Phase 2: Service fl^anagement. Transition end Closure

2.14. Service Management: The Contractor shall meet the family's needs and achieve the
goals identified in the service plan.'

2.14.1. The Contractor shaP ensure the needs of the family are met and the goals
Weniified in the service pfan are met

2.14.2. The'Contractor shall implement the service plan, coordinate critical services with
'  parents. chPdren and youth, Including but rw)t limited to;

2.14.2.1. Providing service coordination end system navigation

2.14.2.2. Referring and conf>ecting families to community-based service providers,
including butnoljimlted to: Mental Health, behavioral Health, concrete supports
and ser^ces. DCYF-pald home-based services

2.14.3. The Contractor shati utilize flexible funding, where applicable, to f^litate
purchase to help the family successfully access supports and services.

;  2.14.4. The Contractor shall pre-plan for formal tfansilion from CB-VS services, including
for instances where the family has only received minimal service management.

Other requirements

2.15. The Contractor shall obtain, at their expense, a Criminal Background Check for all
staff, including volunteers, providing direct services to clients under the contract.

2.16. The Contractor shall ensure staff have no convictions for the following crimes:
.  f \ ' 4

RFP-202l-OCYF0icOMMU- . ' PS
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EXHIBIT 8

2.16.1. A felony for child abuse or neglect, spousal abuse, and any crime against
children or adults, including but rx)i limited to: child pornography, rape,
sexual essdult. or homicide;

2.16.2. A violent or sexually related crime against a child or adult, or a crime wtvch
may indicate a person might be reasonably expected to pose a threat to a
child or adutt; and '

2.16.3. A felony for physical assault, battery, or a drug*reldted offense committed
within the past five (5) years in accordance with 42 (JSC 671 (aXsOXA)(H).

2.17. The Contractor shall refkirt to OCYF Central Intake any suspicion of child abuse or
neglect.

3. Exhibits Incorporated

3.1. The Contractor shatl use and disclose Protected Health Information in compliance with
the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identinable Health Information (PrivacyRule) (4^

; CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act
(HIPAA) of 1996, and in accordarx:e with the attached Exhibit I, Business Associate
Agreement, which has been executed by the parties.

3.2. The Contractor shall manage aD conndentla! data related to this Agreement In accordance
with the.terms of Exhibit K, OHHS information Security Requirements.

3.3. The Contractorsl^ll comply with all Exhibits 0 through K. which are attached hereto and
incorporated by reference herein.

4. Reporting Requirements

4.1. The Contractor shall submit monthly reports, Nvhich.include, but are not limited to: Data
to support performance improvement activities.

4.2. The Department reserves the right to request and the Contractor agency shall provide
information on the following: What families benefited from flexible fund purchases, how
much was spent per family (both average and individual families) and what the flexible
funding money was spent on.

4.3.' The Department reserves the right to establish data reporting and deliverable
requirements throughout the duration of the contract.

4.4. The Department reserves the right to request service plan and other documentation,
as Indicated In Section 2.13., to comply with federal requirements upon request.

5: Porformancc Measures and Performance Metrics

5.1. In order for the Department to monitor Contractor performance, the Contractor and the
Department shall hold monlhly provider meetings focused on performance topics
including but not limited to: persistent follow-up on referi^ls, service completion, use
of home-based services, long-tenn program outcomes, and equitable service delivery.

5.2. The Contractor shall monitor the Contractor's performance by using the following
performance metrics:

. RFP-202i-DCVF-03-COMMU- ..
02 ■ ' Conuoclof IniliatA.

10yi$/2020
The Family Resource Center at Goirtiam PeseSoia Dale



OoGuSign Envelope ID: SlB9lFOV«97A-4«OMOES^OOB2AfD42F

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community-Based Voluntary Services

EXHIBITS

Service Activity: Key perlormance metrics:
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** Six (6) month time period wiD be calculated based on consecutive 'overnights' and shall conclude on
the dose of business on the last day of the six (6) month period.

.5.3. Additional Key output ar^ process metrics:
U of families currently enrolled in C6-yS and % of CB-VS slots currently used
U of families that are offered CB-VS and % of offered families who decide to relceive
CB-VS

U of families who receive a warm handoff lo the CB-VS provider
i of referrals. irTduding the number in the defined target population and % of'
referrals in the CB-VS defined target population
U of enroilees, Including the number In the defined target population and % of
enroilees in the CB-VS defined target population
U of days from OCYF assessment start date to referral dale
U of daysjrom referral date lo first face-to-face meeting
U of days from firsi face-to-face n^eling to family stabilization date
#of days from first face-to-face meeting to initial service plan finalizalioh date
U of days from service management start date to service management end date
it of days from service management start date to service goal 1, 2,:.: , etc. achieved
date ' • ^
# of days from transition start date to closure date
% of clients vs^o respond to Net Promoter survey

RFP.202l-bCYF<l3-COMMU-
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5.4. The Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborate with the OepartmenUo enhance
contract management. Improve results, and adjust program delivery and policy'based
on successful outcomes. . ;

5.5. The Contractor may t>e required to prbvide other key data and metrics to the
Department, Including client-level demographic, performance, and service data.

5.6. Where eppllcabfe. the Contractor shall collect and share data with the Department in.
a format specified by the Department, .

5.7. The Department reserves the right to evaluate the program for effectiveness of service
deliver^ during the duration of the contract.

Additional Terms

6.1.,, Impacts Resulting from. Court Orders or Legislative Changes

6.1.1. The Contractor agrees that to the extent future slate or federal legislation
or court orders may have an impact on the Services described herein, the.
State has the right to modify Service priorities and expenditure requirements
under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

6.2. . Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate.
.Programs and Services

6.2.1. The Contractor shall submit, within ten (10) days of lhe Contract Effective
Date, a detailed description of the communication access and language
assistance services to be provided to ensure meaningful access to

*  ; prdgrams and/or services to Individuals'with limited English proOciency:
indiwduais who are deaf or have hearing toss; individuals who are blind or
have low vision; and Individuals who have speech challenges..

6.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership ^ '

6.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other malefidls
prepared during or resulting from the perfotrnance of the services of the
Contract shall include the following statement, The preparation of this
(report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with.the State of New
Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided
In part by the Slate of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources
as were available' or required, e.g., the United States Department of Health
and Human Services.'

'  6.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the contract shall have prior.
approval from the Department befofe printing, production, distribution or
use.

if
6.3.3. The Depariment shall retain copyright ownership for any and all original

' materials produced, Including, but not limited to:

j., 6.3.3.1. . Brochures.

6.3.3.2. Resource directories. . * • .

.  (7s ■ 7':^RFP-2021.-OCYF-03.COMMU- • ' ^
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6.3.3.3. -Protocols Of guidelines.

6.3.3.4. Posters.

6.3.3.5. Reports.

6.3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the
contract without prior written apprbvai from the Department.

7^ Records

7.1. The Conlractbr shall keep records lhat ir>clude, txjt are not limited to;

7.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data evidencing
and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the
performance.'of the Contract, and all Income received or collected by the
Contractor.

7.1.2. All records must be maintained in.acoordance svith accounting procedures and
practices, which sufftciently and properly reflect all such costs and expenses,,
end which are acceptable to Ihe Department, and to include, without limitation,
all ledgers, books, records, and original eyidence of costs such as purchase
requisUions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventones.
valuations of in-kind contributions,- latx>r time cards, payrolls, and other records
requested or required by

10/16/20207.1.3, statistical, enrollment, j

\.v

records for each recipient of
services, which records of application and eligibility
' {including all forms required to determioe eligibility for each such recipient),
records regarding the provision ̂ flSV^ilJils&HcfwInvolces submitted to the

(. . Department to obtain payment for such services.

7.1.4. Medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

7.2. During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Mealih and Human Services, and any of
their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records

' maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and
transcripts. Upon the purchase'by the Department of the maximum number of units
provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price linvtation hereunder, the
Contract end all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligatiDns as.
by the terms of the Contract are to be perform^ after the end of the term of this
Contract ar>d/of survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided
however, thiat if, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report Ihe Department shall
disallow any expenses ciaimed by the Conlfaclor es costs hereunder the Department
shall retain the right, at its diwetion, to deduct the arr^unt of such expenses as are
disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

'M
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Payment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1.100% General funds and as applicable as federal funding is anticipated for
this contract.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement:

2.1. The Department has idenUned the Contractor as a Sub>recipeinl, in
accordance with 2 CFR 200.330.

2.2.The Contractor's indirect Cost Rate of 10% applies in accordance with 2
CFR §200.414. , .

3. Start Up Grant

3.4.For the purpose of this agreement. Ihe start-up funds in the amount of
$430,000 will be provided to the Contractor for the expenses incurred to
launch services described in this Agreement.

3.2. The Department shall make one lump sum payment to the Contractor
within thirty (30) days of the Contract Effective Dale.

3.3.The Contractor shall submit a quarterly report to the Department within .
fifteen (15) days of the end of (he reporting period, detailing all start up
expertdltures.

3.4. All unspent funds shall be returned to the Department twelve (12) months
after|he Contract Effective Date

4. Flex Funding

4.1. For the purpose of this agreement, the Department shall allocate flexible
funding to the Contractor agency to fuHfill the work described Exhibit B.
Scope of Work.

•  •

4.2.The Department shall make payment as follows:

4.2.1. One lump sum payment of $35,700 within thirty (30) days of the
Contract Effective Date, equivalent to an estimated twoyears worth
of flexible funding.

4.2.2. The necessity and the amount of additional flexible funding for the
State Fiscal Year 2022 will be determined by the Oepaftment. The
funds will be provided only if additional funds are needed to sustain
flexible funding, ̂ y additional payment shall be made within thirty
(30) days of the be^nning of the State Fiscal Year.

4.2.3. One lump sum payment of $22,750 in State Fiscal Year 2023 of
the rantract, to be paid within thirty (30) days of the beginning of
the State Fiscal Year.

■F0niByRe*oufC«Cenief«lGorh«m EtfiiMC Cowneiof tnlUali.
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4.2.4. One lump sum payment of $22,750 in Stale Fiscal Year 2024 of
the contract, to be paid within (30) days of the beginning of the state
fiscal year.

4.2.5. Additional furKling increases awarded in State Fiscal Year 2023 and
State Fiscal Year 2024 shall be used to hcrease the account as needed
to an amount nol to exceed $22,750.

4.3. Upon the Contract Completion Dale, the Contractor shall return lb the
Department any remaining flex funds within thirty (30) days.

4.4.The Contractor shall not utiize flexible funds prior to the initial "face-lo-
face' (but can use it for the face-to-face).

4.5. The Contractor shall rnanage flexible fund allocations in a manner
consistent with Exhibit B, Scope of Work, and shall have the ability to vary
the amount of flex funds spent to support each family (e.g., some families
can get $500 and others can get $150 or any other amount needed to
support the family). • ■ •

4.6.The DepartmenI reserves the right to requesi and the Contractor shall
provide information on the following:

4.6.1. What families benefited from flexible fund purchases

4.6.2. How much was spent per family (both average and individual families)

4.6.3. What the money was flexible funds were'spent on

5. Daily Rate "

5.1 .For the purpose of this agreement, a daily rate shall be paid in the amount
of $55.00 per client (family) per day,

5.2. Payment shall be on a monthly basis arid follow a process determined by
the Department.

5.3. Maximum alotment for daily rate expenditure by fiscal year is as follows;

Sub-total: $1,699,500

Yean : $90,750

Year 2: $536,250

Year 3: $536,250 "

Year 4: $536,250. , ^

5.4. Payment for daily rate shall be Inllaled six (6) months from the Contract
Effective Dale and shall follow a process determined by the Department.

„6. Bonus Payment
t  -

6:1. For the purpose of this agreement, bonus payments shall be paid to the
Contractor agency upon delivery of the following:'

FuniOy Resewee Cenler el Cofham E*hWiC C^tractof Inltigfal .
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6.1.1. Services and data as indicated In Exhibit B, Section 2, Scope of
Work and Section 5i Performance Measures and Performance
Metrics. •

6.1.2. Submission of standard payment request form(s).

6.1.3. Submission of any other supplemental bonus payrrienl documents
specified by the department.

6.2. A bonus payment shall be paid for each family who redevesa face-to-face
meeting within three (3) days of DCYF referral.

6.2.1. Bonus payment shall be $99.00 per family. This value is equal to
1 % of the value of a &ix(6) month long service.

8.2.2. Face-to-face and referral date shall be defined as Indicated in
Exhibit 8. Scope of Work. Section 1, Key Definitions.

6.3. A bonus payment shall be paid for each family with no new open DCYF
case with six (6) months of referral.

6.3.1. Bonus payment shall be $99.00 per family. This value is equal to
1% of the value of a six (6) month long service.

6.3.2. No new open DCYF cases and referral date shall be defined as
indicated in Exhibit 8. Scope of Work. Section 1, Key Definitions.

6.4. The Contractor and the Depanment shall send all client information In
.relation to/or in support of payment, utilzing a secure email system.

6.5. Payment shall be on a montWy basis in an amount specified by the
Contractor agency on appropriate documentation.

,6.6. The maximum alotment for this contract for each State Fiscal Year is as
follows:

Total allocation: $33,628

Year 1: $4!578

Year 2: $9,750 '

Year 3: $9,750

Year 4; $9,750

6.7. The Contractor shall request bonus payments under the following
processes:

6.7.i. % of famines who receive a face-to-face within 3 days of referral.

V  6.7.1.1. The Contractor shall enter data into a standard
spreadsheet in order to calculcate the bonus amount

•  they are requesting.

n ■
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6.7.1.2. The Contractor shall then send (hat spreadsheet back to
identified Department staff. The Department shall review
the spreadsheet for accuracy on a consistant basis.

6.7.1.3. The Contractor shall request paynnent on a standard
form in an amount equal to that which was calculated on
the spreadsheet.

6.7.1.3.1. The form shall be agreed upon by the
Department and the Contraclor.

6.7.2. % families who do not have a case opened within six (6) months of
referral date;

6.7.2.1. • The Department shall share with, the Contraclor. on 8
monthly basis, a list of clients who have had a case
opened with OCYF.

6.7.2.2. Using the information from this list, the Contraclor shall
'  request payment on a standard form, agreed upon by the

Department and the Contractor.

6.8. The Department reserves the right to delay the monthly payout of bonuses
so long as they give prior notice with the Contractor. Rationale for delays
shall Include but are not limited to:

6.8.1. Absenteeism of finance, staff , . "

6.8.2. IT updates or maintinece. etc.

6.9.The Department reserves the right to conduct.audits of the Contractors
bonus payment reporting and allocations.

7. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and
emailed to DCYFInvoices@dhhs.nh.gov. or Invoices may be mailed to:

Financial l^anager
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

8. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit B, Scope of Services, in
compliance with funding requirements. «

9. The Contractor agrees thai funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in
whole or in part in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions
of Exhibit B. Scope of Se.rvlces.

10. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that
funding under this agreement may be withheld, In whole or in part, in the event
of non-compliance with any Federal or Stale taw. rule or regulation applicable
to the services provided, or if the said services or products have npLbeen ■

PS
FemOyRasouft*C«nt#faJGc*t»m EjWbftC Coftfrtctoiiniilab V ■ .
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EXHIBIT C

salisfaclorily completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
agreement.

11. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17,of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget dass lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Coundl, if needed and

.  justified.

12. .Audits

12.1. The Contractor Is required to submjl an annual audit to the Department
if any of the foliowirtg coriditions exist:

12.1.1. Coridition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the mbst recently completed fiscal year.

12.1.2. Condition 8 - The Contractor is subject to .audit pursuant to the
requirerhents of NH RSA 7:28, ill-b, pertaining to charitable

^  organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

12.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit.

12.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an anriual single audit
performed by an Independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the
Department within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal
year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part
200. Subpart F of the U.nlform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal av^rds.

12.3. If Condition 8 or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an

annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the dose of the Contractor's fiscal year.

12A, In addition to. and not in any way in limitation of obligations of'the
Contract, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any slate or federal audit exceptions
' and.^shali return to the Department all payments made under the.
Contract to'which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed.becduse of such an exception.

_^.F0mOy Resource Cenler et Oortiam

RFP.2021 OCYF^3^MMU-02
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Contractor Inliiets

Date
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5r?:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor idenlified in Section 1.3 of (he General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-9160 of the Drug-Free Wcrtcplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-630. TIQe V. Sutxiile.O; di
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the. General Provisions execute (he foUowing Cer^ation:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF H^LTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION . CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AORICULTURE . CONTRACTORS

This certificalion is required by the regulaiions implementing Sections 5151-5160 of (he Drug-Free
Workplace AO of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-630, Title V, SubtiUe 0; 41 U.S.C. 701 ei seq.). The January 31.
1969 regulations were amended and published as Pan II of the May 25.1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691). and require certification by grantees (and by Inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors}. prior to award.' that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the -
reguiation provides that a grantee (arid by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certificalion to the Oepaitmeni in each federal fiscal year in lieu of cedificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certificaUon. The certificate set out below is a
malerlai representation of fact upon which reliance Is placed when the agency awards (he grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be founds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to: >

Comn^ssioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street.

Concord. NH 03301-6505
/

1. The granlee certifies that it wQI or coniinue to pro^de 8 drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishbga statement nolifymg employees (hat the unlawful manutacture, distrtbution.

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the granlee's
vrorkplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employeei for Violation of such
prohibition:

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to Inform employees about
1.2:1. The dangers of drug abuse In the workplace;

-  1.2.2. The grantee's policy pf rnaintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabillistlon. and employee assistance programs; and
1-.2.4.' Xhe periatUes that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring In the workplace:
'1.3. Making il a requirement thai each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the'employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the'grant. the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statemertt; arKf

• 1.4.2. Nolify the employer In writing of h'is or her conviction for a wolation of a criminal drug
staiule occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar'days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing. \^hin ten calendar days after receiving notice under '
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convlcled employees must provide notice, including position tilie, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless (he Federal agency

•Mn

ExMbUO-CeitUlcsllonrogtrdlnoOnioFtee Vender lidiUls
WorkpieceRequVements 10/16/2020
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has daalgndted a central pbini for the receipt of such ru)tice8. Notice shall include (he
identificatioh oumber($) of each affected grant;

V6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who h so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such ari employee, up to and induding

.  termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. as
amended; or'

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorOy in a drug abuse' assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by e Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to niainlain a drug-f/ee workplace through
ImplemenlaUooof paragraphs 1.1,1.2.1.3.1.4.1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may Insert In ihe space provided below the Sfte(s) for the performance of work done in
connection vnth the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) Oi»t each location]

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Vendor Name:
•  »

PaMcifl. Sfilfu10/16/2020

Oate Name;'^^^^! a Stotce
Title; Executive Director

ExtA^l D •> CenlOcsflan reggrdlng Drug Fits Vendor Inliisb
Workptace ReQutrements 10/16/2020
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CERTIFICATION REGARDINO LOBBYING

The Vendor ideniified In Section 1.3 of the GeneferProvlsions agrees lo comply with the provisions of
Section 319 ol Public Law 101-121, Govemmcnl vwde Guidance lor New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, end further agrees to have the Conuactor's representalive. as Identified In Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification;

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUPi^AN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicale applicable program covered);
•Temporary Assistance lo Needy Families under Tiitejv-A
•Child Support Enforcemenl Program under Tide IV-d'
'Social Services Slock GrarU Program under Title XX
•MedicaW Prog/am under Title XIX
•Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
•Child Care Development Stock Grant under Title IV

Tt^e undersigned certifies, to the best of Ivs or her knovdedga and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the or>dersigned. to
any person for influencing or attempting lo influence an officer or employee of any agency, e Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
corv>ection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sutvgraniee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated furKlJ have been paid or will be paid to any parson for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer of employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Gor»gress in connection with ihls
Federal contract. granL loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form ILL. (Disclosure Form to
Report Lot>byir>g, in accordance with Its Instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certificalton be Included In the award
documenl for sul>-awafds at all.tiers (including subcontracts, sub-granls. end contracts under gmnls.
loans, ar>d cooperative agreements) and that aD.sub-reclpienls shaD certify and disclose accordingly. ̂

This certification is a material representation of fact upon v^hich reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered Into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
wansacUon imposed by Section 1352, TiUe 31, U.S. Code.. Any person who fails to file Ihe required
cerllficalron shall be subject to a civil penally of not less than $10,000 and not more than SI00.000 for.
each such failure. j' • .

VendorName;

T-

(pinuo.
Sto'lte- ^

Tlllp. executive Director
•M

ExNpli E - CertlScjllon LobbyCng VeniJor Initials^
LO/16/2020
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CERTinCATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENStON

AND OTHER RESPONSIBIirTY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Prosrlstons agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Pan 76 regarding Debarment.
Suspension, and Other Respor^bility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Cenification:

instructions for certification
1. By signing ar>d submitting this proposal <contract). the prospe^ive primary participant is providing the

certi^cation set out bdow.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certirication required below wiD not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction, if r\ecessary. the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Humari Services' (DHHS) .
determination vrhelher to enter mto this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
particlpaAt to furnish a certJficalion or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation In
this transaction. •

3. The certificalior^ in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reSance was placed
when DHHS deterrnined to enter Into ̂ is transaction. If it is later determined that the prqspectiva
primary parUcipar^ knowngly rendered an erroneous certificalton, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government. DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospeglive primary partidpant shaQ provide immediate written rxMice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns

■  (hat its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms 'covered transaction.* 'debarred.' 'suspended,* 'ineligible.' 'lower tier covered
transaction.' 'participant,* 'person.* 'primary covered transaction.' 'principal,' 'proposal,* and
'voluntarily excluded.* as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Oermitlons and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549:45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached deEnitions. I

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitling Ihls proposal (contract) thai, stiould the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into ariy lower tier covered
transaction with a person vrho is debarred, suspended, declared Ineligible, or voluntarily excluded •
from participation in Ihls covered transacUor^. unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary partidpanl further agrees by submitting this proposal that It will Include the
clause titled 'CertiflcaUon Regarding Debarment. Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion •
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,* provided by DHHS. without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and In aD solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

6. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that il is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows thal^he certification b erroneous. A participant may
decide the meihod'end frequency by which it deterrnines the eliglbilily of its principals. Each
pafticlpant may. but is not required to, check the Ncnprocurement List (of excluded pahies).

9; Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be cor\strued to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the cerlificalion required by this dause. The knowtedge

ExiUUit F -CeniflcaSoft Rftsardino 0«barment. Suspension Contradoi inlilalt^^^—
"  And Other RttponsW^ MsUeri 10/16/2020
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information of o participant is not required to exceed that which is ncrmaDy possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealinps.

t  * ^'10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these Instructiorts. if a partidpent in e
covered transaction knowingty enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, Ineligible, or voluntarily exdvded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies evailebte to the Federal government. OHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or defaull

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge end belief, that it erxt its
principals;
11.1. ere not presently Oebened. suspended, proposed for det^armertt. declared ineCgUo, or

vDluhtarlly excluded from covered transaciions by any Federal department or agency:
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a wH judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connecUon with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or pertonming a public (Federal, State or local)
transacton or a contract under a public transaction; violation.of Federal or Stale antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or recdvir>g stolen property,

11.3. are not presently Indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b}

- ofthiscertificaUon: and .
11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this appGcatiorVproposa) had one or more public

transactions (Federal. Slate or local) terminated for causo or default.

12. Where the prospective primary partidpent is unable to cert'fy tp any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shaD attach an explanation to this propose! (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier prDposel (contract), the prospective lower tier partidpanl. as

defined in 4S CFR Part 76. certifies to the best of its knowledge and beRef lhai lt and its prindpats:
13.1, ere not presently debarred, suspended, proposed fordebarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily exduded from partidpation In this trarisecUon by any federal department or agency.
13.2. wrhere the prospective fewer tier particlpant is unatde to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an exi^nation to this ̂ ^)osal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that It vrilt
indude this clause entitled 'Certification Regarding O^erment, Suspension, Ineliglbility. end
Voluntary Exclusion • Lower Tfer Covered Transections,* without modiRcation In all lov^r (i^ covered
transactions end in ail solidtetions for lower tier covered transactions. •.

Contractor Name:

y

10/16/2020

Oete W^Wtvreia stolte
TIBe:

executive Director

cu(Di«anicffi3

ExMbQ F - CwtTicttlert Rigsnfing Otbirment Suspension
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.  CERTIFICATION OP COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TQ

• fEOERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certiftcation:

i

Coniraclor-wfll comply, end will require any subgrantees or sutxxintractors (o comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act ofl 966 <42 U.S.C. Section 37e9d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from dischminadng. either in employment.practices or In
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race. odor, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Preveniron Act of 2002 <42 U.S.C. Section S672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civl) rights obligations of the Sale Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute arc prohibited from discriminating, oilhor In employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, nalionat origin, and sex. The Acl includes Equal
Employment Opporturdiy Plan requirements:

• the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits recipients oi federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, cobr, or nalbnsl origin in any program or activity);

• the Rehabilitation Acl of 1973 (29 U.S.C! Section 794). which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability. In regard to employment and the delivery ol
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

• the Americans with Disabilities Act.of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Seclions 12131 -34). which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, Slate and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

• the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681.1683.1665-86). which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sax in (adertfiy assisted education programs;

• the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106*07),.which prohibits dlscrimifkation on the-
basisofageinprogramsprectivitiesrecetvingFederairinanciaia^isiance. tt does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs): 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscriminalion; Equal Employment Opportunlly; Policies
and Procedures): Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protecilon of the laws for feiih*based artd community
organizations); Executive Order No.-13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood orgariizaiions;

- 28 C.F_R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based ^
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 ar\d Tt)e National Defense.Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239. cnecied January 2.2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Proteclions, wtiich protects employees against
reprisal for certein whistle blovring eclivities in connection with federal grants ar>d,contracts.

The certificate set but below Is a material represeniaiion of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
ager>cy awards the grant False certificaliqn or violation of the cerHrication shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or lermlnation of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarmcnt

EihWlG 1'^^
•' Corilridoflniiiih^'
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State admintstnaiive agency makes a finding of
dt$crifnir\atlon after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient vnll forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civ9 Rights, to
the eppBcatile contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health end Human Services Office of Ihe Ombudsman.

The Contractor Identified in SecUort 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by e'^ruiture of the Coniractor's
representative as identified in Actions 1.11 and 1.12 of the Oer>eral Provisions, to execute the foQowing
certification:

I. By signing and submiaing Ihis-proposal (contraci) the Contractor egrees to comply with thp provisions
indicated above.

Contraclor Name:

10/16/2020

Date * Nan^^i^niia Stolte

Executive Director

■D|

ExhblG
ConUsctor Inhlah

.CtntaMiaA cf C«rwli«v* M r MwX ttartftoMfWcn. Cquu IrcMMrt (f r Wv««M« OBV'iMkfw
ywvvHtXWinyomSoni
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CERTIFICATION REGAftOING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

PubSc Law 103-227, Part C - Environnnenlal Tobacco Smoke, also known as tbe Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires (hat smoking not be permitted tn any portion of any indoor facility owned or teased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or Hbrary services to children under the age of 18. if the services are funded by Federal programs either '
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grenL contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in privaie residences, facilities ̂ nded solely by '
Medicare or Mediceid funds, end portions of facUities used for inpatienl drug or alcohol trealmenL Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition ol a civi! monetary penally of up-to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an ̂ mblstrative oompliance or^er on the responsible entity.

The Contractor idenlihed in Section 1.3 of the General Prowsions agrees, by signature of the Contracts
representative as identified in Section i.ll and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

1. By signing btkI submitting iNscontracL the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with ail.appGcable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C..lmown as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name:

10/16/2020

Dale

— tf-

PaMoflt

stoUe
Tllte. Executive Director

cuomSfiio}!)

Ej^lbli H - OrliGeaUon ftegir^
EnvirorvnentsI Tobacco Smoko
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILiTY ACT
BUStNESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Public Law 104'191 arKl
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of IndividuaOy Identifiable Health Information. 45
CFR Paris 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Ass^ale" shall rr>ean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity" shall mean the Stale of New.Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(!) Definitions.

a. 'Breach* shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" In section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of TItie 45, Code .
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entity" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Tide 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

(t- 'Desionated Record Set' shall have the same rheanir^ as the term "designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501, j

e. 'Data AQqreoation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation' in 45 CFR
Section 1W.501.

f- 'Health Cere Operations' shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations'
In 45 CFR Section 164.501.

fl- 'HITECH Act'means the Heallh Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act. TlileXMI. Subtitle D. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009. . ■

h.- 'HIPAA' means the Heallh Insurance Portabllily and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amerKlments thereto.

i. 'Individual' shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR SMtion 160.103
and shall inctude.a person who qualifies'as a personal representative In accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. 'Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
,  Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164. promulgated under HIPAA by the United States '

Department of Health arul Human Services.

k- -'Protected Health Information' shall have the same meaning as the term "prelected heallh
Information" in 45 CFR Section 1^.103. limited to the Information created or received-by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. f

3/2014 Eitifbtll Ccftlfdix — •
H«isn buursAcs PMttbaty'Aci
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P«SflioiS • Dale



OoaiS3Qn Envdept 10:5iMlP0>497A*4eOMOE>A3O082AFO42f

New Hampshire Depertment of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

I.. 'Reouired bv Law* shall have (he same meaning as the term 'reguired by law' in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. •^cretarv'shaH mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Senrlces or
his/her destgnee.

n. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Prolectiori of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164. Subpart C. and amendments thereto.

o. 'Unsecured Protected Health information' means protected health Information that Is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health Informatlonjjnusable.
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized indh/idudls and Is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National StarKlards
Iristitute.

p. Other Dernrtions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C;F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164. as amended from time to time, and (he
HIT^CH
Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

.3. Business Associate shall not use. disclose, mainiain or transmil Prolected-Health
Infoimatlon (PHl) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to ell
. its directors, ofTrcers. employees and agents, shall rtol use, disclose, maintain or transrnt
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associaie may use Of disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and edministration of the Business Associate;
II. ■ As required by law, pursuant to the terms sel forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

. Entity. J

c: To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI lo a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held conridentialiy and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (it) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HtPAA Privacy. Security, and Breach Nolificalion
Rules of any breaches of the'confidentiality of the PHI. to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide .services under Exhibii A of Ihe Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it Is required by law. without first notifying
Covered Entity so thai Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosurq^and
to seek appropriate fetlef. if Covered Entity.objects to such disclosure, (he Bus'tf

3/201* &rhiNll ConUaOM mtOM _
HeatihtftsuraAca PoiubBUy Act *
Builneu As»odslo Agroemeni 10/16/2020

■- 2 of 6 Oat»



DocvSign Env«tope ID: S1BatFO>497A-4eoe-tDE5-A9O0&2AFD42F

Now Hampshire Oopartment of Health end Human Services

Exhibit t

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PMI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
' remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notices the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over'and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shail not disclose PHt In vtotation of

- such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obllantlons and Activltlflg of Bufllnoss AsftociMo.
I  " .

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immcdiatety
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security Incident thai.may have an Impact on the
protected health Information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall Immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to: •

0  The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-jdentificatton;

0  The unauthorized person used the protected health Information or to whom the
discbsure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to the protecled health information has been

mitigated.

y
The Business Associate shall complele the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
CoveredjEntity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy. Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall rriake available all of its Internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on t>ehalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for

,, purposes of determinir^g Covered Entity's cornpliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use ortiave
access to PHI under the Agreement..to agree In writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shatl be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business ̂ gplate
agreements with Contractor's intended business, associates, who will be recelvlM^I

3/20H 6*NWll Contfictar -
Health iniurence PonebCity Act
Bustneis Associate Aorsemeni 10/16/2020
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcentent and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph PI 3 of the standard
cdntract provisions (P'37) oif this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of

'* protected health information.

f. Within frve (5) business days of receipt of a wrtnen request from Covered.Entity.
Business Associate shall make avaUable during normal business hours at its offices an
records, books, agreements, polictes and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHi to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the tenms of the Agreement.

g. ' Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to Phil in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirerhenls under 45 CFR Sectipn 164.524. '

. h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an Individual contained in a Designated Record
$et, the Business Associate shall rhake such PHI available to Covered Entity for
annendment aruJ incorporate any such amer)dmenl to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526. *

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosure^ of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
Individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section .
164.528.

WHhin ten (10) busmess days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI. Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such Information as Covered Entity may require to fulfdl its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI In accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. ' Inlhe event any Individual requests access to. amendment of. or accounling of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business.days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
irtdividuars request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the indtvlduaVs request as required by such law and rv)tify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable. ^

t. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction Is not feasible, or the disposition of tl)e PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement. Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to IhpseM
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as SusinessT

3/2014 ExM&UI ConmctPf WliiU^--
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c.

Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall ceriify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has beert destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entltv

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associale of any changes or iimHation(s) In its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent thai such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disctoaure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocatiori
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in.accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
•PHI.

<5) Termination for Cau^e

In addition to Paragra^ 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of (his
Agreement the Covered Entity may fmmediatety terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's l^rtowledge of a breach by Business Associale of the Business Associate ^
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
lerminale the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure'the
alleged breach within a tlmeframe spedfied by Covered Entity, if Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure |s feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

/

(6) Miscellaneous .

a. •' Definitions and jReQulatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein.
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to Include this Exhibit I, to

■  a Section In the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. " Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as Is ^
necessary to amend.the Agreement, from time to lime as Is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HlPAA,.lhe Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law:

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d;- Interprelation.. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement ̂ all be reeotved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy end Security Rule,

3/2014 Exhlbill Conlfiaat
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Seareaation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the appllcalion thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such mva&dity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or cortdition: to (his end the
terms arxJ conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

^prvival. Provisions In this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI. return or
destruction of PHI. extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I. the
defenxe end indemnlficetion provisions of section (3) e end Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P>37). shall survive the termtnation of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the p^ies hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Depanmenl of Health and Human Services Tha Fanily Resource center at corhan

Contractor

Joseph E. Ribsam, Jr. •[ Pa/vwiA
Signature of Authorized Representative SignafufFbTXuthorized.Representative
)cseph e. Ribsam, 3r. Patricia Stolce

Name of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Representative

01 rector Executive Director

Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative

10/21/2020 10/16/2020

Date Date

3/20U
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FfeOERAL FUNDtNO ACCOUNTABILfTY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACTIFFATAl COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act {FFATA} requires prime awardees.of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and award^ on or after Oct^r 1, 2010. to report on
data mlaied to executive compensation and associated first-ter sub^rants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is balow $25,000 but subsequent grant modtficaUohs result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is sutiject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the data of the award. ■
In 8ccordar>oe with 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information}, the
Depaitment of Health and Human Servieas (DHHS) must report the fbiiowtng information for any
aubaward or contract award sut^act to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Nameofcntity
2. Amount of award , * .

• 3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts/CFOA program number for grants
5. Program source - *
6. Award titte descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
6. Prindpte place of p^ormance
9. Unique identifier of the entity {DUNS 0)
10. Totd compensation and names of the top ftve executives if:

10.1. More then 60% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than S25M ennually and

10.2. Compensation Information Is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, In which
the sward or award anrumdmenl Is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the Genera) Provlsbns agrees to comply with the provisions of"
The Federal Funding AcoountabiEty and Transparency Act. Public Law 109-282 Public Law 110-252.
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information}, and further agrees
to have the Contracloi'& repreisentative, as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following CertncaUon;
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed Information as oulEned above to the NH

. Department of Health and Human Services end to comply wl9^ ell applicable provisions of the Federal
Finanda) Accountability end Transparency Act

r

ContradorName:

.IT- f oxiita—< w.

lo/is/iQZO I fAfnaV Sfclft
Dbis—^ ^ —

Executive Director

EKt\Ui J - CeniflCAtloft R«Q8iClng th« FixUrtf Pundhg Cont/sdor Inhisb
- AccownUbSiry And TrsAspirvicy Ad (FFATA) Compbnco 10/16/2020
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.FORMA

As the Contractor i^niifted in Section i .3 of (he General Provisions, I certify (hat the responses to (he
tKlow Dsted questions are true.end accurate.

,  ̂ ^ 0191S0817
1. The DUNS number for your entity is: •

-  2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or orgarvxation
receive (1) 90 percent or more o' your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, arxl/or cooperative agreements; and (2) S25.000.b00 or mora in annual
gross revanuat from U.S. federal contracts, subccntracti, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to 02 above Is NO, stop here

II the answer lo 02 above is YES, piease ansv^r the fotlow'tng:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic report's filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1034 (IS U.S.C.76m(8). 7eo(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to 03 at>ove is YES. Stop here

If the answer to 03 above Is NO. please answer ihe following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highty compensated officers In your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

f^ame:.

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

CuOMHSnwu

EedbS J - CfftKcation ftegardlAO the Fed«ral Funding
AceounUbfliry And Trsmpi'enqr Act (FFATA) Com^anc«

Pagi Z ol 3 '
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DHHS Information Security Requirements .

A. Definitions '

The following terms may be reflected and have the described mear^lng in this document:

1. 'Breach" rneans the loss of control, compromise, unauthohzed disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
sltoatioris where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access lo personally identifiable
information, whether physical or etectranlc. With regard to Protected Health
Information..' Breach^ shall have (he same meaning as the term 'Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45. Coda of FederarRegulations.'

2. "Computer Security Incident' shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
incident' In section two (2) of NIST Publication 600-61. Computer S^urity Incident
Handling Gujde, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Depaitment
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information' or 'Confidential Data" means all confidential information

. disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal Information including without Pmitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records. Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all Information owned or nnanaged by
*  the State of NH • created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health ar>d
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed In the course of performir^g contracted
services • of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition Is goverr^d by
-slate or.federal-law or regulation. This inforrnation Includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Infomiaiiori (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Finar\cial
Information (PFI). Federal Tax Information (FTI). Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. 'End User" means any person or entity (e.g.. contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate., subcontractor, other dovmstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS dale or derivative data In accordance with the te.rms of this Contract.

5.- "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incidenr means an act that potenti^iy violates an explicit or implied securjty policy,
which Includes attempts (either failed or^successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or Its data, unwanted dismptlon or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware.

' firmware, or softv^re characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents Include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouling of physical or electronic

•  • . ■

V5.u$iupd8l« 10rtW16 •. EiWBUK Contraclot mUlsti''.
DHHS MomAllon •

Stcurlty Ro^emenii 10/16/2020
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mail, all of which may have the potential to put the ddtosdl risk of.unduthori2ed
access, use, disclosure, modificatioh or destruction.

7. 'Open Wireless Networic' means any network or segment of a netwodcthat Is
not desigriated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered en open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted Pi, PFI.
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information' (or "PI") means Information *vhich can be used to distinguish
or trace ah Ind'tviduars identity, such as their narne. social security number, persor^l
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C;l9. biometric records, elc..
alone, or when combined with other persor>al or identifying Information v^ich IS (inked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc. '

9. 'Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privdcy of Individually Idenliflable Health
Informalibn at 45 C.F.R. Paris 160 and 164. promulgated under HIPAA by'the United
Slates Department of Healtti and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health information* (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided In the
definition of "Protected Health Infonmatlon' in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164. Subpart C. and amendrnents
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information' means Protected Health Informatlgn that Is
not secured by a techrx^logy standard (hat renders Protected Health Information
urHJsable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized Indiv'tduals and is
developed or endorsed by a starxlards developing organization that is accredited
the American National Standards institute.

V-

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidentiai lnformation.

1.. Th^ Contractor must not use, disctose, maintain or transmit Confidential lr\formatloh
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor.

.  including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Conndentia! Information in response to a

V5.UstUpdSl0t(m/t6 ExfttoflK . ,1. Conlracktf IrfUata
DHHS Intefmslion .

SpcvrllyRcqutrefflenii 10/16/2020
•v Page 2 or 9 Dole
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request for disclosure or^ the basis that It Is required by law, In response to a
subpoena, etc., without fust rwlifyinq OHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor thai DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above Ihosa uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be boor>d by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI In violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any eddlUonai security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees thai OHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an ErvJ
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees OHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not t>e used for
any-other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of Inspecting to confirm compliance wtth the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

V Application ErKrypUon. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between appHodtions, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the interrwt.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmittirtg DHHS
data.

3. Ef>cfypled Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential. Data If
email is enctvoted and being sent to end being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such Information.

4. _Er>cfypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must l>e used and the web site must be
secure. .SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting •senrices. such as Oropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidehtial Data.

6. Grouhd Mail Ser^ce. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via cenified ground
mall within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named Individual.

7. Laptops- and PDA. If End User Is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypt^ and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User rriay not transmit Confidential Data via an open

g
vs. Usi uptfdld 10/09/^8 K CtfUrscior ^
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wireless network. End User must employ e virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User CommunlcdUon. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confldential Data; a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will l>e
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocot (SFTP). also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol, if
End User Is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidentiat Data. End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent Inappropriate disclosure of
inforrnation. SFTP folders and sub>folders used for transmitting Confidential Data wHI
be coded for 24«hour autoKleietion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
' data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disctosure of Informalion.

ttl. RETENTION AND OlSPOSITlON OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor wtll orily retain the data and any derivatlye of ttie data for the duration of this
Cojitract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
denvative in whatever form It rr>ay exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end. the parties must;

A. Retention

1. The Coritr^or agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requlremerit shall also apply in the Implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and Includes backup
data aruj Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper secunty monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can Impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential Information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Cdntractor agrees to.provide secunty awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protectlng'Department confidentiat Informatton.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain ali electronic and hard copies of Conndentla) Data
in a, secure location and identified in sectiori IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedfV^MP/HITECH complianl solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker. anti-spam, anli-spyware. and anli-rndlwdre utilities. The environment, as a
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whole. mit$( have aggreesive Intruslon-detection and firewaP protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition
4

1. If the Contrector will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or Ns
sub'contractor systems), (he Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and win
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing. err>ergency, and or disaster,
recovery operations. Wheri no longer in use. electronic media containing State of
New Hamf^ire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via e secure wipe program
In accordance, with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanltization. or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as descnbed in NIST Special Publication 800-66. Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanltization, National institute of Standards and Technology. U. is.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
lime of the data destruction, and wit) provide written certification to (he Department
upon request. The written certification will indude all details necessary to
dan^strate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory artd professional standards for retention requirements will be Jointly
evaluated by the State and Coiitractor prior to destruction.

2. tjniess otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. CorUractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise spedfied, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to saf^uard the DHHS Data recdved under this Contract, and any
derivative dale or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain prpper security controls to protect Department
cohndential Information collected, processed,'managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Conlractpr will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confiderUtal information throughout the information iifecycte, where .appHcable, (frorn
creation, transformation, ■ use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

■ Ivs. Lulupdsle nVOtftS Exhl&tiK Concrtcior
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authenticalion and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact Slate of NH • systems and/or
Department conndehlial infonnation for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular secunty awareness and education (or Its End
Users in support of protecting Department conridenlial informalion.

6. If the Contractor will be $ub-contrdciing any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Kampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that detines specific security
expectations, and monilon'ng compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, induding breach ratification requirements: ^

7. The Contractor wijl work with the Department to sign and comply with all appticait>le
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization polices
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department systemfs). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sut>-contractor$ prior to
system access being authorized.

6. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103. the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsibie for maintaining 'compliarce with the
agreement. ;. . .

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable, the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or (he Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Conlractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability, tri the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to Investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulling from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor alt costs of response and r^very from
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the breach, inc(udir>g but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and tetephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Conlractor must, comply with afl applicaWo statutes and regulations regardir>g the
p>riyacy and security of Confidential infomtatlon. .and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a lavei and scope that is not tess .
than the level and scope of requirements applicabfe to federal agencies, induding.
but not limited to, prosrisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for indivkJually identinaWe health
information and es applicable under Slate law. .

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the conndentiality of the Conftdential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to It.-The safeguards must provide a level and "
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the Stale of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procufemenl at hltps://www.nh.goy/dolt/vendor/index.hlm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurerrwnt information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agriees to maintain a documented breach notification and Incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
Slate's Security Officer of any security breach Immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential Information breach, computer

'  security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that a!l End Users:

comply with such safeguards. as referenced (n Section IV A. above.
Implemented to protect Confidential Infonnatlon that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

safeguard this Information at ell tirnes.

ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI. PI. or
Ppi are encrypted and password'protected.

send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to

a.

b.

c.

d.

receive such information.
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I

e. limit disclosure of the Conridential (nformation to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individuaDy
Identifiable data derived from DHHS jData, must be stored In an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
diiHrtg duty hours as weQ as non-duty hours (e.g., dOOr locka, card keys,
biometric Identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confldeniial Data. Includir^ any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in an cases,
such data must be encrypted at ell times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used end
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as detemnlned by a rislt-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

1. urderstand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials us^ to access the site directly or indirectly through

-  8 third party application.

Conlractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their Er>d Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct.onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requiremenls provided in herein, HIPAA.
and other applicable laws and f^ederal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of In accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any '
Securily Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI. '

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI h
accordarKe with the agertc/s documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 • 306. In addition* to. and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations arxi procedures,
Contractor's procedures must also address how Ihe Cqntraclor will:

1. Identify Incidenls:

2. Determine If personally Idenlifiable information is involved in Incidenls:

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37; -

4. Identify end convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Inddents
and determine risk-based lesponses to Incidents; and
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S. .Determine whether Breach noiincetion is required, and, if so, Identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
li^asures. , '

Irwidenta arKl/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C;20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

.  OHHSP(iv8cyOfncef@dhhs.nh.gov

B. OHHS Security Officen

DHKSlnfoiTnatlonSecurityOfrice@dhhs.nh.Qov
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